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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STA TEMENTS

Our SEC filings and public announcements may ireligiward-looking statements about future evenenegally, the words "believe,"
"expect,” "intend," "estimate," "anticipate," "peat," "will" and similar expressions identify forngklooking statements, which generally are
not historical in nature. We intend for all forwdambking statements contained herein, in our prelesases or on our website, and all subse!
written and oral forward-looking statements atttéhle to us or persons acting on our behalf, todwered by the safe harbor provisions for
forward-looking statements within the meaning & Brivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1984d the provisions of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the SgearExchange Act of 1934 (which Sections werepaeld as part of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995). Such statements subject to a number of risks, uncertainties asgimptions including, without limitation,
the uncertainties related to any potential sales@ation involving Ben Sherman being identifiedconsummated (including, among others, the
timing of any transaction and the ultimate impdcmy transaction on our business and operatingtsysand assumptions regarding the impac
of economic conditions on consumer demand and spgngiarticularly in light of general economic urteénty that continues to prevail,
demand for our products, competitive conditionsjrig of shipments requested by our wholesale custsnexpected pricing levels, retention
of and disciplined execution by key managementtithing and cost of store openings and of planregatal expenditures, weather, costs of
products as well as the raw materials used in thosgucts, costs of labor, acquisition and disparsiactivities, expected outcomes of pending
or potential litigation and regulatory actions, ess to capital and/or credit markets and the impf&ftireign losses on our effective tax rate.
Forward-looking statements reflect our current exa@ons, based on currently available informatam] are not guarantees of performance.
Although we believe that the expectations refledtestich forwardeoking statements are reasonable, these expewat@uld prove inaccure
as such statements involve risks and uncertaintiasy of which are beyond our ability to controlppedict. Should one or more of these risks
or uncertainties, or other risks or uncertaintiesaurrently known to us or that we currently deenbe immaterial, materialize, or should
underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actualltesnoay vary materially from those anticipatedjraated or projected. Important factors
relating to these risks and uncertainties inclide are not limited to, those described in Paten 1A. Risk Factors and elsewhere in this
report and those described from time to time infature reports filed with the SEC. We caution thaé should not place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements, which speak only athefdate on which they are made. We disclaim am@ntion, obligation or duty to update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether gesalt of new information, future events or othisey except as required by law.

DEFINITIONS

As used in this report, unless the context requitesrwise, "our,"” "us" or "we" means Oxford Indiest, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries; "SG&A" means selling, general and iathtrative expenses; "SEC" means U.S. SecuritiesExchange Commission; "FASB"
means Financial Accounting Standards Board; "AS€@ans the FASB Accounting Standards Codificatiod; "@&AAP" means generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Stakdditionally, the terms listed below reflect trespective period noted:

Fiscal 2015 52 weeks ending January 30, 2016
Fiscal 2014 52 weeks ended January 31, 2015
Fiscal 2013 52 weeks ended February 1, 2014
Fiscal 2012 53 weeks ended February 2, 2013
Fiscal 2011 52 weeks ended January 28, 2012
Fiscal 2010 52 weeks ended January 29, 2011
Fourth quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended Jarg8igrg015
Third quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended Noverhp2014
Second quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended Aug@siz
First quarter Fiscal 2014 13 weeks ended May 3420
Fourth quarter Fiscal 2013 13 weeks ended Febia2914
Third quarter Fiscal 2013 13 weeks ended Noverp2013
Second quarter Fiscal 2013 13 weeks ended Augi3
First quarter Fiscal 2013 13 weeks ended May 4320




PART |

ltem 1. Business
BUSINESS AND PRODUCTS
Overview

We are a global apparel company that designs, ssuntarkets and distributes products bearing #tletnarks of our company-owned
lifestyle brands, as well as certain licensed anhpe label apparel products. Our portfolio ofrta includes Tommy Bahama®, Lilly
Pulitzer® and Ben Sherman®. We distribute our camypawned lifestyle branded products through ouedtito consumer channel, consisting
of our retail stores and e-commerce sites, andvbtesale distribution channel, which includes drettepartment stores and specialty stores.
During Fiscal 2014 , 90% of our net sales were fpyoducts bearing brands that we own, and 61% pheusales were sales of our products
through our direct to consumer channels of distiiloy which includes our 206 owned retail storas, ® commerce websites and our 15
Tommy Bahama restaurants. In Fiscal 2014 , apprabeiy 90% of our consolidated net sales were ttoowsrs located in the United States,
with the sales outside the United States primddling sales of our Ben Sherman products in theedrkingdom and continental Europe as
well as sales of our Tommy Bahama products in Camaad the Asia-Pacific region.

Our business strategy is to develop and market etimg lifestyle brands and products that evokérang) emotional response from our
target consumers. We strive to exploit the poténfiaur existing brands and products domesticaifig internationally. We consider "lifestyle"
brands to be those brands that have a clearlyatbfind targeted point of view inspired by an appgdifestyle or attitude, such as the Tommy
Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer and Ben Sherman brands. \lebe that lifestyle branded products that createmotional connection with consumers
can command greater loyalty and higher price pahtstail, resulting in higher earnings. We alstidve a successful lifestyle brand opens uf
greater opportunities for direct to consumer openatas well as licensing opportunities in prodiategories beyond our core business.

We believe that the attraction of a lifestyle bramd¢onsumers is dependent on maintaining appreppiepduct quality and design,
appropriately restricting distribution to a selget of retailers and effectively communicating tiespective lifestyle brand message. Our
design-led, commercially informed lifestyle brarmukeations strive to provide compelling, differetgiproducts each season. We seek to
maintain the integrity of our lifestyle brands lapiting promotional activity in our full price retastores and e-commerce websites.
Accordingly, we target select wholesale customieas tiypically follow this same approach in thewrss. In order to further strengthen each
lifestyle brand's connections with consumers, wenapt to communicate regularly with consumers k@use of electronic media, and other
media, in a manner intended to engage consumerguade them to our retail stores, e-commerce websihd wholesale customers in search
of our brands. Following our principles and contivguappropriate practices to maintain and enhameénages of each of our lifestyle brands,
we believe that our lifestyle brands are ideallifesiito succeed and thrive in the long-term whiknaging the various challenges facing the
industry, including rapidly changing technologynsamer shopping patterns and an increasingly priomadtapparel retail environment.

Our direct to consumer operations provide us wWithdpportunity to interact directly with our custenrs, present to them the full line of
our current season products and provide an oppbyrtiom a consumer to be immersed in the themédeflifestyle brand. We believe that
presenting our products in a setting specificatigigned to showcase the lifestyle on which thedsame based enhances the image of our
brands. We believe that our owned retail storesigeohigh visibility for our brands and productadaallow us to stay close to the preferences
of our consumers, while also providing a platfoonlbng-term growth for the brands. Additionallyrae-commerce websites for our lifestyle
brands provide the opportunity to increase revehyagaching a larger population of consumers ankeasame time allow our brands to
provide a broader range of products. We anticipatber investments in Tommy Bahama and Lilly Paditto increase the number of retail
stores of each of the brands and to further enheacle brand's e-commerce operations.

In addition to operating e-commerce websites fohe# our lifestyle brands, as of January 31, 204/& operated 157 Tommy Bahama,
28 Lilly Pulitzer and 21 Ben Sherman retail locatipincluding outlet locations for Tommy Bahama &ash Sherman. Our Tommy Bahama
and Ben Sherman outlets and our Tommy Bahama diydPLilitzer e-commerce flash clearance sales sn@lbsites play an important role in
overall inventory management by allowing us to datontinued and out-of-season products at betiees than are otherwise available from
outside parties.

Our wholesale operations complement our direcbtesamer operations and provide access to a largap@f consumers. Our wholes
distribution channels include better departmentestospecialty stores, national chains, wareholudes cmass merchants and Internet retailers.
We value our long-standing relationships with olnolesale customers and are






committed to working with them to enhance the sasa# our products within their stores. Our 10 éstgcustomers represented 22% of our
consolidated net sales for Fiscal 2014 , with mtividual customer representing more than 10% ofocamsolidated net sales.

Within our Lanier Clothes operating group, we s@lparel products under certain brands that aredaxto us and certain private label
apparel products, as well as products bearing lsrtrat we own. During Fiscal 2014 , on a consoéiddtasis, sales of products from licensed
brands and private label products accounted foaf#64%, respectively, of our net sales.

We operate in highly competitive domestic and imétional markets in which numerous U.S.-based arglgn apparel firms compete.
No single apparel firm or small group of appareh dominates the apparel industry and our directpetitors vary by operating group &
distribution channel. We believe that the princigainpetitive factors in the apparel industry aeréputation, value and image of brand na
design; consumer preference; price; quality; mamgetind customer service. We believe that ouiitghid compete successfully in styling and
marketing is directly related to our proficiencyfareseeing changes and trends in fashion and oorspreference, and presenting appealing
products for consumers. In some instances, agethiht is our customer may compete directly withby offering certain of its own products in
its retail stores. Additionally, the apparel indyss cyclical and dependent upon the overall I@faliscretionary consumer spending, which
changes as regional, domestic and internationalaui conditions change. Often, negative econominitions have a longer and more
severe impact on the apparel and retail industig these conditions have on other industries.

We believe the global economic conditions and taspukeconomic uncertainty that have prevailed terg years continue to impact
each of our operating groups, and the apparel tndas a whole. Although some signs of economicrowements exist, the apparel retail
environment remains increasingly promotional anmheenic uncertainty remains. We anticipate thatssafeour products may continue to be
impacted negatively as long as the retail appargrenment remains promotional and there is anatll/level of economic uncertainty in the
geographies in which we operate. Additionally, vee@dbeen impacted in recent years by pricing pressan raw materials, transportation,
labor and other costs necessary for the produetighsourcing of apparel products, most of whicheappo be permanent cost increases.

On March 24, 2015, our Board of Directors authatiner management to pursue a sale of the Ben Sharasiness. We have enga
Financo, Ltd. as our financial advisor to assighimtransaction process. We plan to continue &vaip the Ben Sherman business during the
process, and although we expect to complete angtidan Fiscal 2015 no specific timetable has beetrfer consummation of a transaction.
There can be no assurance that a transactionakélplace, and our Board of Directors may congitleer alternatives for the Ben Sherman
business that it believes are in the best interfesthareholders.

Important factors relating to certain risks, mafiyvbich are beyond our ability to control or pregiwhich could impact our business
include, but are not limited to, competition, ecomo factors and others as described in Part |, kdmRisk Factors of this report.

Investments and Opportunities

We believe that our Tommy Bahama® and Lilly Puli@difestyle brands have significant growth oppaiities in their direct to
consumer businesses through expansion of our stta@ operations, as we add additional retaiedtmrations and increase comparable store
sales, and higher sales in ouc@nmerce operations, which are likely to grow &sder rate than comparable brick and mortar retaile sales
We also believe that these lifestyle brands proaid@pportunity for moderate sales increases in Wimlesale businesses in the long-term
primarily from our current customers adding to thediisting door count and the selective additiom@iv wholesale customers who generally
follow a full-price retail model. Additionally, wkelieve that there are opportunities for modesssgrtowth for Lanier Clothes through new
product programs; however, we also believe thatdahered clothing environment will continue to bery challenging.

We believe that we must continue to invest in oomimy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer lifestyle brandsonuler to take advantage of their
long-term growth opportunities. Investments incledpital expenditures primarily related to the clit® consumer operations such as retail
store build-out and remodels, technology enhanc&sraad distribution center and administrative @féxpansion initiatives, as well as
increased employment, advertising and other castey functions to support the ongoing businessaifmns and fuel future net sales growth.
We expect that the investments may continue talpuinward pressure on our operating margins in #z future until we have sufficient sa
to leverage the operating costs.

We continue to believe that it is important to ntain a strong balance sheet and liquidity. We kelitat positive cash flow from
operations in the future coupled with the streraftbur balance sheet and liquidity will providewish sufficient resources to fund future
investments in our lifestyle brands. While we badi¢hat we have significant opportunities
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to appropriately deploy our capital and resouroesur existing lifestyle brands, in the future, may also add additional lifestyle brands to oul
portfolio, if we identify appropriate targets whiateet our investment criteria.

Operating Groups

Our business is primarily operated through our afieg groups: Tommy Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer, Lan@&pthes and Ben Sherman, each
of which is described below. We identify our opgrgtgroups based on the way our management orgathizecomponents of our business for
purposes of allocating resources and assessingrpemice. Our operating group structure reflectsaadifocused management approach,
emphasizing operational coordination and resoutoeation across each brand's direct to consumieo)esale and licensing operations.
Corporate and Other is a reconciling category éporting purposes and includes our corporate affisebstantially all financing activities,
elimination of inter-segment sales, LIFO inventaocounting adjustments, other costs that are tateaed to the operating groups and
operations of our other businesses which are whidied in our four operating groups.

The table below presents net sales and operatiagriation about our operating groups (in thousands)

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Net Sales

Tommy Bahama $ 627,49¢ $ 584,94
Lilly Pulitzer 167,73t 137,94:
Lanier Clothes 112,93: 109,53(
Ben Sherman 77,48: 67,21¢
Corporate and Other 12,157 17,46"
Total $ 997,80t $ 917,09
Operating Income (Loss)

Tommy Bahama $ 71,130 $ 72,20"
Lilly Pulitzer 32,19 25,95
Lanier Clothes 10,84¢ 10,82¢
Ben Sherman (10,837 (13,13)
Corporate and Other (1) (19,736 (11,189
Total operating income $ 83600 $ 84,67

(1) The Fiscal 2014 operating loss for Corporaig @ther included $2.1 million of LIFO accountingacges, with no significant LIFO
accounting impact in Fiscal 2013. Additionally, ¢a62013 included a gain on sale of property o6$iillion with no such gain in
Fiscal 2014.

The table below presents the total assets of efachr@perating groups (in thousands).

January 31, February 1,

2015 2014

Assets

Tommy Bahama $ 428,83 $ 408,59¢
Lilly Pulitzer 108,96 101,70«
Lanier Clothes 35,15: 39,98¢
Ben Sherman 78,56¢ 79,29¢
Corporate and Other (6,457) (2,286
Total $ 645,06° $ 627,30!

Total assets for Corporate and Other include a Li€s@rve of $58.6 million and $56.7 million as ahdary 31, 2015 and February 1,
2014 , respectively. For more details on each ofoperating groups, see Note 2 of our consolidfiteshcial statements and Part Il, Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanataddtion and Results of Operations, both includethis report. For financial information
by geographic areas, see Note 2 of our consolidatadcial statements, included in this report.






Tommy Bahama

Tommy Bahama designs, sources, markets and disilmoen’'s and women's sportswear and related pgsodune target consumers of
Tommy Bahama are primarily affluent men and womgs 25 and older who embrace a relaxed and caspadagh to daily living. Tommy
Bahama products can be found in our Tommy Bahaarastind on our Tommy Bahama e-commerce websitenydnahama.com, as well as
in better department stores and independent spestates throughout the United States. We alsoadpd ommy Bahama restaurants and
license the Tommy Bahama name for various prodatetgories. During Fiscal 2014 , 95% of Tommy Baharsales were to customers within
the United States, with 3% of Tommy Bahama's sal€anada and the remaining sales being in Auateald Asia.

We believe that the attraction of the Tommy Bah#nzand to our consumers is a reflection of our éffower many years of maintaining
appropriate quality and design of our Tommy Bahamygarel, accessories and licensed products, lignitia distribution of Tommy Bahama
products to a select tier of retailers and effedyivommunicating the relaxed and casual Tommy Behlifestyle to consumers. We expect to
continue to follow this approach for the brandtie future. We believe that the retail sales valuglorommy Bahama branded products sold
during Fiscal 2014 , including our estimate of tetales by our wholesale customers and other {rartly retailers, exceeded $1.1 billion.

We believe there is ample opportunity to expand#aeh of the Tommy Bahama brand, while at the samemaintaining the select
distribution that Tommy Bahama has historically mained. We believe that in order to take advantdggportunities for long-term growth,
we must continue to invest in the Tommy Bahamadbtzoth domestically and internationally. These streents include amounts associated
with capital expenditures and pre-opening expenesw stores and restaurants; the remodelingisfieg stores and restaurants; capital
expenditures and ongoing expenses to enhance e-@aamnd other technology capabilities; and capkpenditures related to sales,
administration and distribution facilities.

While we believe there are abundant opportunittesdntinued growth in the United States, in regears we have begun expansion of
the Tommy Bahama brand into international marketese efforts have included the acquisition ofabsets and operations of the Tommy
Bahama business from our former licensees in AlistraFiscal 2012 and Canada in Fiscal 2013. Terations of these licensees in each of
these countries had developed a certain levelafdawareness, but we determined that after cansidihe potential direct to consumer and
wholesale growth opportunities, it was approprfateus to re-acquire the rights to these operations

We also commenced operations in Asia by openirgjlgtbre locations in Hong Kong, Macau, SingagorEiscal 2012 and Japan
beginning in Fiscal 2013. The operations in Asisstfar have generated operating losses as we @eeeosignificant Hong Kong-based team
and infrastructure to support a larger Asia raspération. The roll-out of retail stores in AsishmBeen at a modest pace as we have attemptec
focus on improving store operations in Asia prmehgaging in a significant roll-out of additiorsabres. As a lifestyle brand which desires to
remain primarily a full-price brand, we continueltelieve it is appropriate that in certain key nesskwe initially set the tone for the brand
rather than engaging a partner. However, in theréytin certain markets we may engage a local patthaccelerate growth.

At this time, we anticipate our near term focushia Asia-Pacific region will be on our direct tonstimer operations in Australia and
Japan while at the same time reducing our infraiire costs in Hong Kong to better align with ourrent Asia retail operations. By focusing
on a limited number of international markets anméasing the store count in those locations, wewelwe can do a better job of increasing
brand awareness and sales by focusing our markstiexgd in a location where the consumer has atyarf@ptions for purchasing Tommy
Bahama product, including our own retail stores,whiolesale customers' stores and an in-countrymyp®ahama website, which in the case
of Japan launched in early Fiscal 2015. While wieete there are significant long-term opportunitiesour Tommy Bahama operations in the
Asia-Pacific region, we believe that the operating lesmed capital expenditures associated with thesetipns will continue to put downwe
pressure on our operating margin in the near futaté we have sufficient sales to leverage therafieg costs.

Design, Sourcing, Marketing and Distribution

Tommy Bahama products are designed by productfgpezams who focus on the target consumer. Thigdgsocess includes feedbe
from buyers, consumers and sales agents, alongweathket trend research. Our Tommy Bahama appavdupts generally incorporate fabrics
made of cotton, silk, linen, nylon, leather, teraedl other natural and man-made fibers, or blehtismor more of these materials.

We operate a buying office located in Hong Kongnenage the production and sourcing of the subatangjority of our Tommy
Bahama products. During Fiscal 2014 , we utilizegraximately 240 suppliers, which are primarilydted in China, to manufacture our
Tommy Bahama products. In Fiscal 2014 , 80% of TerBahama's product purchases were from manufasturéthina. The largest
10 suppliers of Tommy Bahama products provided 46%e products acquired during Fiscal 2014 .




We believe that advertising and marketing are tegnal part of the long-term strategy of the TomBahama brand, and we therefore
devote significant resources to advertising ancketarg. While the advertising for Tommy Bahama pod@s our products, the primary
emphasis is on brand image and brand lifestyleintémd that Tommy Bahama's advertising will engagéviduals within the brand's
consumer demographic and guide them on a regusés traour retail stores, e-commerce websites aiegale customers' stores in search of
our products. The marketing of the Tommy Bahamadbiacludes traditional media such as print, casland other correspondence with
customers, as well as moving media and trade shibatives. However, an increasing amount of TomBaama's marketing focus involves
email, Internet and social media advertising. Aifeatyle brand, we believe that it is very impartéghat Tommy Bahama communicate
regularly with consumers via the use of email, imé¢ and social media about product offerings beobrand events in order to maintain and
strengthen Tommy Bahama's connections with itswoess.

We also believe that highly visible retail storedtions with creative design, broad merchandisectieh and brand appropriate visual
presentation are key enticements for customergstbour retail stores and buy merchandise. Wenishtthat our retail stores enhance the
shopping experience of our customers, which weehelwill increase consumer brand loyalty. Markeiimgatives at certain of our retail sto
may include special event promotions and a vaoéfyublic relations activities designed to createi@ness of our stores and products. At
certain times during the year, two integral compas®f the marketing plan for Tommy Bahama inclotling loyalty gift cards to some of
our loyal consumers for use in our stores durisgexified time period and our "flip-side" eventserdby if certain spending thresholds are
achieved by the consumer in one transaction dwigsgecified time period, the consumer earns aagifl to be used in our retail stores or on-
line at a future date. We believe that our retaitesoperations as well as our traditional andted@ic media communications increase the sale
of our own retail stores and e-commerce operatassyell as the sales of our products for our wéalkecustomers.

For certain of our wholesale customers, we als@igeopoint-of-sale materials and signage to enhémeg@resentation of our branded
products at their retail locations and/or partitépia cooperative advertising programs.

We operate a Tommy Bahama distribution center ibhukn, Washington, which serves our North Americaaal to consumer and
wholesale operations. Activities at the distribatazenter include receiving finished goods from digpp, inspecting the products and shipping
the products to our Tommy Bahama stores, our whidezistomers and our e-commerce customers. Weaeakintain sufficient levels of
Tommy Bahama inventory at the distribution cenbesupport our direct to consumer operations, akaggbre-booked orders and some limitec
replenishment ordering for our wholesale customfes.utilize local third party distribution centdos our Asia-Pacific operations.

Direct to Consumer Operations

A key component of our Tommy Bahama growth straisdg operate our own stores and e-commerce veglvgitich we believe permits
us to develop and build brand awareness by pregpatir products in a setting specifically desigteedhowcase the aspirational lifestyle on
which the products are based. Our Tommy Bahamatdweconsumer channels, which consist of retaileste-commerce and restaurant
operations, in the aggregate, represented 74%milyoBahama's net sales in Fiscal 2014 . We expeqgbércentage of our Tommy Bahama
sales which are direct to consumer sales will iaseeslightly in future years as we anticipate thatdirect to consumer distribution channel
grow at a faster pace than the wholesale distobuthannel. Retail store, e-commerce and restanedrdales accounted for 50% , 14% and
10% , respectively, of Tommy Bahama's net saléssoal 2014 .

For Tommy Bahama's domestic full-price retail staaiad restaurant-retail locations operating forftitid-iscal 2014 year, sales per grc
square foot, excluding restaurant sales and resthapace, were approximately $680 during Fiscaft2@ompared to $695 for stores opera
for the full Fiscal 2013 year, with the decreagmaprily reflecting Fiscal 2013 store openings Imayva lower sales per square foot than the
overall average, partially offset by slightly faabte domestic comparable store sales on storeedpmior to Fiscal 2013. For international
full-price retail stores and restaurant-retail kimas located in Canada, Australia and Asia opegdidr the full Fiscal 2014 year, sales per gros
square foot, excluding restaurant sales and resthapace, were approximately $390 during Fisca#i20rhese per square foot sales amounts
exclude the sales and square feet of our outleestin Fiscal 2014 , our domestic outlet storabiaternational outlet stores generated
approximately $375 and $320, respectively, of sprssquare foot for outlets open for the entiré£fiscal year. For relocated stores or
outlets, for which the square feet changed dutiegyear, if any, we included, for the purposesefdalculation above, the square feet of the
relocated store based on the weighted average remictisquare feet for the relocated store. Durisgdti2014 , 65% and 30% of our full-price
retail store sales were sales of Tommy Bahama mencdkict and women's product, respectively withrémainder of the full-price retail store
sales being home products and other accessories.

Our direct to consumer strategy for the Tommy Bahénmand includes locating and operating full-priegil stores in upscale malls,
lifestyle shopping centers, resort destinationstanatid appropriate street locations. Generallys@ak malls and shopping areas with high-
profile or luxury consumer brands for our full-pricetail stores. As of January 31, 2015 , approteina0% of our full-price Tommy Bahama
retail locations are in regional malls, with thenander primarily being






stores in street-front locations or lifestyle cest@®©ur full-price retail stores allow us the oppaity to carry a full line of current season
merchandise, including apparel, home products andssories, all presented in an aspirational,dsiagpired atmosphere designed to be
relaxed, comfortable and unique. We believe thafftbmmy Bahama retail stores provide high visipiidr the brand and products, and allow
us to stay close to the preferences of our consuurferther, we believe that our presentation oflpets and our strategy to operate the retail
stores as full-price stores with limited in-storemotional activities are good for the Tommy Bahaend and, in turn, enhance business witl
our wholesale customers. Generally, we believesthez opportunities for retail stores in warmer eolder climates, as we believe the more
important consideration is whether the locatioraats the affluent consumer that we are targefingther, as recent new store openings have
enhanced e-commerce sales within the local geograpda, we believe that there are ample opporéstior additional Tommy Bahama retail
store locations.

Our Tommy Bahama outlet stores, which generated dfléar total Tommy Bahama net sales in Fiscal 204 generally located in
outlet shopping centers that include upscale erta#énd serve an important role in overall inventoanagement by allowing us to sell
discontinued and out-of-season products at betiteegpthan are otherwise available from outsidéiggrWe believe that this approach helps u
protect the integrity of the Tommy Bahama brandlbgwing our full-price retail stores to limit prastional activity and controlling the
distribution of discontinued and out-of-season pidTo supplement the clearance items sold in TpBahama outlets, approximately 20%
of the product sold in our Tommy Bahama outlets masle specifically for our outlets. At this timedamased on our anticipated proportion of
clearance versus made for items in our outlet stave anticipate that we would generally operat autlet for approximately every three full-
price stores.

As of January 31, 2015 we operated 15 restaurgatgrally adjacent to a Tommy Bahama full-pricaitetore location, which together
we often refer to as islands. These restaurani-tetations provide us with the opportunity to irarse customers in the ultimate Tommy
Bahama experience. We do not anticipate that nfamtroretail locations will have an adjacent ressant; however, in select high-profile, brand
appropriate locations, such as Naples and Jupitetida, and New York City, as well as the Waikikiawaii location scheduled to open in
Fiscal 2015, we have determined that an adjacstdueant can further enhance the image of the biameinet sales per square foot in our
domestic full-price retail stores which are adjadera restaurant are on average two times the salesquare foot of our domestic full-price
retail stores not adjacent to a restaurant. Webelihat the experience of a meal or drink in a igrBahama restaurant may entice the
customer to purchase additional Tommy Bahama madita and potentially provide a memorable conswewperience that further enhances
the relationship between Tommy Bahama and the coesu

As of January 31, 2015, the total square feepats utilized for our Tommy Bahama fupllice retail store and outlet store operations
0.6 million with another 0.1 million of total squefeet utilized in our Tommy Bahama restaurant afp@ns. The table below provides certain
information regarding Tommy Bahama retail storesrafed by us as of January 31, 2015 .

Full-Price Restaurant-Retail
Retail Stores Outlet Stores Locations Total

Florida 20 4 5 29
California 15 5 3 23
Texas 5 4 1 10
Hawaii 4 1 2 7
Nevada 3 1 1 5
Maryland 3 2 — 5
Other states 34 18 2 54
Total domestic 84 35 14 13¢
Canada 6 3 — 9
Total North America 90 38 14 142
Australia 7 1 — 8
Japan 1 1 1 3
Other international 3 1 — 4
Total 101 41 15 157
Average square feet per store(1) 3,50( 4,60( 11,30¢(

Total square feet at year end 350,00 190,00( 170,00(




(1) Average square feet for restaurant-retailtioos include average retail space and restaupautesof 4,000 and 7,300 square feet,
respectively.

The table below reflects the changes in store cfarrifommy Bahama stores during Fiscal 2014 .

Full-Price Restaurant-Retail
Retail Stores Outlet Stores Locations Total
Open as of beginning of fiscal year 91 36 14 141
Opened during fiscal year 10 5 1 1€
Open as of end of fiscal year 101 41 15 157

During Fiscal 2014 , the average total gross sqftate calculated as the average of the total gggsare feet at the beginning and end o
each quarter during the year, of full-price resaidice, including the retail portion of our TommyhBma restaurant-retail locations, used in our
domestic and international retail operations fomhwy Bahama was approximately 385,000 square fdgle the average total gross square
of space used in our domestic and internationalfmgrBahama outlet operations was approximately Dibdgjuare feet. In Fiscal 2015 and
beyond, we currently expect to open approximatigiiteo 10 domestic retail locations per year. Tiggority of these locations in Fiscal 2015
are expected to be full-price stores along with @staurant-retail location in Waikiki, Hawaii. Aididnally, we expect to open two or three
international stores in Fiscal 2015 .

The operation of full-price retail stores, outliires and restaurant-retail locations requireseatgr amount of initial capital investment
than wholesale operations, as well as greater aggaperating costs. We estimate that we will spggmtoximately $1.0 million and
$0.5 million on average in connection with the Btolut of a domestic full-price retail store and d@stic outlet store, respectively. However,
individual locations, particularly those in urbamétions, may require investments greater tharetagsunts depending on a variety of factors
including the location and size of the store. Régewe have opened certain stores using a smialgprint of approximately 2,500 square feet
in select locations, which allows us to minimize ttost of the store build-out on these stores.

The cost of a restaurant-retail location is siguaifitly more than the cost of a retail store andvaay significantly depending on a variety
of factors. Historically, the cost of our restaureagtail locations has been approximately $5 miljibowever, we have spent significantly more
than that amount for certain locations. For the kikaiHawaii restaurant-retail location which wepect to open in late Fiscal 2015 , we
anticipate a cost of approximately $12 million. &I¢he international retail store and outlet stomations that we open in the future may be
more expensive than our domestic retail storesritipg on the location and size of the store as agethe impact of foreign currency excha
rates and other factors. For most of our storeslahdlord provides certain incentives to fund gipo of our capital expenditures.

We also incur capital expenditures when a leaseexpnd we determine it is appropriate to reloeaséore to a new location in the same
vicinity as the previous store. The cost of st@lecations is generally comparable to the costpehing a new full-price retail store or outlet
store. Additionally, we also incur capital expendi costs related to periodic remodels of exissitoges, particularly when we renew or extend
a lease beyond the original lease term, or otherdiétermine that a remodel of a store is apprapris we reach the expirations of more of
lease agreements in the near future, we anticthatghe capital expenditures for relocations amdadels, in the aggregate, may increase in
future periods.

In addition to our full-price retail stores and letistores, our direct to consumer approach incu@eious e-commerce websites,
including the tommybahama.com website and the tobaigma.jp website, which launched in February 2D1fing Fiscal 2014 , e-
commerce sales represented 14% of Tommy Bahamaales. Our Tommy Bahama websites allow consutodyay Tommy Bahama
products directly from us via the Internet. Thesbsites also enable us to increase our datab@smsfimer contacts, which allows us to
communicate directly and frequently with consentiogsumers. As we reach more customers in theefuive anticipate that our e-commerce
distribution channel for Tommy Bahama will continioegrow at a faster pace than our domestic rstaik operations or wholesale operations
Also, we expect to continue to have a select nurabercommerce flash clearance sales, which repted®% of Tommy Bahamaammerci
sales in Fiscal 2014 , using our outlettommybaheoma.website as a means of complementing our outlidiguidating discontinued or out-of-
season inventory, in a brand appropriate manner.

Wholesale Operations

To complement our direct to consumer operationsheave access to a larger group of consumers, imgjutdose who may wish to shop
at specialty stores or department stores, we asatio maintain our wholesale operations for Tommah&na through better department stores
and specialty stores that generally follow a fuikp retail model approach with
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limited discounting. We value our lorgjanding relationships with our wholesale custoraesare committed to working with them to enhe
the success of the Tommy Bahama brand within gteies. We believe that the integrity and continsigetess of the Tommy Bahama brand,
including its direct to consumer operations, iseteent, in part, upon the continued controlled whale distribution with careful selection of
the retailers through which Tommy Bahama produtssald. As a result of this approach to limiting holesale customers, we believe that
sales growth in our men's apparel wholesale busingsich represented approximately 81% of TommydBadis wholesale sales in Fiscal
2014, may be somewhat limited domestically. Howewer believe that we have significant opportunif@swholesale sales increases for our
Tommy Bahama women's business, which represenf@dxmately 16% of Tommy Bahama's wholesale saidsscal 2014, and our Tommy
Bahama footwear business. Overall, we expect tleaTommy Bahama wholesale business will grow &baes rate than the direct to
consumer distribution channel.

Wholesale sales for Tommy Bahama accounted for @¥%mmy Bahama's net sales in Fiscal 2014 . DuFisgal 2014 , 15% of
Tommy Bahama's net sales were to Tommy Bahama&'ddigest wholesale customers, with its largestocnisr representing 6% of Tommy
Bahama's net sales. Approximately half of Tommydah's wholesale business reflects sales to it¢éangest customers, in the aggregate,
the remaining wholesale sales being sales to diggartment and specialty stores. Tommy Bahama ptedwe available in more than 2,000
retail locations.

We maintain Tommy Bahama apparel sales officessandirooms in New York and Seattle, as well as diteations, to facilitate sales
to our wholesale customers. Our Tommy Bahama whidesperations utilize a sales force predominattlysisting of independent
commissioned sales representatives.

Licensing Operations

We believe licensing is an attractive business dppdy for the Tommy Bahama brand. For an establiklifestyle brand, licensing
typically requires modest additional investment ¢an yield high-margin income. It also affords tpgortunity to enhance overall brand
awareness and exposure. In evaluating a licens@mfomy Bahama, we typically consider the candidagperience, financial stability,
sourcing expertise and marketing ability. We alsal@ate the marketability and compatibility of fh@posed licensed products with other
Tommy Bahama products.

Our agreements with Tommy Bahama licensees argpfmific geographic areas and expire at varioussdatthe future, and in limited
cases include contingent renewal options. Genettaidyagreements require minimum royalty paymesitsell as additional royalty payments
and, in some cases, advertising payments and/wyadioihs to expend certain funds towards marketiegbrand on an approved basis
calculated as specified percentages of the licénsegsales of the licensed products. Our licegseements generally provide us the right to
approve all products, advertising and proposed rotlarof distribution.

Third party license arrangements for our Tommy Ba&aroducts include the following product categarie

Men's and women's watches Ceiling fans Indoor furniture

Men's and women's headwear Rugs Outdoor furnémderelated products
Men's socks Fabrics Bedding and bath linens

Mattresses Belts, leather goods and gifts Talpeatcessories

Sleepwear Luggage Suncare products

Shampoo, soap and bath amenities Fragrances

In addition to our licenses for the specific prodeategories listed above, we may enter into aeitdernational license agreements
which allow those licensees to distribute certaamimy Bahama branded products within certain coeswoi regions. As of January 31, 2015,
we have one such agreement for the Middle Eastt8ntially all of the products sold by the licensee identical to the products sold in our
own Tommy Bahama stores. In addition to selling fgnBahama goods to wholesale accounts, the licensemtes four retail stores.

Seasonal Aspects of Business

Tommy Bahama's operating results are impacted &yosmlity as the demand by specific product oesgs well as by distribution
channel, may vary significantly depending on tineetiof year. The following table presents the pesamgpm of net sales and operating income fo
Tommy Bahama by quarter for Fiscal 2014 :
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First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales 25% 25% 20 % 30%
Operating income 28% 31% — % 41%

As the timing of certain unusual or non-recurritegnis, economic conditions, wholesale product shigser other factors affecting the
business may vary from one year to the next, wealdelieve that net sales or operating incomefyr particular quarter or the distribution of
net sales and operating income for Fiscal 2014 eacessarily indicative of anticipated results for full fiscal year or expected distribution in
future years.

The timing of Tommy Bahama's sales in the directaiosumer and wholesale distribution channels gélgararies. Typically, the
demand in the direct to consumer operations, inctudales at our own stores and e-commerce sitddimmy Bahama products in our
principal markets is generally higher in the sprisgmmer and holiday seasons and lower in theséason. However, wholesale product
shipments are generally shipped prior to eachefé¢fail selling seasons. As the allocation ofsalighin a quarter is impacted by the
seasonality of direct to consumer and wholesakssale have presented in the following table tlip@rtion of net sales for each quarter
represented by each distribution channel for Fig0aK , which may not necessarily be indicativéhefallocation of sales within any particular
quarter in future periods:

First Second Third Fourth Full

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Full price retail stores and outlets 4€6% 54% 47% 51% 50%
E-commerce 11% 15% 11% 19% 14%
Restaurant 12% 1C% 10% 9% 10%
Wholesale 31% 21% 32% 21% 26%
Total 10C% 10C% 10C% 100% 10C%

Lilly Pulitzer

Lilly Pulitzer designs, sources, markets and distieés upscale collections of women's and girl'sss, sportswear and related products.
The Lilly Pulitzer brand was originally createdtire late 1950's by Lilly Pulitzer and is an afflubrand with a heritage and aesthetic based o
the Palm Beach resort lifestyle. The brand is sonagwnique among women's brands in that it has detraied multi-generational appeal,
including young women in college or recently gragdarom college; young mothers with their daugéitand women who are not tied to the
academic calendar. Lilly Pulitzer products candaenfl in our owned Lilly Pulitzer stores, in LiluRtzer Signature Stores, which are descr
below, and on our Lilly Pulitzer website, lillyptder.com, as well as in better department and iedlégnt specialty stores. During Fiscal 2014
42% and 38% of Lilly Pulitzer's net sales werevimmen's sportswear and dresses, respectively thethemaining sales consisting of Lilly
Pulitzer accessories, including scarves, bags,ljgwad belts; children's apparel; footwear; agétised products. We also license the Lilly
Pulitzer name for various product categories.

We acquired the Lilly Pulitzer brand on DecemberZ110 and anticipate growth in the brand's reéadpmmerce, wholesale and
licensing operations in the future. We believe thate is significant opportunity to expand thecteaf the Lilly Pulitzer brand, while at the
same time maintaining the exclusive distributioat thilly Pulitzer has historically maintained. Weligve that in order to take advantage of
opportunities for long-term growth, we must conértoa invest in the Lilly Pulitzer brand. These istraents include amounts associated with
the opening of new stores, costs to enhance e-coreraad other technology capabilities, an exparaiwhother enhancements of Lilly
Pulitzer's facilities in King of Prussia, Pennsylimand an increase in employment costs to contimgepport a growing business. While we
believe that these investments will generate l@rgytbenefits, the investments may have a shorttegative impact on Lilly Pulitzer's
operating margin.

We believe the attraction of the Lilly Pulitzer hdhto our consumers is a reflection of years ofrtaéming appropriate quality and design
of the Lilly Pulitzer apparel, accessories andried products, restricting the distribution of Lthiley Pulitzer products to a select tier of retad
and effectively communicating the message of lsliyptimistic Palm Beach resort chic lifestyle. Wididwve this approach to quality, design,
distribution and communication has been criticaliowing us to achieve the current retail pricéngofor Lilly Pulitzer products. We believe
that the retail sales value of all Lilly Pulitzerabded products sold during Fiscal 2014 , includingestimate of retail sales by our wholesale
customers and other third party retailers, exce&22% million.

Design, Sourcing, Marketing and Distribution

Lilly Pulitzer's products are developed by our datkd design teams primarily located at the Lillyit2er headquarters in King of



Prussia, Pennsylvania. Our Lilly Pulitzer desigantis focus on the target consumer, and the desigress
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combines feedback from buyers, consumers and tes &ace, along with market trend research. LHlylitzer apparel products are designe
incorporate various fiber types, including cottsitk, linen and other natural and man-made fiberglends of two or more of these materials.

Lilly Pulitzer utilizes a combination of in-housenployees in our King of Prussia and Hong Kong effiand third party buying agents
primarily based in Asia to manage the productiod swurcing of the Lilly Pulitzer apparel producksrough its buying agents and direct
sourcing, Lilly Pulitzer used approximately 45 sligns, with the largest 10 suppliers providing 68%the Lilly Pulitzer products acquired
during Fiscal 2014 . In Fiscal 2014 , 66% of Liulitzer's product purchases were from manufacduosated in China.

We believe that advertising and marketing are gagnal part of the longerm strategy of the Lilly Pulitzer brand, and werefore devot
significant resources to advertising and marketiftg.intend that Lilly Pulitzer's advertising withgage individuals within the brand's
consumer demographic and guide them on a regusés taour retail stores, e-commerce websites dralesale customers' stores in search o
our products. The marketing of the Lilly Pulitzeabd includes traditional media such as print,log&and other correspondence with
customers, as well as moving media and trade shibatives. However, an increasing amount of LRylitzer's marketing focus involves
email, Internet and social media advertising. Welie that it is very important that a lifestyleabd effectively communicate with consumers
on a regular basis via the use of email, Interndtsocial media about product offerings or oth@nbrevents in order to maintain and
strengthen the brands' connections with consumers.

In addition to our ongoing Lilly Pulitzer marketirgjtiatives, we are also excited about a spedifie-time marketing program for Fiscal
2015. This initiative is a single delivery desiglaboration with the Target Corporation wherey Bulitzer provided certain designs and
prints to Target, and Target used those prints aollaction of 250 pieces spanning apparel, aceeEssand shoes for women and girls, as well
as home accents, outdoor entertaining accessbeash gear and travel essentials. This singleagliprogram launches in April in all
domestic Target locations and on the Target webBégget will highlight the collaboration in its mketing materials in connection with the
launch. This marketing program will provide a sfgraint amount of national exposure for the Lillyliaer brand. We believe that this
marketing exposure will introduce the Lilly Pulitzerand to new potential consumers both on the Eaast where the brand has a very strong
brand recognition and also west of the Mississiiger, where Lilly Pulitzer generated approximat#8f6 of its Fiscal 2014 sales. From a
financial perspective, we do not expect a signifidenpact on our Fiscal 2015 operating results aswill not recognize any product sales or
have inventory exposure related to the program;avew we believe that in the long-term, the colfalion will enhance the awareness of the
Lilly Pulitzer brand.

We believe that highly visible retail store locatsowith creative design, broad merchandise seleatnal brand appropriate visual
presentation are key enticements for customergstbour retail stores and buy merchandise. Wenihtthat our retail stores enhance the
shopping experience of our customers, which weehelwill increase consumer brand loyalty. Markeiimgatives at certain of our retail sto
may include special event promotions and a vaoéfyublic relations activities designed to createi@ness of our stores and products. At
certain times during the year, an integral pathefmarketing plan for Lilly Pulitzer includes cart gift with purchase programs where the
consumer earns the right to a Lilly Pulitzer gifog@uct if certain spending thresholds are achidmethe consumer. We believe that our retalil
store operations as well as our traditional andtedaic media communications increase the salesiobwn retail stores and e-commerce
operations, as well as the sales of our productsdfowholesale customers.

For certain of our wholesale customers, we als@igeopoint-of-sale materials and signage to enhéme@resentation of our branded
products at their retail locations and/or partit@pia cooperative advertising programs.

Lilly Pulitzer operates a distribution center inngiof Prussia, Pennsylvania for its operationsivitas at the distribution center include
receiving finished goods from suppliers, inspectimg products and shipping the products to whodesastomers, Lilly Pulitzer full-price retail
stores and our e-commerce customers. We seek taaimasufficient levels of inventory at the distrtton center to support our direct to
consumer operations, as well as pre-booked oraets@me limited replenishment ordering for our vaisale customers.

Direct to Consumer Operations

A key component of our Lilly Pulitzer growth strgteis to operate our own stores and e-commerceitealihich we believe permits us
to develop and build brand awareness by preseptimgucts in a setting specifically designed to stewe the aspirational lifestyle on which
they are based. The distribution channels includedlly Pulitzer's direct to consumer strategy st of full-price retail store and e-commerce
operations and represented 62% of Lilly Pulitzeessales in Fiscal 2014 , compared to 57% in F&@H3 . We expect the percentage of our
Lilly Pulitzer sales which are direct to consumales will increase in future years as we anticipla&e the full-price retail and e-commerce
components of the Lilly Pulitzer business will dome to grow at a faster rate than the wholesagildution channel.
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Our direct to consumer strategy for the Lilly Pzgit brand includes operating full-price retail s®m higherend malls, lifestyle shoppil
centers, resort destinations and brand-approgsieget locations. As of January 31, 2015, 14 olfli¢ Pulitzer stores were located in indoor
regional malls and eight of the Lilly Pulitzer sterwere located in outdoor regional lifestyle centeith the remaining locations being street
locations. Each retail store carries a wide rarfgaerchandise, including apparel, footwear and s&mees, all presented in a manner intendec
to enhance the Lilly Pulitzer image, brand awarsrzesl acceptance. Our Lilly Pulitzer retail staaksw us to present Lilly Pulitzer's full line
of current season products. We believe our LilllitPer retail stores provide high visibility forétbrand and products and also enable us tc
close to the needs and preferences of consumess, ke believe that our presentation of productsaur strategy to operate the retail store
full-price stores with limited promotional active8 complement our business with our wholesale mest Generally, we believe there are
opportunities for retail stores in warmer and coldlanates, as we believe the more important cansitbn is whether the location attracts the
affluent consumer that we are targeting.

Lilly Pulitzer's retail store sales per gross sguant for Fiscal 2014 were approximately $730tfar 23 retail stores which were open the
full Fiscal 2014 year compared to approximatel4%6or the 19 Lilly Pulitzer stores open for thdl feiscal 2013 year. For relocated stores, if
any, for which the square feet changed during #&r,ywe included, for the purposes of the caloutasibove, the square feet of the relocated
store based on the weighted average month-endestpegrfor the relocated store. The increase esgaér gross square foot from the prior yea
was primarily due to higher comparable store sialesores open prior to Fiscal 2013 as well asdkierable impact of the inclusion of the
stores opened in Fiscal 2013 in the Fiscal 201¢utation.

The table below provides certain information regagd.illy Pulitzer retail stores as of January 2015 .

Number of
Full-Price
Retail Stores
Florida 9
New York 3
Maryland 2
North Carolina 2
Ohio 2
Pennsylvania 2
Texas 2
Other 6
Total 28
Average square feet per store 2,80(
Total square feet at year-end 79,00(
The table below reflects the changes in store cfauritilly Pulitzer stores during Fiscal 2014 .
Full-Price
Retail Stores
Open as of beginning of fiscal year 23
Opened during fiscal year 5
Open as of end of fiscal year 28

During Fiscal 2014 , the average total gross sqftate calculated as the average of the total gggsare feet at the beginning and end o
each quarter during the year, of retail space \wasoximately 75,000 square feet. In Fiscal 201% ewpect to open six retail stores, and we
expect to maintain a pace of four to six storesar wafter Fiscal 2015. Although the timing of dlboir store openings have not been finalized,
we anticipate opening full-price retail store laoas in Kiawah Island, South Carolina; Nashvillenhessee; Chicago, Illinois; and Orlando,
Coral Gables and Coconut Point, Florida in Fis€dl®. All but one of these stores is expected &nap the first half of the year.

The operation of full-price retail stores requigegreater amount of initial capital investment thdmlesale operations, as well as greatel
ongoing operating costs. We anticipate that mdsiréufull-price retail store openings will geneyatle 2,500 square feet on average; however
many stores will be larger or smaller than 2,500esq feet with the determination of size of theesttepending on a variety of criteria. To o
a 2,500 square foot Lilly Pulitzer full-price rdtaiore, we anticipate

14






capital expenditures of approximately $0.7 millmmaverage. For most of our retail stores, theltaddprovides certain incentives to fund a
portion of our capital expenditures.

In addition to new store openings, we also incpitahexpenditure costs related to remodels oftmgsstores, particularly when we
renew or extend a lease beyond the original lezrse, or otherwise determine that a remodel of eestappropriate. We may also incur caj
expenditures if a lease expires, or otherwise vemdetermine it is appropriate to relocate a stmi@new location in the same vicinity as the
previous store. The cost of store relocationsnyf, avill generally be comparable to the cost ofripg a new store.

In addition to operating Lilly Pulitzer full-pricestail stores, another key element of our directciesumer strategy is the lillypulitzer.com
website, which represented 28% of Lilly Pulitzer sales in Fiscal 2014 compared to 25% in Fia@aB . The Lilly Pulitzer e-commerce
business has experienced significant growth inmegears and we anticipate that the rate of gravithhe e-commerce business will remain
strong in the future.

We also utilize the Lilly Pulitzer website as afeefive means of liquidating discontinued or outsekson inventory, which is an ongo
part of any apparel business, in a brand apprapnignner. Usually, we have two e-commerce flashratee sales per year, both of which are
in typical industry end of season promotional pa@siolhese sales are brand appropriate eventsré@éea@ significant amount of excitement
with loyal Lilly Pulitzer consumers, who are loogifor an opportunity to purchase Lilly Pulitzer grmts at a discounted price. Each of these
two e-commerce flash clearance sales are for alweited number of days, allowing the Lilly Pulitzezebsite to essentially remain full-price
for the remainder of the year. During Fiscal 2Cdgproximately 36% of Lilly Pulitzer's e-commercéesavere e-commerce flash clearance
sales.

Wholesale Operations

To complement our direct to consumer operationsheave access to a larger group of consumers, imgjutdose who may wish to shop
at a specialty store or department store, we coatio maintain our wholesale operations for Lillli2er through better department stores anc
specialty stores that generally follow a full-priegail model approach with limited discountingtb®dugh we do not expect that the Lilly
Pulitzer wholesale business will grow at the sameems the direct to consumer distribution chanmelyalue our long-standing relationships
with our wholesale customers and are committeddrking with them to enhance the success of thg Billitzer brand within their stores. We
believe that the integrity and continued succegbeL.illy Pulitzer brand, including its direct tmnsumer operations, is dependent, in part,
upon controlled wholesale distribution with carefalection of the retailers through which Lilly Rzgr products are sold. During Fiscal 2014 ,
38% of Lilly Pulitzer's net sales were sales to lebale customers, with Lilly Pulitzer products dakie in more than 600 retail locations.

During Fiscal 2014 , almost half of Lilly Pulitzemvholesale sales were to certain wholesale customaich we refer to as Lilly Pulitzer
Signature Stores. For these stores, we enter greements whereby we grant the other party the tigindependently operate one or more
stores as a Lilly Pulitzer Signature Store, suljectertain conditions, including designating sahslly all the store specifically for Lilly
Pulitzer products and adhering to certain traderadge requirements. These agreements are gerferalyne- or two-year period. We sell
products to these Lilly Pulitzer Signature Storasaavholesale basis and do not receive royaltymecassociated with these sales. As of
January 31, 2015, there were 71 Lilly Pulitzem@aigire Stores.

The remaining wholesale sales were to better deyeattstores and specialty stores. Lilly Pulitzegssales to its five largest wholesale
customers represented 16% of Lilly Pulitzer's iadgsin Fiscal 2014 with its largest customer repnéing 6% of Lilly Pulitzer's net sales.

We maintain Lilly Pulitzer apparel sales officeslahowrooms in both King of Prussia, Pennsylvanihldew York City. Our wholesale
operations for Lilly Pulitzer utilize a sales forcensisting of salaried sales employees.

Licensing Operations

We license the Lilly Pulitzer trademark to licensé® categories beyond Lilly Pulitzer's core prddiategories. In the long-term, we
believe licensing may be an attractive businessppity for the Lilly Pulitzer brand, particulariynce our direct to consumer presence has
expanded. Once a brand is established, licensmgress modest additional investment but can yightmargin income. It also affords the
opportunity to enhance overall brand awarenessapdsure. In evaluating a potential Lilly Pulitieensee, we consider the candidate's
experience, financial stability, manufacturing peniance and marketing ability. We also evaluatentheketability and compatibility of the
proposed products with other Lilly Pulitzer brarrdghucts.

Our agreements with Lilly Pulitzer licensees anesjoecific geographic areas and expire at variatsgin the future. Generally, the
agreements require minimum royalty payments as agetbyalty and advertising payments based on fsgeci
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percentages of the licensee's net sales of theskckproducts. Our license agreements generalyderais the right to approve all products,
advertising and proposed channels of distribution.

Third party license arrangements for Lilly Pulitpeoducts include the following product categortesdding and home fashions; home
furnishing fabrics; stationery and gift productsgayewear.

Seasonal Aspects of Business

Lilly Pulitzer's operating results are impactedsmasonality as the demand by specific productyte as well as demand by distribution
channel may vary significantly depending on thectiof year. The following table presents the pemgaiof net sales and operating income fol
Lilly Pulitzer by quarter for Fiscal 2014 :

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales 30% 28% 21% 21%
Operating income 46% 35% 13% 6%

As the timing of certain unusual or non-recurritepis, economic conditions, wholesale product shifiser other factors affecting the
business may vary from one year to the next, wealdelieve that net sales or operating incomefyr particular quarter or the distribution of
net sales for Fiscal 2014 are necessarily indieadfvanticipated results for the full fiscal yeareapected distribution in future years.

The timing of Lilly Pulitzer's sales in the dirgotconsumer and wholesale distribution channelegdly varies. Typically, the demand
the direct to consumer operations, including sdesur own stores and e-commerce sites, for L[Bilfitzer products in our principal markets is
generally higher in the spring, summer and resassns and lower in the fall season. However, velatdeproduct shipments are generally
shipped prior to each of the retail selling seasbnsther, in the third quarter of our fiscal yeahich has not historically been a strong direct t
consumer or wholesale quarter for Lilly PulitzeilyLPulitzer has historically held a significaricemmerce flash clearance sale which results
in e-commerce sales representing a larger percenfagtal sales than in other fiscal quartersthsallocation of sales within a quarter is
impacted by the seasonality of direct to consumenaholesale sales, we have presented in the fisiiptable the proportion of net sales for
each quarter represented by each distribution eldonFiscal 2014 , which may not be indicativetlud allocation of sales by distribution
channel in future periods:

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Full price retail stores 31% 45% 26% 33% 34%
E-commerce 18% 23% 44% 32% 28%
Wholesale 51% 32% 3C% 35% 38%
Total 10(% 10(% 10(% 10(% 10(%

Lanier Clothes

Lanier Clothes designs, sources and distributesded and private label men's apparel, with a fecutilored clothing, including suits,
sportcoats, suit separates and dress slacks, hasaedsual pants and other dress apparel, acmisieaange of price points, with the majority
of the business at moderate price points. The ritgjofr our Lanier Clothes products are sold undetain trademarks licensed to us by third
parties. Licensed brands include Kenneth Cole® kes® and Geoffrey Beene®. Additionally, we desigml market products for our owned
Billy London® brand. In addition to these brandetsinesses, Lanier Clothes designs and sourcedetalzel apparel products for certain
customers, including a large private label pantgy@m for a warehouse club. The private label @agroffer the retailer product exclusivity
generally higher gross margins than they wouldeaaon branded products, while allowing us the dappity to leverage our design, sourcing
and distribution infrastructure. Sales of brandemtipcts represented approximately 67% of Lanieth@ls net sales during Fiscal 2014 .

Our Lanier Clothes products are sold to departragmes, national chains, warehouse clubs, disaetzilers, specialty retailers and
others throughout the United States. Lanier Clothveslucts are sold in more than 5,000 retail iocat In Lanier Clothes, we have long-
standing relationships with some of the United &taargest retailers. During Fiscal 2014 , Ladikathes' four largest customers represented
20%, 16%, 15% and 11% of Lanier Clothes' net salbge sales to Lanier Clothes' 10 largest custemepresented 86% of Lanier Clothes'
sales. The amount and percentage of net saldsusdtinie to an individual customer in future yeaeyrbe different than Fiscal 20a4nounts a
sales are not tied to long-term contracts.
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As much of Lanier Clothes' private label salesmogram based, where for each program or seasderL@lothes must bid for a
program, an individual customer could increaserekese or discontinue its purchases from us atiare/ Thus, significant fluctuations in
Lanier Clothes' operating results from one yedh&next may result, particularly if a program @& renewed, the customer decides to use
another vendor, we determine that the return optbgram is not acceptable to us, a new progrdnitiated, there is a significant increase in
the size of the program or otherwise. Additionailtyaccordance with normal industry practice, a$ phmaintaining an ongoing relationship
with certain customers, Lanier Clothes may be megiio provide cooperative advertising or otheeirwes to the customer.

The moderate price point tailored clothing marketm extremely competitive apparel sector withifigant competition at retail and
gross margin pressures due to retail sales prisspres and sourcing cost increases as fewer letvegorcing alternatives exist. We believe
that our Lanier Clothes business has historicalbeied at bringing quality products to our custosn&t competitive prices and managing
inventory risk appropriately while requiring minib@apital expenditure investments.

Design, Manufacturing, Sourcing, Marketing and Bisition

We believe that superior customer service and sugmin management, as well as the design of guaiitducts, are all integral
components of our strategy in the branded and feriadel tailored clothing market. Our Lanier Ckdhdesign teams, which are located in
New York City, focus on the target consumer forleband. The design process combines feedbackbitymrs and sales agents along v
market trend research and input from manufactu@us.various Lanier Clothes products are manufadtiitom a variety of fibers, including
wool, silk, linen, cotton and other natural fibeas,well as synthetics and blends of these maderial

Lanier Clothes manages production in Asia and LAtirerica through a combination of efforts from &anier Clothes offices in Atlant
Georgia and third party buying agents. Lanier Getlsourcing operations are also supplementegypasmiate, by third party contractors who
may provide certain sourcing functions or in-covrfuality assurance to further enhance Lanier @&thlobal sourcing operations. During
Fiscal 2014 , 64% and 15% of Lanier Clothes progucthases were from manufacturers located in ¥ratand India, respectively. Lanier
Clothes purchased goods from approximately 115lgrppn Fiscal 2014 . The 10 largest supplierkafier Clothes provided 88% of the
finished goods and raw materials Lanier Clothesisted from third parties during Fiscal 2014 , wath% of our product purchases being from
our largest third party supplier. In addition taghasing products from third parties in Vietnanditnand other countries, Lanier Clothes
operates a manufacturing facility, located in Maritlexico, which produced 13% of our Lanier Clotpesducts during Fiscal 2014 .

The advertising efforts of Lanier Clothes are moare product specific than advertising for our odfifestyle brands. For Lanier
Clothes' branded products, advertising primarilgsists of co-operative advertising with our largestomers, contributions to the licensor
based on a specified percentage of our net safesdathe licensor's general brand advertisingatiites and attending brand appropriate trade
shows. As a provider of private label apparel, weegenerally not responsible for advertising favgie label brands.

For Lanier Clothes, we utilize a distribution certecated in Toccoa, Georgia, as well as thirdypdistribution centers for certain of our
product shipments, where we receive goods fronsoppliers, inspect those products and ship thegtmdur customers. We seek to maintair
sufficient levels of inventory to support prografos pre-booked orders and to meet customer den@matfonce ordering, including when
consumers purchase products from our customersitegstand we ship directly to the consumer. Famagestandard tailored clothing product
styles, we maintain in-stock replenishment progrgmsviding shipment to customers within just a féays of receiving the order. These type:
of programs generally require higher inventory lsvBisposal of excess prior-season inventory isragoing part of our business and Lanier
Clothes utilizes various off-price retailers tol seich products.

We maintain apparel sales offices and showroomedotanier Clothes products in several locatiamsuding New York City and
Atlanta and employ a sales force consisting ofreadeemployees. Lanier Clothes operates the billgémuk.com and menstailoreddirect.com
websites, where certain Lanier Clothes products beagurchased on-line directly by consumers. Irtenid Lanier Clothes also ships certain
products directly to consumers who purchase preduci the websites of certain of our wholesaldamers.

Seasonal Aspects of Business

Lanier Clothes' operating results are impacteddaganality as the demand by specific product de styay vary significantly depending
on the time of year. As a wholesale apparel busiriasvhich product shipments generally occur piothe retail selling seasons, the
seasonality of Lanier Clothes generally reflectsrajer spring and fall wholesale deliveries whighi¢ally occur in our first and third quarters;
however, in some fiscal years this will not be thse due to much of
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Lanier Clothes' operations being program-driveririesses. The following table presents the percert@get sales and operating income for
Lanier Clothes by quarter for Fiscal 2014 :

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales 25% 19% 32% 24%
Operating income 25% 14% 32% 2%

As the timing of certain unusual or non-recurritegis, economic conditions, wholesale product shifisyehe introduction of new
programs, the loss of programs or customers or ddletors affecting the business may vary from pear to the next, we do not believe that
net sales or operating income for any particulartgr or the distribution of net sales and opeggiticome for Fiscal 2014 are necessarily
indicative of anticipated results for the full fidg/ear or expected distribution in future years.

Ben Sherman

Ben Sherman is a London-based designer, marketiediatnibutor of men's branded sportswear andedlptoducts. Ben Sherman was
established in 1963 as an edgy shirt brand thatagtlapted by the followers of the contemporary Landwsic scene known as modernists or
"Mods" and has throughout its history been inspbrgdvhat is new and current in British art, musiglture and style. The brand has evolved
into a British lifestyle brand of apparel target#dtyle conscious men ages 25 to 40 in multipleketa throughout the world. During Fiscal
2014, approximately 40%, 25% and 25% of Ben Shermagt'sales occurred in the United Kingdom, contineBtaiope and the United Stat
respectively. Ben Sherman products can be fouhetier department stores, specialty stores andwned and licensed Ben Sherman retalil
stores, as well as on the Ben Sherman e-commetosite® We also license the Ben Sherman name farugaproduct categories.

We believe the attraction of the Ben Sherman btarair consumers is a reflection of our effortetsure that we maintain appropriate
quality and design of our apparel and licensed pets] while also implementing restricted distribatof the Ben Sherman products to a selec
tier of retailers. We believe this approach to guatiesign and distribution increases consumeirelésr Ben Sherman products. We believe
that the retail sales value of all Ben Shermandedrproducts sold during Fiscal 2014 , including estimate of retail sales by our wholesale
customers and other third party retailers, was@pprately $225 million.

Ben Sherman has faced challenges in recent yetitse Aame time, we elevated the wholesale digiobwf the Ben Sherman brand.
Although we have made significant strides in elegabur wholesale distribution, we have not realie@aough sales at higher distribution le'
to date to replace the sales from accounts thabited. On March 24, 2015, our Board of Directartharized our management to pursue a
of the Ben Sherman business. We have engageddeinatd. as our financial advisor to assist intitamsaction process. We plan to contint
operate the Ben Sherman business during the prama$slthough we expect to complete a sale wiisnal 2015 no specific timetable has
been set for consummation of a transaction. Thanebe no assurance that a transaction will takeepknd our Board of Directors may
consider other alternatives for the Ben Shermainbas that it believes are in the best intereshafeholders.

Design, Sourcing, Marketing and Distribution

Ben Sherman men's apparel products are developedrimedicated design teams located at the Bemfimeheadquarters in London,
England. Our Ben Sherman design teams focus otathet consumer, and the design process combiadbdek from buyers, consumers and
our sales force, along with market trend reseaféddesign our Ben Sherman apparel products topocate various fiber types, including
cotton, wool or other natural fibers, synthetiasblends of two or more of these materials.

We primarily utilize a large third party buying agdased in Hong Kong to manage the productionsaudcing of the majority of our
Ben Sherman apparel products, supplemented byoouciag office in India. During Fiscal 2014 we usggbroximately 50 suppliers primarily
located in Asia to manufacture our Ben Shermanymtsd During Fiscal 2014 , 38% and 33% of our BearBian apparel products were
sourced from China and India, respectively, whike largest 10 suppliers provided 67% of the Berrr8he products acquired during Fiscal
2014 .

We believe that advertising and marketing are tegial part of the long-term strategy of the Beerr&tan brand, and we therefore
devote significant resources to advertising anckatarg. We intend that Ben Sherman advertising anljage individuals within the brand's
consumer demographic and guide them on a regusis tour retail stores, e-commerce websites dralesale customers' stores in search o
our products. The marketing of the Ben Shermandinaciudes traditional media such as print, catslagd other correspondence with
customers, as well as moving media and trade shibatives. However, an increasing amount of Berr8tan's marketing focus involves
email, Internet and social media advertising. Wieelse that it is very important that a lifestylealnd communicate regularly with consumers
the use of
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email, Internet and social media about productroffgs or other brand events in order to maintaith stnrengthen the brands' connections with
its consumers.

We also believe that highly visible retail storedtions with creative design, broad merchandisectieh and brand appropriate visual
presentation are key enticements for customergstbour retail stores and buy merchandise. Wenihtithat our retail stores enhance the
shopping experience of our customers, which weehelwill increase consumer brand loyalty. Markeiimgatives at certain of our retail sto
may include special event promotions and a vaoéfyublic relations activities designed to createi@ness of our stores and products. We
believe that our retail store operations as wetiwstraditional and electronic media communicatiorcrease the sales of our own retail stores
and e-commerce operations, as well as the salamsrqfroducts for our wholesale customers.

For certain of our wholesale customers, we als@igeopoint-of-sale materials and signage to enhéme@resentation of our branded
products at their retail locations and/or partit@pia cooperative advertising programs.

Ben Sherman uses a third party distribution ceintéme United Kingdom for its products sold in tbaited Kingdom and continental
Europe. This distribution center provides warehaarse distribution services for our Ben Sherman petelisold in the United Kingdom and
continental Europe. In the United States, distrduservices are performed for Ben Sherman at suned distribution center in Lyons,
Georgia. Distribution center activities includeeiing finished goods, inspecting the products simgping the products to wholesale
customers, our Ben Sherman retail stores and conmenerce customers. We seek to maintain suffi¢ééxes of inventory to support pre-
booked orders and some limited replenishment ardddr our wholesale customers as well as salesupdirect to consumer operations.
Disposal of excess prior-season inventory is arommgpart of our business and Ben Sherman utibzesmbination of sales in its own outlet
stores and sales to off-price retailers to selhsneentory.

Wholesale Operations

During Fiscal 2014 , 55% of Ben Sherman's net saf¥g sales to wholesale customers, includingriat@wnal distributors, with Ben
Sherman products available in more than 1,200l letaitions. During Fiscal 2014 , 27% of Ben Shemfsaet sales were to its five largest
customers, with its largest customer representig?Ben Sherman's net sales. We maintain Ben Sireapparel sales offices and
showrooms in several locations, including LondoayNyork City, Amsterdam and Dusseldorf. Our wholesgperations for Ben Sherman
utilize a sales force consisting of salaried salaployees and independent commissioned sales espagises.

Direct to Consumer Operations

Our direct to consumer strategy for the Ben Sherbrand includes locating retail stores in brandrappate street locations and malls.
Each retail store carries a wide range of mercls@ndicluding apparel, footwear and accessoriepredented in a manner intended to enhanc
the Ben Sherman image. Our Ben Sherman retailsstdi@v us to present Ben Sherman's full line ofenut season products, including
licensees' products. We believe our Ben Shermail stores provide high visibility of the brand ameducts and also enable us to stay clo
the needs and preferences of consumers. We béieymesentation of these products in our Ben Shemetail stores helps build brand
awareness and acceptance and thus enhances bugthesgr wholesale customers.

While we make approximately 40% of the Ben Sherpraxduct sold in our outlets specifically for outtlets, our Ben Sherman outlet
stores also serve an important role in overall megy management by allowing us to sell discontihaed out-of-season products at better
prices than are generally otherwise available foutside parties, while allowing us to better cohtine distribution of such products. Outlet
store sales comprised 11% of Ben Sherman saldsdalR2014.

The components of Ben Sherman's direct to consatregegy include retail store, concession and enrteroe operations and representes
45% of Ben Sherman's net sales in Fiscal 2014 paoad to 46% in Fiscal 2013 . Retail store salegpess square foot were approximately
$730 for our Ben Sherman retail stores which weendhroughout Fiscal 2014 compared to approxim&eb5 for Ben Sherman retail stores
open throughout Fiscal 2013 . The increase froroaFi013 was primarily due to higher comparableifstore sales. The above amounts for
sales per square foot do not include sales or sdaat amounts for outlets and concessions.

The table below provides certain information regiagdBen Sherman retail stores as of January 315 201
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Number Average

of Stores Square Feet
United Kingdom retail stores (1) 7 2,30(C
Continental Europe retail stores 2 1,90(C
United States retail stores 3 4,00(
Outlet stores (2)(3) 9 1,80(
Total 21 2,20(
Total gross square feet at year end 46,00(
Q) One United Kingdom retail store was closedssgjuent to January 31, 2015
(2) Includes four outlet stores in the United Kingdomna dive outlet stores in continental Eurc
3 Excludes two temporary outlet stores operatatle United Kingdom, which were opened in latecl 2014 and are expected to clos

in the first half of Fiscal 2015.

The table below reflects the changes in store cfourBen Sherman stores during Fiscal 2014 .

Retail Stores Outlet Stores Total
Open as of beginning of fiscal year 11 6 17
Opened during fiscal year 1 4 5
Closed during fiscal year — Q) (@)
Open as of end of fiscal year 12 9 21

We do not currently have plans to open any new &srman retail stores or outlets in Fiscal 201Be @peration of our retail stores
requires a greater amount of initial capital inuestt than wholesale operations as well as greatging operating costs. Also, we incur
capital expenditure costs related to remodels isfieg stores, particularly when we renew or extaridase beyond the original lease term, or
otherwise determine that a remodel of a store fis@piate. We also incur capital expenditures whdgase expires and we determine it is
appropriate to relocate a store to a new locatidhé same vicinity as the previous store.

Another component of our direct to consumer strate@perating certain concession arrangementsieblyeve operate Ben Sherman
shops within department or other stores. The irorgrdt these locations is owned by us until soltheoconsumer, at which time we recognize
the full retail sales price. In these arrangememBen Sherman employee is responsible for the anehwe pay a commission to the
department store to cover occupancy and certair atists associated with using the space. As efadar81, 2015 we operated 12 concess
locations in the United Kingdom.

In addition to our retail store operations, we @pewvarious Ben Sherman websites which provideurorss the opportunity to purchase
Ben Sherman products directly on-line. Net saleBasf Sherman's e-commerce operations were 5% ahies for Ben Sherman in Fiscal
2014 .

Licensing/Distributor Operations

We license the Ben Sherman trademark to a varfdtgemsees in categories beyond Ben Sherman'sprockict categories, including
footwear and kids apparel. We believe licensingnisttractive business opportunity for the Ben Blagrbrand. Once a brand is established,
licensing requires modest additional investmentdaunt yield high-margin income. It also affords tipgportunity to enhance overall brand
awareness and exposure. In evaluating a potergialIerman licensee, we typically consider the idatels experience, financial stability,
manufacturing performance and marketing ability. &l&® evaluate the marketability and compatibititghe proposed products with other E
Sherman brand products.

Our agreements with Ben Sherman licensees ar@éaific geographic areas and expire at varioussdatéhe future. Generally, the
agreements require minimum royalty payments as agetbyalty and advertising payments based onfip@giercentages of the licensee's net
sales of the licensed products. Our license agreesngenerally provide us the right to approve edldoicts, advertising and proposed channels
of distribution.

Third party license arrangements for Ben Shermadymts include the following product categories:
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Footwear Kid's apparel

Men's watches and jewelry Men's tailored clothab dress shirts
Men's hats, caps, scarves and gloves Men's neckwear and pocket squares
Men's fragrances and toiletries Men's and boydénmear, socks and sleepwear

Men's gift products

In addition to the license agreements for the sjpgmioduct categories listed above, we have atdered into certain international
license/distribution agreements which give thegel tharties the opportunity to distribute Ben Shamproducts in certain geographic areas
around the world. The products sold by our lices&tistributors generally are identical to the prtdisold by us. In many markets, our
licensees/distributors are required to open retailes in their respective geographic regions. fAlkanuary 31, 2015, our licensees/distributors
operated 16 Ben Sherman retail stores located stralia, South Africa, Malaysia, Canada and Russayell as four stores in Singapore and
the Philippines, which are anticipated to clos€istal 2015.

Seasonal Aspects of Business

Ben Sherman's net sales are impacted by seasoasliye demand by specific product or style, as agaby distribution channel, may
vary significantly depending on the time of yeahneTsales of Ben Sherman generally align with acgipvholesale and retail apparel company
whereby the fall and holiday seasons are genestitynger quarters than the first half of the fisgdr. The following table presents the
percentage of net sales for Ben Sherman by quart&iscal 2014 :

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Net sales 19% 24% 24% 33%
Operating Loss 43% 2% 20% 8%

As the timing of certain unusual or non-recurritepis, economic conditions, wholesale product shifisner other factors affecting the
business may vary from one year to the next, weaddelieve that net sales or operating loss fgrgarticular quarter or the distribution of net
sales and operating loss for Fiscal 2014 are nachsmdicative of anticipated results for thelffiscal year or expected distribution in future
years.

The timing of Ben Sherman's sales in the direcbtisumer and wholesale distribution channels géperaies. Typically, the demand
the direct to consumer operations for Ben Shermaduygts in our principal markets is generally higinethe fall and holiday seasons and lc
in the spring and summer seasons. Wholesale pratiiprnents are generally shipped prior to each®fétail selling seasons. As the
allocation of sales within a quarter is impactedhsy seasonality of direct to consumer and whaotesales, we have presented in the following
table the proportion of net sales for each quageresented by each distribution channel for Fi26aK , which may not necessarily be
indicative of the allocation of sales in futureipds:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year
Wholesale 58% 4%% 5% 55% 55%
Direct to Consumer 42% 51% 41% 45% 45%
Total 100% 100% 100% 10C% 100%

Corporate and Other

Corporate and Other is a reconciling category éporting purposes and includes our corporate affisabstantially all financing
activities, elimination of inter-segment sales, Qliiventory accounting adjustments, other costsatenot allocated to the operating groups
and operations of our other businesses which armdoded in our four operating groups, includimg Oxford Golf and our Lyons, Georgia
distribution center operations. LIFO inventory edéttions are made on a legal entity basis whicls aaé correspond to our operating group
definitions; therefore, LIFO inventory accountingjestments are not allocated to operating groups.

The Oxford Golf® brand is designed to appeal toghssticated golf apparel consumer with a prefeedoc high quality and classic
styling. In addition to apparel bearing the Oxf@dlIf trademark, Oxford Golf also sources some peivabel products for certain small appare
companies. Our Oxford Golf products are primaridguaired on a package purchase, finished goods frasisthird party producers outside of
the United States. Oxford Golf seeks to maintaffigant levels of inventory to support programs fwe-booked orders and at-once ordering.
Oxford Golf employs a sales force consisting prilyaf
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commissioned sales agents. Our Lyons, Georgidhilisitn center receives finished goods from supplimspects those products and ships th
products to customers of our Oxford Golf busines$t@ customers and retail stores of our Ben Shefdrted States business while also
performing certain warehouse and distribution sswifor third parties.

TRADEMARKS

As discussed above, we own trademarks, severahighvare very important to our business. Generally,significant trademarks are
subject to registrations and pending applicatibnsughout the world for use on a variety of iterhaparel and, in some cases, apparel-relate
products, accessories, home furnishings and beaatiucts, as well as in connection with retail &s. We continue to evaluate our
worldwide usage and registration of certain of mademarks. In general, trademarks remain validearidrceable as long as the trademarks a
used in connection with our products and servioghe relevant jurisdiction and the required regtgn renewals are filed. Important factors
relating to risks associated with our trademarksuisle, but are not limited to, those describedart R Item 1A. Risk Factors.

PRODUCT SOURCING

We intend to maintain flexible, diversified, co$teetive sourcing operations that provide high-ifydiranded products. Our operating
groups, either internally or through the use ofdtparty buying agents, source substantially abbuf products from non-exclusive, third-party
producers located in foreign countries or from lizensees for licensed products sold in our ditectonsumer distribution channels. The us
contract manufacturers reduces the amount of dapitastment required by us as operating manufaxjacilities can require a significant
amount of capital investment. During Fiscal 20%k,sourced approximately 60% of our products freodpcers located in China and 12% of
our products from producers in Vietnam, with ldsat 10% of our products sourced from each othgfesicountry. Although we place a high
value on long-term relationships with our suppliansl have used many of our suppliers for a numbgears, generally we do not have long-
term contracts with our suppliers. Instead, we cabhdusiness on an order-by-order basis. Thus,ongete with other companies for the
production capacity of independent manufacturers.Balieve that this approach provides us with tieatgst flexibility in identifying the
appropriate manufacturers while considering quatiost, timing of product delivery and other ciiderwhile also utilizing the expertise of the
manufacturers. During Fiscal 2014 , no individimd-party manufacturer supplied more than 10%wfaroduct purchases.

We purchase substantially all of our products ftbird-party producers as package purchases ohfidigoods, which are manufactured
with our oversight and to our design and fabriccHjations. We depend upon the ability of thirddggoroducers to secure a sufficient supply
of raw materials specified by us, adequately firaiie production of goods ordered and maintairicgefft manufacturing and shipping
capacity rather than us providing or financing ¢bsts of these items. We believe that purchasibgtantially all of our products as package
purchases allows us to reduce our working capggliirements as we are not required to purchagmaorce the purchase of, the raw materials
or other production costs related to our productipases until we take ownership of the finisheddgoavhich typically occurs when the goods
are shipped by the third-party producers. In additdb purchasing products from third parties, Lagilthes operates our only owned
manufacturing facility, which is located in Meriddexico and produced 13% of our Lanier Clothes potsl during Fiscal 2014 .

As the design, manufacture and transportation paeg products for our brands may take as manixasanths for each season, we
typically make commitments months in advance ofmvpeducts will arrive in our retail stores or aulnolesale customers' stores. We cont|
to seek ways to reduce the time required from aesigl ordering to bringing products to our custamsrour merchandising departments n
estimate our requirements for finished goods pwgetdor our own retail stores and e-commerce Based on historical product demand data
and other factors, and as purchases for our wHelesaounts must be committed to and purchased lpyior to the receipt of customer orders
in some cases, we carry the risk that we have psszhmore inventory than we will ultimately desire.

As part of our commitment to source our producta lawful and responsible manner, each of our dipgrgroups has implemented a
code of conduct program applicable to vendorswleapurchase goods from, which includes provisietsted to abiding by applicable laws as
well as compliance with other business ethicsuigiclg related human rights, health, safety, worldogditions, environmental and other
requirements. We require that each of our vendwotdiaensees comply with the applicable code ofdcmh or substantially similar compliance
standards. On an ongoing basis we assess venduorgliance with the applicable code of conduct goyuliaable laws and regulations through
audits performed by either our employees or ouigtlesed agents. This assessment of compliancermove is directed by our corporate
leadership team. In the event we determine thahaar is not abiding by our required standardsywek with the vendor to remediate the
violation. If the violation is not satisfactorilgmediated, we will discontinue use of the vendor.

IMPORT RESTRICTIONS AND OTHER GOVERNMENT REGULATION S
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We are exposed to certain risks as a result ofmdemational operations. Almost all of our merctize is manufactured by foreign
suppliers. During Fiscal 2014 , we sourced appraxéty 60% of our products from producers locate@hina. Our imported products are
subject to customs, trade and other laws and régatagoverning their entry into the United Steded other countries where we sell our
products.

Substantially all of the merchandise we acquirkulgiect to duties which are assessed on the valhe éimported product and represel
material portion of the cost of the goods we gality rates vary depending on the type of garmedtitafiber content and are subject to che
in future periods. In addition, while the World @imOrganization's member nations have eliminatedaguon apparel and textiles, the United
States and European countries into which we impariproducts are still allowed in certain circunngtas to unilaterally impose "arditmping'
or "countervailing" duties in response to threattheir comparable domestic industries.

In addition, apparel and other products sold bgnessubject to stringent and complex product peréorce and security and safety
standards, laws and other regulations. These régudarelate principally to product labeling, licdmg requirements, certification of product
safety and importer security procedures. We belieaewe are in material compliance with those fatinns. Our licensed products and
licensing partners are also subject to regulatiur. agreements require our licensing partners gvadp in compliance with all laws and
regulations.

Although we have not been materially inhibited frdoing business in desired markets in the pastameot assure that significant
impediments will not arise in the future as we expproduct offerings and brands and enter into maskets. Our management regularly
monitors proposed regulatory changes and the egistigulatory environment, including any impactoom operations or on our ability to
import products.

Important factors relating to risks associated \giternment regulations include, but are not lichti@ those described in Part |,
Item 1A. Risk Factors.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES

We believe that sophisticated information systemsfanctionality are important components of maimitay our competitive position ai
supporting continued growth of our businessesjqadatrly in the ever changing consumer shoppingrenment. Our management informati
systems are designed to provide effective retaibste-commerce and wholesale operations while asiphg efficient point-of-sale,
distribution center, design, sourcing, order preg®s marketing, accounting and other functions. W point-of-sale registers that capture
sales data, track inventories and monitor traffid ather information in our retail stores. We reglyl evaluate the adequacy of our informatior
technologies and upgrade or enhance our systegartmperating efficiencies, to provide additiooahsumer access and to support our
anticipated growth as well as other changes irbosmess. We believe that continuous upgradingeahdncements to our management
information systems with newer technology that isffgreater efficiency, functionality and reporticapabilities is important to our operations
and financial condition.

SEASONAL ASPECTS OF BUSINESS

Each of our operating groups is impacted by seditpiaa the demand by specific product or stylewa#i as by distribution channel, m
vary significantly depending on the time of yeaor Betails of the impact of seasonality on eacbusfoperating groups, see the business
discussion of each operating group above. Theitg table presents our percentage of net salesp@icting income by quarter for Fiscal
2014 .

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales 26% 25% 22% 27%
Operating income 34% 32% 3% 31%

We anticipate that as our retail store operationssiase in the future, the third quarter will coné to be our smallest net sales and
operating income quarter and the percentage diithgear net sales and operating income genetatéue third quarter will continue to
decrease, absent any other factors that might inge@sonality. As the timing of certain unusuahon-recurring items, economic conditions,
wholesale product shipments, weather or other factffecting the retail business may vary from gear to the next, we do not believe that
sales or operating income for any particular quantehe distribution of net sales and operatingpme for Fiscal 2014 are necessarily
indicative of anticipated results for the full fido/ear or expected distribution in future years.



ORDER BACKLOG
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As 61% of our sales are direct to consumer saleghnare not reflected in an order backlog, andottger backlog for wholesale sales
may be impacted by a variety of factors, we doh&dieve that order backlog information is nece$ganticative of sales to be expected for
future periods. Therefore, we believe the ordekluaris not material for an understanding of ousibass taken as a whole. Further, as our
sales continue to shift towards direct to consuragtrer than wholesale sales, the order backlogowiltinue to be less meaningful as a measu
of our future sales and results of operations.

EMPLOYEES

As of January 31, 2015 , we employed approxim&8glp0 persons, of whom approximately 80% were eygulan the United States.
Approximately 69% of our employees were retail stand restaurant employees. We believe our emplayatons are good.

INFORMATION

Oxford Industries, Inc. is a Georgia corporatioigimally founded in 1942. Our corporate headquartee located at 999 Peachtree
Street, N.E., Ste. 688, Atlanta, Georgia 30309. IDtarnet address is oxfordinc.com. Copies of aumual report on Form 10-K, proxy
statement, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and otureports on Form 8-K, and amendments to thosart®filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended, are available free of éhangour website the same day that they
are electronically filed with the SEC. The informoaton our website is not and should not be comsitlpart of this Annual Report on Form 10
K and is not incorporated by reference in this doent.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks described below highlight some of thedescthat could materially affect our operatiorisrly of these risks actually occurs,
our business, financial condition, prospects andp@rating results may be adversely affected. Thesaot the only risks and uncertainties we
face. We operate in a competitive and rapidly cirapgusiness environment, and additional risksamzrtainties not presently known to u
that we currently consider immaterial may also aslely affect our business.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and aauwccess depends on the reputation and value oflmand names and our ability to offer
innovative and market appropriate products that pesd to rapidly changing fashion trends; any failerto maintain the reputation or value
of our brands, to offer innovative, fashionable arttksirable brands and products and/or to appropeigtrespond to competitive factors
within our industry could adversely affect our bugss operations and financial condition.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and surcess depends on the reputation and value dfrand names. We believe that
the principal competitive factors in the apparellistry are the reputation, value and image of breardes; design; consumer preference; price
quality; marketing; and customer service. We beithat our ability to compete successfully is diserelated to our proficiency in foreseeing
changes and trends in fashion and consumer preferand presenting appealing products for consumers

The value of our brands could be diminished byoastitaken by us or by our wholesale customerstmrstwho have an interest in the
brands, including by failing to respond to emerdiashion trends, by selling products bearing oants through distribution channels that are
inconsistent with the retail channels in which oustomers expect to find those brands, by becomiegy promotional or setting up consur
expectations for promotional activity for our pratki We are becoming more reliant on social meslian@ of our marketing strategies and the
value of our brands could be adversely affectaeeifdo not effectively communicate our brand messlagrigh social media vehicles that
interface with our consumers on a regular basiadttition, we cannot always control the marketindg promotion of our products by our
wholesale customers or other third parties aneastby such parties that are inconsistent withosur marketing efforts or that otherwise
adversely affect the appeal of our products coirtdrdsh the value or reputation of one or more of brands and have an adverse effect or
sales and business operations.

During Fiscal 2014, Tommy Bahama’s net sales rgmtesl 63% of our consolidated net sales, whiley IRlllitzer's and Ben
Sherman’s net sales represented 17% and 8%, regghgcdf our consolidated net sales. The limitéedsification in our portfolio may
heighten the risks we face if one of our brands fai meet our expectations and/or is adverselhactgdl by any actions we or third parties take
with respect to that brand or by competitive candg in the apparel industry.

Although certain of our products carry over fronasen to season, the apparel industry is subjeefpidly changing fashion trends ¢
shifting consumer demands, particularly for owedifyle branded Tommy Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer and Bé&erman products. Due to the
competitive nature of the apparel industry, thene lse no assurance that the demand for our
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products will not decline or that we will be abtestuccessfully evaluate and adapt our productigo with consumer preferences and change:
in consumer demographics. The introduction or ritjoosng of product lines and categories and thigyeof our products into new geographic
territories often requires substantial costs inglesnarketing and advertising, which may not beowered if these initiatives are not succes
Any failure on our part to develop and market afipggroducts could result in weakened financiafgenance and/or harm the reputation
desirability of our brands.

The highly competitive apparel industry, charazediby low entry barriers, includes numerous doimesid foreign apparel
designers, manufacturers, distributors, imporlemsnsors and retailers, some of whom may alsourewstomers and some of whom are
significantly larger, more diversified and haversfigantly greater financial resources than we@ertain of our competitors offer apparel for
sale at lower initial price points than our prodguahd/or at significant discounts, particularlyésponse to weak economic conditions, which
has resulted, and may continue to result, in dicamt pricing pressure within the apparel industtyis has been exacerbated by structural
headwinds in the specialty retail sector, wheregtioevth of fast fashion and value fashion retaibard expansion of off-price retailers has
shifted consumer expectations to lower priced petslfrom traditional, well-known brands. Competiifactors within the apparel industry
may result in reduced sales, increased costs, Iprieas for our products and/or decreased margins.

We also license certain of our brands, includingnity Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer and Ben Sherman, todipiarty licensees. While we
enter into comprehensive license and similar collative agreements with third parties covering patdlesign, product quality, sourcing,
distribution, manufacturing and marketing requiratseand approvals, there can be no guarantee and®will not be negatively impacted
through our association with products outside afanre apparel products, by the market perceptidheothird parties with whom we associate
and/or due to the actions of a licensee. The imgrop detrimental actions of a licensee could $icgmtly impact the perception of our brands.

In addition, the reputation of our brands coulchbemed if our third party manufacturers and vendsubstantially all of which are
located outside the United States, fail to meet@mpate product safety, product quality and soctahpliance standards, including the term
our applicable codes of conduct and vendor comgdiatandards. We cannot assure that our manufessamd vendors will at all times cond
their operations in accordance with ethical prastior that the products we purchase will alwaystmeesafety and quality control standards.
Any violation of our applicable codes of conduciaral laws relating to labor conditions by our matturers or vendors or other actions or
failures by us or such parties may result in neggtublic perception of our brands or productsyeals as disrupt our supply chain, which may
adversely affect our business operations.

The apparel industry is heavily influenced by geaéeconomic conditions, and a deterioration or wersng of consumer confidence or
consumer purchases of discretionary products mayeely affect our business and financial conditioimcluding as a result of adverse
business conditions for third parties with whom wle business.

The apparel industry is cyclical and dependent uperoverall level of discretionary consumer spagdwhich changes as regional,
domestic and international economic conditions geaemand for our products may be significantlpacted by trends in consumer
confidence and discretionary consumer spendingztwmay be influenced by employment levels, recessituel and energy costs, availability
of personal credit, interest rates, tax rates dmaahges in tax laws, declining purchasing powertddereign currency fluctuations, personal
debt levels, housing prices, stock market volgtititeneral political conditions and other factdrse factors impacting consumer confidence
and discretionary consumer spending are outsigeio€ontrol and difficult to predict, and, oftehetapparel industry experiences longer
periods of recession and greater declines thagaheral economy. Any deterioration or worseningafsumer confidence or discretionary
consumer spending, which has been negatively iredantthe past few years, could reduce our saléfoaadversely affect our business and
financial condition.

Additionally, significant changes in the operati@rdiquidity of any of the parties with which wermduct our business, including
suppliers, customers, trademark licensees andignaimong others, now or in the future, or in tbeeas to capital markets for any such pa
could result in lower demand for our products, los@es, higher costs or other disruptions in asiress.

In response to technological advancements, retalare shifting how they interact with their consumseand facilitate transactions, and ot
ability to execute our direct to consumer retaitategies in our branded businesses and/or the effefiche shift in the manner in which reta
consumers transact business, subjects us to rislka tould adversely affect our financial results droperations.

Certain of our brands, including Tommy BahamayiRulitzer and Ben Sherman, distribute productsugh brick and mortar retail
stores and e-commerce websites and regularly comeaterwith consumers through social media and atiethods of digital marketing. One
of our key initiatives is to grow our branded besigses through retail strategies that allow
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our consumers to access our brands whenever aneweneéhey choose to shop. Our success dependaitpeadegree on our ability to
introduce new retail concepts and products, lonate retail locations with the proper consumer derapkics, establish the infrastructure
necessary to support growth, source sufficientlgegtinventory, hire and train qualified assocsat@nticipate and implement innovations in
sales and marketing technology to align with ourstoners’ shopping preferences and maintain braacifspwebsites and other social media
presence that offer the functionality and securitgtomers expect.

In addition, in response to technological advanggmeaetail consumers have shifted their shoppettghior in recent years, with
computers, mobile phones, tablets and other defaodtating retail transactions anywhere in therld and allowing greater consumer
transparency in product pricing and competitiveenffgs from other retailers. As a result, retailease been forced to shift the way in which
they do business, including development of appbeatfor electronic devices; improvement of guestifig technology; one-day or same-day
delivery of products purchased online (includingptigh the enhancement of inventory managementragsaed their interface with e-
commerce websites, the development and more eféeatie of additional distribution facilities, eithewvned or provided by a third party, and
in-store enhancements that facilitate shipmentaframerce transactions from traditional brick armttar retail locations); free shipping of e-
commerce transactions; greater and more fluid itorgravailability between online transactional mesises and brick and mortar retail
locations; and greater consistency in marketing@iaing strategies for online and traditional krand mortar retail operations, including with
respect to the retail pricing strategies of a leta own product offerings and those of its whalescustomers.

The continuing shift in the manner in which consusrteansact business globally and our efforts $poead to these changes and
execute our direct to consumer retail strategiesdcadversely affect our financial results and afiens as a result of, among other things:
investment in technology and infrastructure in otderemain competitive (including investments taintain modern technology and
functionality similar to that provided by our contipgrs and expected by our customers); relianceuddated technology that is not as
appealing or functionally effective as those of competitors; our own e-commerce business andital plarty offers diverting sales from our
brick and mortar retail stores, where we have nsathstantial capital expenditures on leasehold irgoreents and have significant remaining
long-term financial commitments, and renderingttiaeitional retail model more challenging finanbjabdecision making with respect to the
wholesale customers to whom we are willing to saHl products in order to maintain a consistent thraessage and pricing strategy; any
failure to properly communicate our brand messageareate the ambiance of our retail stores thiaggial media; a reliance on third party
service providers for software, processing andlaimsiervices; liability for our online content; diecard fraud; and failure of computer
systems, theft of personal consumer information@mdputer viruses. If we are unable to properly aganthese risks and effectively respond
to the behavioral shift in consumer expectatiorsmay lose sales and/or our reputation and créglibilay be damaged.

There are risks associated with the announcemenbof pursuit of strategic alternatives to sell olBen Sherman operations, which could
adversely affect our ongoing operations, divert nagement’s attention and negatively impact our resubf operations.

On March 26, 2015, we announced that we are pugsusale of our Ben Sherman business. We planriiince to operate the Ben
Sherman business during this process. Howevegrtheuncement could impact confidence about the-terrg implications for the brand
among our customers and other third party distigoupartners and others and could negatively impalets and operating results. There can b
no assurance that we will enter into a transadtidhe future or as to the timing of such a tratisac nor can we be certain as to the terms or
structure of such a transaction, including the piifor recognizing a loss on such a divestitnamsaction or the magnitude of such a loss.
The announcement may subject us, in particular@erman, to substantial risks and uncertaintielsniag result in a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operasioncluding our ability to identify and consummaté&ansaction that is in the best interests of
our shareholders; reaction by, and the impact @mtioeships with, current and prospective custonaeisthird party licensees, international
distributors and vendors pending a decision oamstiction; potential disruption to Ben Sherman@rafions and management that could occt
leading up to and after a transaction is chosesgrglion of senior management’s attention towar@setng our strategy to exit the Ben
Sherman business; and the loss of key personBaraSherman pending a decision on a transaction.

Loss of one or more of our key wholesale customersa significant adverse change in a custor’s financial performance or financial
position, could negatively impact our net sales gofitability.

We generate a significant percentage of our whigdesades from a few key customers. For exampléndutiscal 2014, 41% of our
consolidated wholesale sales were to our five Ergestomers. Over the last several years, therbédwen a trend towards greater consolidatiol
in the retail industry, centralized purchasing dieeis within consolidated customer groups, sigaifidevels of store closures by large retailers
increased prevalence and emphasis on private pabelicts at large retailers and direct sourcingrotiucts by large retailers. A decrease in
number of stores that carry our products,
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restructuring of our customers’ operations, momgredized purchasing decisions, continued storsurkes by major department stores, direct
sourcing and greater leverage by customers, asuét of further consolidation in the retail indystr otherwise, could result in lower prices,
realignment of customer affiliations or other fastahich could negatively impact our net sales prditability.

We generally do not have long-term contracts with ef our wholesale customers. Instead, we relijoag-standing relationships wi
these customers and our position within the mategp As a result, purchases generally occur amrder-byeorder basis, and each relations
can generally be terminated by either party attang. A decision by one or more of our key wholesalstomers to terminate its relationship
with us or to reduce its purchases from us, whethaivated by competitive considerations, qualitstyle issues, financial difficulties,
economic conditions or otherwise, or our own decigb terminate or curtail our sales to a particalestomer, whether for brand protection or
enhancement or otherwise, could adversely affechetisales and profitability, as it would be diffit to immediately, if at all, replace this
business with new customers, reduce our operatiaty ©r increase sales volumes with other existirsjomers.

In addition, due to long product lead times, owdurct lines are typically designed and manufactimexhticipation of orders for sale.
We make commitments for production in connectiothuliese lines up to several months prior to tieeipe of firm orders from customers, ¢
if orders do not materialize or are canceled, wg meur expenses to terminate our production comeitts or incur losses in order to dispose
excess inventories.

We also extend credit to most of our key wholesaktomers without requiring collateral, which résih a large amount of
receivables from just a few customers. At January2B15, our five largest outstanding customerrzaa represented $26 million, or 32% of
our consolidated receivables balance. Companitgiapparel industry, including some of our cust@anmay experience financial difficulties,
including bankruptcies, restructurings and reorgations, tightened credit markets and/or declirsialgs and profitability. A significant adve
change in a customer’s financial position couldseaus to limit or discontinue business with thatemer, require us to assume greater credit
risk relating to that customer’s receivables oiitliour ability to collect amounts related to shiprteeto that customer.

We rely to a large extent on third party producensforeign countries to meet our production demandsd failures by these producers to
meet our requirements, the unavailability of suit@producers at reasonable prices and/or changegiernational trade regulation may
negatively impact our ability to deliver quality pducts to our customers on a timely basis, disrapt supply chain or result in higher costs
or reduced net sales.

We source substantially all of our products from+gxclusive, third party producers located in fgretountries, including sourcing
approximately 60% of our product purchases frorm@lduring Fiscal 2014. Although we place a highugan long-term relationships with
our suppliers, generally we do not have long-tenpp$y contracts but, instead, conduct businesshasrder-by-order basis. Therefore, we
compete with other companies for the productioracip of independent manufacturers. We regularlyetiel on the ability of third party
producers to secure a sufficient supply of raw niw@te adequately finance the production of goadiered and maintain sufficient
manufacturing and shipping capacity. Although wenitar production in third party manufacturing loicatts, we cannot be certain that we will
not experience operational difficulties with ourmaéacturers, such as the reduction of availabdftproduction capacity, errors in complying
with product specifications, insufficient qualitgratrol, failures to meet production deadlines @réases in manufacturing costs. Such
difficulties may negatively impact our ability t@liver quality products to our customers on a tim®sis, which may, in turn, have a negative
impact on our customer relationships and resutiwer net sales.

In addition, due to our sourcing activities, we axposed to risks associated with changes in the #ad regulations governing the
importing and exporting of apparel products intd &om the countries in which we operate. Thedesrisclude changes in social, political,
labor and economic conditions or terrorist acts$ doald result in the disruption of trade from teuntries in which our manufacturers are
located; the imposition of additional or new dutitsiffs, taxes, quota restrictions or other ctengnd shifts in sourcing patterns as a result o
such changes; significant delays in the delivergwfproducts, due to security or other considenati fluctuations in sourcing costs; the
imposition of antidumping or countervailing dutiéisictuations in the value of the dollar againseign currencies; changes in customs
procedures for importing apparel products; andictgins on the transfer of funds to or from foreicpuntries. We may not be able to offset
any disruption to our supply chain as a resultmyf af these factors by shifting production to sbiégamanufacturers in other jurisdictions in a
timely manner or at acceptable prices, and futegalatory actions or changes in international tradgilation may provide our competitors
with a material advantage over us.

Our business depends on our senior management atteiokey personnel, and the unsuccessful transitiohkey management
responsibilities, the unexpected loss of individsiahtegral to our business, our inability to attraand retain qualified personnel in the futu
or our failure to successfully plan for and implemésuccession of our senior
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management and key personnel may have an adverseiedn our operations, business relationships aatuility to execute our strategies.

Our senior management has substantial experiertexqertise in the apparel and related industwéh, our Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Thomas C. Chubb Il having worked with our caang for more than 25 years, including in variousa@xive management capacities. Our
success depends upon disciplined execution aadld of our organization, including our senior mge@ment. Competition for qualified
personnel in the apparel industry is intense, aead@mpete to attract and retain these individuils @ther companies that may have greater
financial resources than us. While we believe #ihave depth within our management team, if we &%/ key executives, our business and
financial performance could be harmed.

In addition, we need to plan for the successioousfsenior management and successfully integratenmembers of management
within our organization. The unexpected loss of ahgur senior management, or the unsuccessfuraten of new leadership, could
negatively affect our operations, business relatigqps and ability to execute our strategies.

Breaches of information security or privacy coulcachage our reputation or credibility and cause usdincial harm.

As an ongoing part of our business operationsudinlfy direct to consumer transactions and markebimgugh various social media
tools, we regularly collect and utilize sensitivelaconfidential personal information, includingaefr customers, employees and suppliers and
including credit card information. The routine ogi@wn of our business involves the storage andinégsion of customer personal information,
preferences and credit card information, and wesos@l media and other online activities to conmgth our customers. The regulatory
environment governing our use of individually id@able data of customers, employees and othersrigplex, and the security of personal
information is a matter of public concern.

Cybersecurity attacks are becoming increasinglyistipated, and experienced computer programmet$ackers may be able to
penetrate our network security and misappropriatmpromise our confidential information or disrgpr systems. Consumer awareness an
sensitivity to privacy breaches and cybersecuhitgdts has also heightened recently. Despite quiementation of security measures, if an
actual or perceived data security breach occurstlveln as a result of cybersecurity attacks, compiitieses, vandalism, human error or
otherwise, the image of our brands and our repartand credibility could be damaged. The costdimoigate or alleviate cyber or other
security problems and vulnerabilities, includingcimply with security or other measures under sfatieral and international laws governing
the unauthorized disclosure of confidential infotima or to resolve any litigation, and to enhangkersecurity protection through
organizational changes, deploying additional pemsband protection technologies, training employaesl engaging third party experts and
consultants could be significant and result in gigant financial losses and expenses, as welbsisdales.

In addition, privacy and information security laausd requirements change frequently, and compliaiitethem or similar security
standards, such as those created by the paymehindaistry, may require us to modify our operatiand/or incur costs to make necessary
systems changes and implement new administrativeepses. Our failure to comply with these lawsragdlations, or similar security
standards, could lead to fines, penalties or adveuslicity.

Our operations are reliant on information technolggand any interruption or other failure, in particlar at one of our principal distribution
facilities, may impair our ability to provide produs to our customers, efficiently conduct our opémms, and meet the needs of o
management.

The efficient operation of our business is depenhdarinformation technology. Information systeme ased in all stages of our
operations and as a method of communication wittcastomers, service providers and suppliers. Aatuidly, each of our operating groups
utilizes e-commerce websites to sell goods dirdotigonsumers. Our management also relies on irfiiom systems to provide relevant and
accurate information in order to allocate resousres forecast and report our operating resulti@emterruptions may occur as a result of a
number of factors, including power outages, consunaéfic levels, computer viruses, hacking or ethelawful activities by third parties,
disasters, or failures to properly install, upgrade=grate, protect, repair or maintain our vasisystems and e-commerce websites.

We regularly evaluate upgrades or enhancementsrtmfmrmation systems to more efficiently and catitpvely operate our
businesses, including an ongoing transition towardee integrated systems for our businesses. Weexyasrience difficulties during the
implementation, upgrade or subsequent operati@uo$ystems and/or not be equipped to addresssysteblems. Any material disruption in
our information technology systems, or any failtwéimely, efficiently and effectively integratewesystems, could have an adverse affect on
our business or results of operations.

We may additionally have a greater risk than o@rpeue to the concentration of our distributiarilfées. The primary distribution
facilities that we operate are: a distribution eerih Auburn, Washington for our Tommy Bahama
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products; a distribution center in King of Prus§annsylvania for our Lilly Pulitzer products; atribution center in Toccoa, Georgia for our
Lanier Clothes products; and a distribution cemtdryons, Georgia for our Ben Sherman products sottie United States and for our Oxford
Golf products. In addition, in the United Kingdowe utilize a third party distribution center thaamages substantially all of the distribution
activities for our Ben Sherman products sold intéted Kingdom and continental Europe. Each o$¢héistribution centers relies on
computer-controlled and automated equipment, wiriall be subject to a number of risks. Our abilitgtwpport our direct to consumer
operations, meet customer expectations, managatiomwyeand achieve objectives for operating efficies depends on the proper operation of
these brandecused distribution facilities, each of which mgaa the receipt, storage, sorting, packing andiligion of finished goods for ol
of our operating groups.

If any of our primary distribution facilities wete shut down or otherwise become inoperable orciessible for any reason, including
as a result of natural or man-made disasters, sgbearity attacks, computer viruses or otherwiseuifdistribution facilities fail to upgrade
their technological systems to ensure efficientrafiens, or if we are unable to receive goods distribution center or to ship the goods in a
distribution center, as a result of a technologlyfa or otherwise, we could experience a reduciiosales, a substantial loss of inventory or
higher costs, insufficient inventory at our retibres to meet consumer expectations and longetiteas associated with the distribution of
our products. In addition, for the distribution ifdies that we operate, there are substantialfizests associated with these large, highly
automated distribution centers, and we could erped reduced operating and cost efficiencies dys@mgpds of economic weakness. Any
disruption to our distribution facilities or in tinefficient operation could negatively affect aperating results and our customer relationships

We may be unable to protect our trademarks and otimellectual property.

We believe that our trademarks and other inteleqtuoperty, as well as certain contractual arramgygs, including licenses, and ot
proprietary intellectual property rights, have $igant value and are important to our continuedc&ss and our competitive position due to
their recognition by retailers and consumers. bt&ii 2014, 90% of our consolidated net sales wigtibutable to branded products for which
we own the trademark. Therefore, our success deperal significant degree on our ability to protatl preserve our intellectual property. We
rely on laws in the United States and other coastid protect our proprietary rights. However, waymot be able to sufficiently prevent third
parties from using our intellectual property withour authorization, particularly in those courgrighere the laws do not protect our
proprietary rights as fully as in the United StafEse use of our intellectual property or similatellectual property by others could reduce or
eliminate any competitive advantage we have deeelppausing us to lose sales or otherwise harmefhéation of our brands.

From time to time, we discover products that amenterfeit reproductions of our products or thateotvise infringe on our proprietary
rights. These activities typically increase as Hrestognition increases, especially in marketsidetfhe United States. Counterfeiting of our
brands could divert away sales, and associati@uobrands with inferior counterfeit reproducticmild adversely affect the integrity and
reputation of our brands.

Additionally, there can be no assurance that thiercthat we have taken will be adequate to preethrers from seeking to block
sales of our products as violations of proprietagits. As we extend our brands into new produttgaries and new product lines and expanc
the geographic scope of our distribution and mamgetve could become subject to litigation or chatje based on allegations of the
infringement of intellectual property rights oftthiparties. In the event a claim of infringemeraiagt us is successful or would otherwise a
our operations, we may be required to pay damagegailties or license fees or other costs to comtittuuse intellectual property rights that we
had been using, or we may be unable to obtain sapelicenses from third parties at a reasonalde amowithin a reasonable time. Litigation
and other legal action of this type, regardlessivéther it is successful, could result in substdmidsts to us and diversion of the attention of
our management and other resources.

Our business is subject to various federal, forejgtate and local laws and regulations, and the tsosf compliance with, or the violation of,
such laws and regulations could have an adverseeffon our costs or operation

In the United States, we are subject to stringmdards, laws and other regulations, includingéh®lating to health, product
performance and safety, labor, employment, privaay data security, anti-bribery, consumer protectiaxation, customs, logistics and similar
operational issues. In addition, operating in fongurisdictions, including those where we may aperetail stores, requires compliance with
similar laws and regulations. These laws and reguls, in the United States and abroad, are comgutexoften vary widely by jurisdiction,
making it difficult for us to ensure that we araremtly or will be in the future compliant with applicable laws and regulations. We may be
required to make significant expenditures or modifly business practices to comply with existindubure laws or regulations, and unfavorz
resolution to litigation or a violation of applidadaws and regulations by us, or any of our s@pplor licensees, may restrict our ability to
import
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products, lead to fines or otherwise increase oats; materially limit our ability to operate ourdiness or result in adverse publicity.

We rely on our product design teams and our venaogsisure that our products comply with regulatequirements. If our products
fail to comply with applicable regulations and stards, regardless of our culpability, or thereargtomer concerns about such issues, our
reputation may be damaged, we may incur lost saldfor we may need to recall products.

In addition, the restaurant industry requires coamale with a variety of federal, state and locglitations. In particular, all of our
Tommy Bahama restaurants serve alcohol and, therafmintain liquor licenses. Our ability to maintaur liquor licenses depends on our
compliance with applicable laws and regulationse Tdss of a liquor license would adversely afféet profitability of a restaurant.
Additionally, as a participant in the restaurartuistry, we face risks related to food quality, fdmane iliness, injury, health inspection scores
and labor relations.

Regardless of whether any allegations of violatiofthe laws and regulations governing our busiesssalid or whether we
ultimately become liable, we may be materially efiéel by negative publicity associated with thesads. For example, the negative impact of
adverse publicity relating to allegations of viddais at one of our restaurants may extend beyomdetaurant involved to affect some or all of
the other restaurants, as well as the image of tinemy Bahama brand as a whole.

Additionally, as a publicly traded company, we subject to a significant body of regulation, indhglthe Sarbane®xley Act and th
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiachict. Compliance with these regulations require$o devote time and management
resources to institute corporate processes andl@moe programs and to update these processesam@ms in response to newly
implemented or changing regulatory requirementscandd affect the manner in which we operate owilesses. We cannot provide assur.
that we are or will be in compliance with all paiafly applicable corporate regulations. We couddsibject to a range of regulatory actions,
fines or other sanctions or litigation or our braedutation could suffer, either as a result aiitufe to comply with any of these regulations or
our disclosures in response to these regulations.

Changes in tax laws and unanticipated tax liabi#s could adversely affect our effective income tate and profitability.

As a global apparel company, we are subject tonmrectaxes in the United States and various foreigadictions. We record our
income tax liability based on an analysis and prietation of local tax laws and regulations, whiejuires a significant amount of judgment
and estimation. In addition, we may from time tagimodify our operations in an effort to minimiagr global income tax exposure. Our
effective income tax rate in any particular perawdn future periods may be affected by a numbdactors, including among others a shift in
the mix of revenues, income and/or losses amongedtiorand international sources during a year er ayeriod of years; changes in tax laws
and regulations and/or international tax treaties;outcome of income tax audits in various judidns; and the resolution of uncertain tax
positions, any of which could adversely affect effective income tax rate and profitability.

Fluctuations and volatility in the cost and availdlty of raw materials, labor and freight may matiadly increase our costs.

We and our third party suppliers rely on the avaliy of raw materials at reasonable prices. Thagipal fabrics used in our business
are cotton, linens, wools, silk, other natural figesynthetics and blends of these materials. Ticegppaid for these fabrics depend on the
market price for raw materials used to produce tHemaddition, the cost of the materials that asediin our manufacturing process, such as o
related commodity prices and other raw materialshss dyes and chemicals, and other costs, cetmdle. In recent years, we have from time
to time seen increases in the costs of certaimmavterials, particularly cotton, as a result ofrrisdemand from the economic recovery, weathe
related supply disruptions, significant decline®iis. inventory and a sharp rise in the futuresketzfor cotton. We historically have not
entered into any futures contracts to hedge commpdies.

In addition, in recent years, we have seen inceeistihe cost of labor at many of our supplierstipalarly with the growth of the
middle class in certain countries, as well as éigft costs. In China, for example, apparel mariufacs have been experiencing increased
due to labor shortages and the fluctuation of then€se Yuan in relation to the U.S. dollar, andséhimcreased costs are often passed on to us

We believe that these cost pressures may not daatkd in the near future and could further insee@\lthough we attempt to mitig:
the effect of increases in our cost of goods dwidugh sourcing initiatives and by selectively gasing the prices of our products, these
product costing pressures, as well as other variatst pressures, may materially increase our,castswe may be unable to fully pass on t
costs to our customers.
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We may be unable to grow our business through orgagrowth and/or, if and when appropriate, acquigihs of lifestyle brands that fit
within our business model, and any failure to sussfully execute this aspect of our business strgtatpy have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, liquidity and sailts of operations.

One component of our business strategy is to gtavbasiness through organic growth and/or, if amernvappropriate, acquisitions
lifestyle brands that fit within our business madetganic growth may be achieved by, among othag#h increasing sales in our direct to
consumer channels; selling our products in new gtarkncluding international markets; increasing market share in existing markets,
including to existing wholesale customers; andeasing the product offerings within our variousrepieag groups. Successful growth of our
business is subject to, among other things, olityatnd implement plans for expanding our existimgsinesses at satisfactory levels and to find
suitable acquisition candidates at reasonable pircthe future, particularly in the current acdfios climate where desirable acquisition
candidates are garnering higher acquisition melsiphan in prior years; there are multiple comjvetibidders; there are competing bidders
may have more financial resources than us; anddh®etitive acquisition climate is further enhanbgahe relatively low cost of available
capital. We may not be successful in achievingaflit organic growth and/or growth through acquisgi and our inability to grow our
business may have a material adverse effect obuginess, financial condition, liquidity and resuf operations.

We may not be successful in identifying locationsdanegotiating appropriate lease terms for retaibees and restaurants and/or office
locations.

An integral part of our strategy has been to dgvelod operate retail stores and restaurants ftaioesf our lifestyle brands. Net sales
from our retail stores and restaurants were 47#%uotonsolidated net sales during Fiscal 2014 veméxpect to increase the number of our
retail stores during Fiscal 2015 and in future geltany of our retail stores and restaurants aratéal in shopping malls and lifestyle centers
that benefit from the ability of “anchor” retailrtants, generally large department stores, and atieerattractions and businesses, to generate
sufficient levels of consumer traffic in the vidipiof our stores and restaurants.

We lease all of our retail store and restaurardtions. Successful operation of our retail storesrastaurants depends, in part, on ou
ability to identify desirable, brand appropriatedtions, the overall ability of the location toratit a consumer base sufficient to make store
sales volume profitable, our ability to negotiaddisfactory lease terms and employ qualified parebrand our ability to timely construct and
complete any build-out and open the location iroagance with our plans. We compete with othergHese favorable store locations, lease
terms and desired personnel. If we are unableaiatify new locations with consumer traffic suffintedo support a profitable sales level or the
local market reception to a new retail store opgiigninconsistent with our expectations, retailvgiftomay be limited. Further, any decline in
the volume of consumer traffic at our retail stomesl restaurants, whether because of general eéoronditions, changes in consumer
shopping preferences or technology, a declinearptipularity of malls or lifestyle centers in gealear at those in which we operate, the
closing of anchor stores or other adjacent tenantstherwise, could have a negative impact onsales, gross margin, and results of
operations.

Our retail store and restaurant leases gegargresent long-term financial commitments, withstantial costs at lease inception for a
location’s design, leasehold improvements, fixtuaed systems installation. From time to time, wekse downsize or close some of our retail
store or restaurant operations, which may requimedification or termination of an existing leasagh actions may require payment of exit
fees and/or result in fixed asset impairment ctartiee amounts of which could be material.

In addition, our retail store and restaurant leggserally grant the third party landlord with distion on a number of operational
matters, such as store hours and constructionrdafrqarovements. Continued consolidation within tdoenmercial real estate development,
operation and/or management industries, which kas pbrevalent in recent years, may further reducéeverage with those parties, thereby
adversely affecting the terms of future lease®forretail stores and restaurants or making ergérnito long-term commitments with such
parties cost prohibitive.

During Fiscal 2015, we expect to relocate the curf@mmy Bahama sales and administration officesntather location within
Seattle, Washington. The process of relocatingfommy Bahama sales and administration officeshsriently complex, as it includes among
other things consolidation of Tommy Bahama’'s Worsddésign team from Pasadena, California into doeroSeattle, Washington design
functions and the transfer of our primary inforroattechnology systems to a third party co-locasailify, and could cause significant
disruption to our operations and cause the tempdalaersion of management resources, which coule lsamaterial adverse effect on our
business.
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In recent years, we have expanded our Tommy Bahatitact to consumer operations into international mets, and we anticipat
continuing to expand our Tommy Bahama internationaperations in the future; these efforts may not beccessful.

During the past three fiscal years, we have expéonde Tommy Bahama retail operations into inteovel markets, specifically in tl
Asia-Pacific region and in Canada. We continuetkIfor additional, brand-appropriate locationsretail stores in these markets, with
particular focus on Australia, Japan and Canadlaemear term. The continued development of ourmgrBahama international infrastructure
and related store openings has had, and will ceatio have, a negative impact on our operatingtsesatil we are able to adequately scale
infrastructure costs and generate sufficient saltisose operations to offset the ongoing infrastre costs.

We have limited experience with regulatory enviremts and market practices related to internaticetall store operations in the
Asia-Pacific region, and expanding our operatioris these territories requires significant cagitabstment and long-term commitments, and
there are risks associated with doing businedsaset markets, including lack of brand recognitionértain markets; understanding fashion
trends and satisfying consumer tastes; understgusiting and fitting in these markets; market ataege of our products, which is difficult to
assess immediately; establishing appropriate magetific operational and logistics functions; nging compliance with the various legal
requirements; staffing and managing foreign openati fluctuations in currency exchange rates; abtgigovernmental approvals that may be
required to operate; potentially adverse tax inglans; local regulations relating to employmend agtail and restaurant operations; and
maintaining proper levels of inventory. If we amable to properly manage these risks or if ouri@onal expansion efforts do not prove
successful, our business, financial condition asdiits of operations could continue to be negatiepacted.

In addition, as we continue to expand our inteorai Tommy Bahama operations, we are subject taiceginti-corruption laws,
including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Agstaddition to the local laws of the foreign couedrinto which we enter. If any of our
international operations, or our employees or agesidlates such laws, we could become subjedreatons or other penalties that could
negatively affect our reputation, business and atpey results.

In the future, we may elect to operate in certatarnational markets through joint ventures witindtiparties or distribution partners.
Any such arrangements are subject to a numbeskd end uncertainties, including our reliance @ndperational skill and expertise of a local
joint venture partner, the ability of the joint were to manage its employees and appropriatelyesgmt our brands in those markets, and
protective rights that we may be forced to grard joint venture partner, which could limit our liito fully realize the anticipated benefits of
such a relationship.

Our geographical concentration of retail stores ameholesale customers for certain of our productgpeses us to certain regional risks.

Our retail locations are heavily concentrated ifaie geographic areas in the United States, inetuélorida and California for our
Tommy Bahama retail stores (52 out of 133 domesstires in these states as of January 31, 2015)d&lr our Lilly Pulitzer retail stores
(nine out of 28 stores as of January 31, 2015) th@dnited Kingdom for our Ben Sherman retail ssof11 out of 21 stores as of January 31,
2015). Additionally, a significant portion of outhelesale sales for Tommy Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer &sth Sherman products are concentratec
in the same geographic areas as our own retaé Bioations for these brands. Due to this conctotrave have heightened exposure to fac
that impact these regions, including general ecanaonditions, weather patterns, natural disast#ranging demographics and other factors.

Our business could be harmed if we fail to maintgimoper inventory levels.

We schedule production from third party manufaasileased on our expectations for the demand fopmducts. However, we may
be unable to sell the products we have orderedvarce from manufacturers or that we have in ougritory, which may result in inventory
markdowns or the sale of excess inventory at disisaliprices and through off-price channels. Thesats could significantly harm our
operating results and impair the image of our bsa@bnversely, we may not be in a position to ogeity products from our manufacturers
in a timely manner and/or we may experience inugrngbortages as demand for our products increaggsh might result in unfilled orders,
negatively impact customer relationships, dimirbsaind loyalty and result in lost sales, any of wtgould harm our business.

Our international operations, including foreign sawging, result in an exposure to fluctuations in feign currency exchange rates.

As a result of our international operations, weefgosed to certain risks in conducting businessidel of the United States. The
substantial majority of our orders for the prodactof apparel in foreign countries is denominatetiS. dollars. If the value of the U.S. dollar
decreases relative to certain foreign currencigberfuture, then the prices that we negotiate for
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products could increase, and it is possible thatwweld not be able to pass this increase on tmousts, which would negatively impact our
margins. However, if the value of the U.S. dollareases between the time a price is set and payoremproduct, the price we pay may be
higher than that paid for comparable goods by cditgps that pay for goods in local currencies, #mese competitors may be able to sell their
products at more competitive prices. Additionatlyrrency fluctuations could also disrupt the busénef our independent manufacturers by
making their purchases of raw materials more experand difficult to finance.

We received U.S. dollars for approximately 90% woff product sales during Fiscal 2014. As we focusoreasing our Tommy
Bahama operations in foreign markets and contin®tirce our growing sales production from foreiganufacturers, we will have greater
exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange ra@asncrease in the value of the U.S. dollar coregdao other currencies in which we have
sales could result in lower levels of sales andiags in our consolidated statements of operatialtispugh the sales in foreign currencies ¢
be equal to or greater than amounts in prior psribdaddition, to the extent that a stronger d@lar increases costs, and the products are
in another currency, but the additional cost camopassed on to our customers, our gross mardinsemegatively impacted.

Labor-related matters, including labor disputes, may adsely affect our operations.

We may be adversely affected as a result of lalsmutles in our own operations or in those of tipiagties with whom we work. Our
business depends on our ability to source andhlisér products in a timely manner, and our newilrstare and restaurant growth is dependen
on timely construction of our locations. While we aot subject to any organized labor agreemertdiane historically enjoyed good
employee relations, there can be no assurancavthatill not experience work stoppages or other tgroblems in the future with our non-
unionized employees. In addition, potential labispdtes at independent factories where our goaglpraxduced, shipping ports, or
transportation carriers create risks for our bussnearticularly if a dispute results in work slamas, lockouts, strikes or other disruptions
during our peak manufacturing, shipping and seliegsons. For example, a severe and prolongegtiisrio ocean freight transportation,
such as the disruption to West Coast port operatidrich began in 2014 continued into 2015 duegoraworkers’ union dispute, could force
us to re-route our merchandise through alternaden@ore expensive transportation systems, suchr &®ight. Further, we plan our inventory
purchases and forecasts based on the anticipatedytof retail store and restaurant openings, whimlld be delayed as a result of a number ¢
factors, including labor disputes among contracémgaged to construct our locations. Any potetdiabr dispute, either in our own operations
or in those of third parties on whom we rely, conldterially affect our costs, decrease our saksntour reputation or otherwise negatively
affect our operations.

The acquisition of new businesses has certain indietr risks, including, for example, strains on ouranagement team and unexpected
acquisition costs.

From time to time, we acquire new businesses atymlines when we believe appropriate investmepbaunities are available. For
example during Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 2013, we iaeduhe Tommy Bahama-related businesses in Aist@ald Canada, respectively, from
our former licensees. As a result of acquisitians,may become responsible for unexpected liatslitiat we failed or were unable to discover
in the course of performing due diligence. Althowgh may be entitled to indemnification against softised liabilities from the sellers of the
acquired business, we cannot be certain that themnification, even if obtained, will be enforcemldollectible or sufficient in amount, scope
or duration to fully offset the possible liabilis@ssociated with the business or assets acqiinghf these liabilities, individually or in the
aggregate, could have a material adverse effeotiobusiness, financial condition and results afrapions.

In addition, integrating acquired businesses israglex, time-consuming and expensive process. fitegration process for newly
acquired businesses could create for us a numbradienges and adverse consequences associatetthevihtegration of product lines,
employees, sales teams and outsourced manufactemgptoyee turnover, including key management aedtive personnel of the acquired
existing businesses; disruption in product cyateskwly acquired product lines; maintenance oeptable standards, controls, procedures
policies; operating business in new geographidgtteies; diversion of the attention of our managatfeom other areas of our business; anc
impairment of relationships with customers of tkquired and existing businesses. Further, we mapaable to manage the combined
operations and assets effectively or realize thieipated benefits of the acquisition.

We hold licenses for the use of other parties’ bchnames, and we cannot guarantee our continued asuch brand names or the quality
or salability of such brand names.

We have entered into license and design agreertente certain trademarks and trade names, su€araseth Cole, Dockers and
Geoffrey Beene, to market some of our productsirguriscal 2014, sales of products bearing braicdsas$ed to us accounted for 6% of our
consolidated net sales and 54% of our Lanier Ciifet sales. When we enter into these license esidrdagreements, they generally provide
for short contract durations (typically three teefiyears); these agreements
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often include options that we may exercise to ektbe term of the contract but, when availables¢hoption rights are subject to our
satisfaction of certain contingencies (e.g., minimsales thresholds) that may be difficult for usatisfy. Competitive conditions for the right
to use popular trademarks means that we cannocagtegr that we will be able to renew these licensescceptable terms upon expiration, that
the terms of any renewal will not result in opargtmargin pressures or reduced profitability, @t tiie will be able to acquire new licenses to
use other desirable trademarks. The terminati@xpiration of a license agreement will cause Uusde the sales and any associated profits
generated pursuant to such license and in ceréai@sccould result in an impairment charge for eelattangible assets.

Our license agreements generally require us taweepproval from the brand’s owner of all desigwl @ther elements of the licensed
products we sell prior to production, as well aseiceive approval from the brand owner of distiifmuchannels in which we may sell and the
manner in which we market and distribute licensexdtipcts. Any failure by us to comply with theseuggments could result in the terminati
of the license agreement.

In addition to certain compliance obligations,albur significant licenses provide minimum threlgisdfor royalty payments and
advertising expenditures for each license yearchvhie must pay regardless of the level of our safi¢ise licensed products. If these thresh
are not met, our licensors may be permitted contedly to terminate these agreements or seek payafeninimum royalties even if the
minimum sales are not achieved. In addition, axarisors produce their own products and license tifaeiemarks to other third parties, and we
are unable to control the quality of these goods ¢tthers produce. If licensors or others do ndhtaa the quality of these trademarks or if
brand image deteriorates, or the licensors otheralisinge the parameters of design, pricing, digtdb or marketing, our sales and any
associated profits generated by such brands mdiyndec

We make use of debt to finance our operations, whéxposes us to risks that could adversely affagt lousiness, financial position and
operating results.

Our levels of debt vary as a result of the sea#graf our business, investments in our operatiamg working capital needs. As of
January 31, 2015, we had $104.8 million of borr@sioutstanding under our U.S. Revolving Credit &grent and $4.1 million in borrowings
outstanding under our U.K. Revolving Credit Agreatnén the future, our debt levels may increaseenmmair existing facilities or potentially
under new facilities, or the terms or forms of fimancing arrangements may change.

Our indebtedness includes, and any future indelktdmay include, certain obligations and limitagiancluding the periodic payme
of principal and interest, maintenance of certaivenants and certain other limitations. The negatiwenants in our debt agreements limit ou
ability to incur debt, guaranty certain obligatioirgur liens, pay dividends, repurchase commookstmake investments, including the ama
we may generally invest in, or use to support,fotgign operations, sell assets, make acquisitioresge with other companies, or satisfy othe
debt. These obligations and limitations may incee@sr vulnerability to adverse economic and industmditions, place us at a competitive
disadvantage compared to our competitors thateasmeléveraged and limit our flexibility in carryingt our business plan and planning for, or
reacting to, changes in the industry in which werage.

In addition, we have interest rate risk on indeb&=ss$ under our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreementlduikd Revolving Credit
Agreement. Our exposure to variable rate indebtesin®y increase in the future, based on our deélsland/or the terms of future financing
arrangements. An increase in interest rates mayreegs to pay a greater amount of our funds frperations towards interest, even if the
amount of borrowings outstanding remains the sa@mea result, we may have to revise or delay ouinass plans, reduce or delay capital
expenditures or otherwise adjust our plans for afpens.

The continued growth of our business, includingadbmpletion of potentially desirable acquisitioalso depends on our access to
sufficient funds. We typically rely on cash flowofm operations and borrowings under our U.S. Rengl@redit Agreement to fund our
working capital, capital expenditures and investhaativities. As of January 31, 2015, we had $128il8on in unused availability under our
U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement. If the need arisethe future to finance expenditures in excestho$e supported by our operations and
existing credit facilities, we may need to seekitioldal funding, whether through debt or equityaiiting. Our ability to obtain that financing
will depend on many factors, including prevailingnket conditions, our financial condition and, degieg on the sources of financing, our
ability to negotiate favorable terms and conditiofise terms of any such financing or our inabitdysecure such financing could adversely
affect our ability to execute our strategies.

Our operations may be affected by changes in weathaterns, natural or man-made disasters, war,r@ism or other catastrophes.
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Our sales volume and operations may be adversigtafl by unseasonable or severe weather conditiatigral or man-made
disasters, war, terrorist attacks, including hedgbt security measures and responsive militargragtor other catastrophes which may cause
consumers to alter their purchasing habits or tésw@ disruption to our operations. Because ofsémsonality of our business, the concentr:
of a significant proportion of our retail storeddamholesale customers in certain geographic regibesconcentration of our sourcing
operations and the concentration of our distributiperations, the occurrence of such events casftaportionately impact our business,
financial condition and operating results.

Our business could be impacted as a result of atsidy activist shareholders or others.

We may be subject, from time to time, to legal hodiness challenges in the operation of our complaeyto actions instituted by
activist shareholders or others. Responding to aatibns could be costly and time-consuming, mayatign with our business strategies and
could divert the attention of our Board of Direc@nd senior management from the pursuit of ounkas strategies. Perceived uncertaintis
to our future direction as a result of sharehokivism may lead to the perception of a changéérdirection of the business or other
instability and may make it more difficult to atttaand retain qualified personnel and businessipestand may affect our relationships with
vendors, customers and other third parties.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We lease and own space for our retail stores,loiigion centers, sales/administration office spaog manufacturing facilities in various
domestic and international locations. We beliexa# thur existing properties are well maintained,iargood operating condition and will be
adequate for our present level of operations.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter ieés¢ agreements for retail space. Most of thedaasgire us to pay specified minimum
rent, as well as a portion of operating expensad,astate taxes and insurance applicable to tpepy, plus a contingent rent based on a
percentage of the store's net sales in excesspddafic threshold. The leases have varying temdsexpirations and may have provisions to
extend, renew or terminate the lease agreementi@uotber terms and conditions. Assets leased wpating leases are not recognized as
assets and liabilities in our consolidated balastmets. Periodically, we assess the operatingtsesfubach of our retail stores and restaurar
assess whether the location provides, or is exgdotprovide, an appropriate long-term return aresiment, whether the location remains
brand appropriate and other factors. As a resutisfassessment, we may determine that it is @piatte to close certain stores that do not
continue to meet our investment criteria, not regewain leases, exercise an early terminatioronptir otherwise negotiate an early
termination. For existing leases in desirable liocest, we anticipate that we will be able to extend retail leases, to the extent that they expire
in the near future, on terms that are satisfadiorys, or if necessary, locate substitute propedieacceptable terms. We also believe that thel
are sufficient retail spaces available for the Tardd expansion of our retail store footprint ie trear future.

As of January 31, 2015, our retail and restauspetations utilized approximately 0.9 million squéeet of leased space in the United
States, the United Kingdom, Canada, Australia, Asid continental Europe. Each of our retail staresrestaurants is less than 20,000 squar
feet, and we do not believe that we are depend®nt any individual retail store or restaurant lamafor our business operations. Our Tommy
Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer and Ben Sherman retail staxee operated by the respective management ofopachting group, and greater detail
about the retail space used by each operating gsanpluded in Part |, Item 1, Business includedhiis report.

As of January 31, 2015ve also utilized approximately 1.1 million squéeet of owned or leased distribution and manuféogufacilities
in the United States and Mexico and approximatelyniillion square feet of leased and owned admatise and sales space in various
locations, including the United States, the Unk&agdom, Hong Kong, Germany and China. In additioour owned distribution facilities, v
may utilize certain third party warehouse/distribntproviders where we do not own or lease anyepaar distribution, manufacturing,
administrative and sales facilities provide spazesmployees and functions used in support of etailf wholesale and esmmerce operatior
Details of the principal administrative, salestrilisition and manufacturing facilities used in aperations, including approximate square
footage, are as follows:
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Square Lease

Location Primary Use Operating Group Footage  Expiration

Seattle, Washington Sales/administration TommiyaBza 80,00C 2015 (1
Auburn, Washington Distribution center Tommy Bahama 270,00( 2025
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania Sales/administratldlty Pulitzer 40,00( Owned
King of Prussia, Pennsylvania Distribution center Lilly Pulitzer 65,00( Owned
Toccoa, Georgia Distribution center  Lanier Clathe 310,00t Owned
Merida, Mexico Manufacturing planiLanier Clothes 80,00( Owned
London, England Sales/administration Ben Sherman 20,00( 2024
Lurgan, Northern Ireland Sales/administratiorBen Sherman 10,00( Owned
Atlanta, Georgia Sales/administration Corporaig @ther and Lanier Clothes 30,00( 2023
Lyons, Georgia Sales/administratior Corporate and Other and Ben Sherm: 90,00( Owned
Lyons, Georgia Distribution center  Corporate @éitler and Ben Sherman 330,00( Owned
New York, New York Sales/administratior Various 35,00( Various
Hong Kong Sales/administration Various 20,00( Various

(1) As of January 31, 2015, we have entered inemgear lease for approximately 110,000 squaeifeSeattle, Washington for our Tommy
Bahama operations to replace the current Tommy Balsales and administration office located in Ssat¥ashington.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are a party to litigation ardulatory actions arising in the ordinary cowsbusiness. We are not currently a
party to litigation or regulatory actions, or awafeany proceedings contemplated by governmentalbaities, that we believe could reasone
be expected to have a material impact on our fil@hposition, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relat&lockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equigcurities
Market and Dividend Information

Our common stock is listed and traded on the Nevkatock Exchange under the symbol "OXM." As of Btad8, 2015, there were 3
record holders of our common stock. The followiablé sets forth the high and low sale prices aratguend closing prices of our common
stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchangéhf quarters indicated. Additionally, the tabiidicates the dividends per share declared
on shares of our common stock by our Board of Damscfor each quarter.

High Low Close Dividends

Fiscal 2014

First Quarter $ 82.8. % 64.17 $ 65.7¢ $ 0.21

Second Quarter $ 7265 % 58.5: $ 59.3¢ $ 0.21

Third Quarter $ 66.1¢ $ 58.11 % 61.2t $ 0.21

Fourth Quarter $ 67.1: $ 50.1¢ $ 55.9¢ $ 0.21
Fiscal 2013

First Quarter $ 60.71 % 42.1¢ % 60.61 $ 0.1¢

Second Quarter $ 69.0¢ $ 57.8¢ $ 68.2( $ 0.1¢

Third Quarter $ 7225 $ 61.1C $ 69.8¢ $ 0.1¢

Fourth Quarter $ 82.1¢ $ 69.62 $ 75.47 $ 0.1¢

We have paid dividends in each quarter since warbhea public company in July 1960; however, we diagontinue or modify
dividend payments at any time if we determine dihéer uses of our capital, including payment ostariding debt, repurchases of outstandinc
shares, funding of acquisitions or funding of calpixpenditures, may be in our best interest; ifegpectations of future cash flows and future
cash needs outweigh the ability to pay a dividemdf the terms of our credit facilities, other détstruments, contingent consideration
arrangements or applicable law limit our abilitypay dividends. We may borrow to fund dividendshie short-term based on our expectation
of operating cash flows in future periods subjedtie terms and conditions of our credit facilittesother debt instruments and applicable law.
All cash flow from operations will not necessatlyg paid out as dividends in all periods.

For details about limitations on our ability to pdiyidends, see Note 5 of our consolidated findrateements and Part II, Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanataddtion and Results of Operations, both containddlis report.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
We did not sell any unregistered equity securifiesng Fiscal 2014 .
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

We have certain stock incentive plans as desciib&bbte 7 to our consolidated financial statemémttuded in this report, all of which
are publicly announced plans. Under the plans,amerepurchase shares from employees to cover eaglax liabilities related to the vesting
of previously restricted shares. We did not repasehany of our common shares pursuant to these glaing the fourth quarter of Fiscal
2014 .

In Fiscal 2012, our Board of Directors authorizeda spend up to $50 million to repurchase sharesiocommon stock. This
authorization superseded and replaced all pre\aatisorizations to repurchase shares of our comiomk sind has no automatic expiration. As
of January 31, 2015, no shares of our common stadkoeen repurchased pursuant to this authonizatio

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required by this Item 5 of Parvill appear in our definitive proxy statement untteg heading "Equity Compensation
Plan Information" and is incorporated herein byerefice.
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Stock Price Performance Graph

The graph below reflects cumulative total sharedotdturn (assuming an initial investment of $104 the reinvestment of dividends)
our common stock compared to the cumulative tetairn for a period of five years, beginning Janu@0y2010 and ending January 31, 2015,
of:

* The S&P SmallCap 600 Index; ¢

* The S&P 500 Apparel, Accessories and Luxury G¢

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
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—— Oxford Industries, Inc
—l— S&P SmallCap 600 Index
—k— S&P 500 Apparel, Accessories & Luxury Goods
INDEXED RETURNS
Base Years Ending
Period
Company / Index 1/30/2010 1/29/201: 1/28/201. 2/2/201! 2/1/201: 1/31/201!
Oxford Industries, Inc. 100 136.27 285.1¢ 290.9' 447 .4t 336.2¢
S&P SmallCap 600 Index 100 130.07 141.6¢ 164.3¢ 208.8! 221.6¢
S&P 500 Apparel, Accessories & Luxury Goods 100 137.4( 196.2( 182.3¢ 211.6: 219.3¢

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Our selected financial data included in the talgielw reflects (1) the results of operations foht Pulitzer subsequent to its acquisition
date of December 21, 2010 and (2) the divestitiisubstantially all of the operations and assesunfformer Oxford Apparel operations in
Fiscal 2010, resulting in those operations beiagsified as discontinued operations for all perjp@sented. Unless otherwise indicated, all
references to assets, liabilities, revenues andresgs included in this report reflect continuingragpions and do not include any amounts
related to the discontinued operations.
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Fiscal 201 Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 201! Fiscal 201: Fiscal 201(
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales $ 997.¢ $ 917.1 % 855.L $ 758.¢ $ 603.¢
Cost of goods sold 443.1 403. 386.( 345.¢ 276.t
Gross profit 554.% 513.¢ 469.5 413.( 327.¢
SG&A 488.¢ 447.¢ 410.7 358.€ 302.(
Change in fair value of contingent

consideration 0.3 0.2 6.3 2.4 0.2
Royalties and other operating income 18.1 19.C 16.4 16.¢ 15.4
Operating income 83.t 84.7 69.C 68.¢ 40.7
Loss on repurchase of senior notes — — (9.2 (9.0 —
Interest expense, net 3.5 4.2 8.€ 16.2 19.¢
Earnings from continuing operations before

income taxes 80.1 80.t 50.¢ 43.t 20.¢
Income taxes 34.4 35.2 19.€ 14. 4.t
Earnings from continuing operations 45.¢ 452 31.2 29.2 16.2

Earnings, including gain on sale in Fiscal
2010, from discontinued operations, net of

taxes = — — 0.1 62.4
Net earnings $ 45.€ $ 452 % 31 $ 29.4 $ 78.7
Diluted earnings from continuing operations

per share $ 2.7¢ $ 2.7¢ $ 1.8¢ $ 177 $ 0.9¢

Diluted earnings, including gain on sale in
Fiscal 2010, from discontinued operations per

share, including the gain on sale $ —$ —$ — $ 0.01 $ 3.71
Diluted net earnings per share $ 2.7¢ $ 2.7 $ 1.8¢ $ 1.7¢ $ 4.7¢
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 16.5 16.t 16.€ 16.5 16.€
Dividends declared and paid $ 13¢$ 11 $ 9< % 8.€ $ 7.2
Dividends declared and paid per share $ 0.84% 0.7z $ 0.6C $ 05z $ 0.4¢
Total assets, at period-end $ 645.1 $ 627.2 $ 556.1 $ 509.2 $ 558.t
Long-term debt at period-end $ 104.¢ $ 137.¢ $ 108.¢ $ 103.2 $ 147.1
Shareholders' equity, at period-end $ 290.€ $ 260.2 $ 229.¢ $ 204.1 $ 180.(
Net cash provided by operating activities  $ 954 % 52.7 % 67.1 $ 442 $ 35.7
Capital expenditures $ 50.4 $ 43.4 % 60.7 $ 35.: % 13.2
Depreciation and amortization included in

earnings from continuing operations $ 37€% 33.¢ % 26.2 $ 272 $ 19.2
Stock compensation expense included in

earnings from continuing operations $ 41 % 1.7 % 2¢ $ 22 $ 4.t
LIFO accounting charges included in earnings

from continuing operations $ 219% —$ 4C $ 5.8 $ 3.6
Book value per share at period-end $ 17.6¢ $ 158t $ 13.8t $ 12.3t $ 10.9(

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinaatiCondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our operet, cash flows, liquidity and capital resourckesidd be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements contained inrép®rt.

OVERVIEW

We generate revenues and cash flow primarily thiaug design, sourcing, marketing and distributtbbranded apparel products
bearing the trademarks of our owned lifestyle bsaad well as certain licensed and private labeheg
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products. We distribute our products through oweatito consumer distribution channels, including @tail stores, e-commerce sites and
restaurants, and our wholesale distribution chanvtekh includes better department stores, spgcidires, national chains, warehouse clubs,
mass merchants and Internet retailers. In Fischd 20nore than 90% of our consolidated net salee teecustomers located in the United
States, with the sales outside the United Stafesapity being sales of our Ben Sherman producthénUnited Kingdom and continental
Europe as well as sales of our Tommy Bahama predadc@anada and the Asia-Pacific region. We sosutstantially all of our products
through third party manufacturers located outsitihe United States.

Our business strategy is to develop and market etimg lifestyle brands and products that evokérang emotional response from 1
target consumers. We believe that lifestyle bramteducts that create an emotional connection @otilsumers can command greater custc
loyalty and higher price points at retail, resudtin higher earnings. We also believe a succe$ffgtyle brand opens up greater opportunities
for full-price direct to consumer operations ashasllicensing opportunities in product categoliegond our core business. We strive to
exploit the potential of our existing brands anddurcts and, as suitable opportunities arise, we awguire additional lifestyle brands that we
believe fit within our business model.

We operate in highly competitive domestic and iméional markets in which numerous U.S.-based arglgn apparel firms compete.
No single apparel firm or small group of appareh dominates the apparel industry and our congustitary by operating group a
distribution channel. We believe that the princigainpetitive factors in the apparel industry aeréputation, value and image of brand na
design; consumer preference; price; quality; mamgetnd customer service. We believe that ouiitghid compete successfully in design and
marketing is directly related to our proficiencyfareseeing changes and trends in fashion and omrspreference, and presenting appealing
products for consumers. In some instances, aeethiht is our customer may compete with us byriwf@ecertain of its own or other
competitor's products in its retail stores. Additdly, the apparel industry is cyclical and depenidgon the overall level of discretionary
consumer spending, which changes as regional, danaesl international economic conditions changiée!@ negative economic conditions
have a longer and more severe impact on the appdrgtry than these conditions have on other itiiss

We believe the global economic conditions and taspukeconomic uncertainty that have prevailed terg years continue to impact
each of our operating groups, and the apparel tndas a whole. Although some signs of economicrowements exist, the apparel retail
environment remains increasingly promotional anmheenic uncertainty remains. We anticipate thatssafeour products may continue to be
impacted negatively as long as the retail appargrenment remains promotional and there is anattl/level of economic uncertainty in the
geographies in which we operate. Additionally, ve@dabeen impacted in recent years by pricing pressan raw materials, transportation,
labor and other costs necessary for the produetighsourcing of apparel products, most of whicheappo be permanent cost increases.

We believe that our Tommy Bahama® and Lilly Puli@difestyle brands have significant opportunitfes long-term growth in their
direct to consumer businesses through expansioanrafetail store operations, as we add additiogialilrstore locations and increase
comparable store sales, and higher sales in conenerce operations, which are likely to grow &sder rate than comparable brick and mu
retail store sales. We also believe that thesstjife brands provide an opportunity for moderatessancreases in their wholesale businesses i
the long-term primarily from current customers auigio their existing door count and the selectidédition of new wholesale customers who
generally follow a full-price retail model. We baelie that we must continue to invest in our Tommiad@aa and Lilly Pulitzer lifestyle brands
in order to take advantage of their long-term groapportunities. Investments include capital exjteinels primarily related to the direct to
consumer operations such as retail store buildandtremodels, technology enhancements and distiboénter and administrative office
expansion initiatives, as well as increased empttradvertising and other costs in key functiansupport the ongoing business operations
and fuel future net sales growth. We expect thairtiestments may continue to put downward pressuii@ur operating margins in the near
future until we have sufficient sales to leverdge dperating costs.

We believe that there are opportunities for modekts growth for Lanier Clothes through new progwograms; however, we also
believe that the tailored clothing environment widntinue to be very challenging, which we beliaxi negatively impact net sales, operating
income and operating margin, particularly in thamterm. On March 24, 2015, our Board of Direceughorized our management to pursue a
sale of the Ben Sherman business. We have engdaggaco, Ltd. as our financial advisor to assighimtransaction process. We plan to
continue to operate the Ben Sherman business dilmngrocess, and although we expect to complstdéeawithin Fiscal 2015 no specific
timetable has been set for consummation of a tcdiosa There can be no assurance that a transaatilotake place, and our Board of
Directors may consider other alternatives for tlem Bherman business that it believes are in thdriiesest of shareholders.
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We continue to believe that it is important to ntain a strong balance sheet and liquidity. We kelitat positive cash flow from
operations in the future coupled with the streraftbur balance sheet and liquidity will providewish sufficient resources to fund future
investments in our lifestyle brands. While we bedi¢hat we have significant opportunities to appedply deploy our capital and resources in
our existing lifestyle brands, in the future, weynadso add additional lifestyle brands to our palitf if we identify appropriate targets which
meet our investment criteria.

The following table sets forth our consolidatedmapiag results (in thousands, except per share atapfor Fiscal 2014 compared to
Fiscal 2013 :

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Net sales $ 997,80t $ 917,09
Operating income $ 83,60: $ 84,67(
Net earnings $ 45,75¢ $ 45,29
Net earnings per diluted share $ 2.7¢ $ 2.7
The primary reasons for the higher net earningSsnal 2014 were:
. Higher operating income in Lilly Pulitzer redolj from higher net sales and gross margins pbriidiset by higher SG&A
associated with expanding operations;
. Improved operating results in Ben Sherman primatilg to increased net sales partially offset byelogross margin and low
royalty income;
. Lower income taxes primarily reflecting a loweresffive tax rate; ar
. Lower interest expens
These favorable items were partially offset by:
. A larger operating loss in Corporate and Otledlecting higher incentive compensation, an unfafste LIFO accounting

charge and lower Oxford Golf sales in Fiscal 2@¢Hile Fiscal 2013 included a gain on the sale pfaperty and the benefit
certain favorable changes in accruals; and

. Lower operating income in Tommy Bahama refleglimwer gross margin and higher SG&A associatetl thie expanding
operations, partially offset by the impact of highet sales and higher royalty income.

OPERATING GROUPS

Our business primarily operates through our fowsrapng groups: Tommy Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer, Larf@othes and Ben Sherman.
We identify our operating groups based on the wayneanagement organizes the components of ourdsssior purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance. Our opegating structure reflects a brand-focused manageammbach, emphasizing operational
coordination and resource allocation across eaghds direct to consumer, wholesale and licenspegations. For a description of each of our
operating groups, see Part |, Item 1. Businesd\antd 2 to our consolidated financial statementth bwcluded in this report.

COMPARABLE STORE SALES

We often disclose comparable store sales in oodprdvide additional information regarding changesur results of operations
between periods. Our disclosures of comparable s@les include net sales from full-price stores@ur e-commerce sites, excluding sales
associated with e-commerce flash clearance saledaleve that the inclusion of both our full-prgteres and e-commerce sites in the
comparable store sales disclosures is a more ngfahimay of reporting our comparable store salessilits, given similar inventory planning,
allocation and return policies, as well as our si@%annel marketing and other initiatives for theedirto consumer channel. For our compa
store sales disclosures, we exclude (1) outlee Hales, warehouse sales and e-commerce flashroteagales, as those sales are used primar
to liquidate end of season inventory, which may\sgnificantly depending on the level of end ohsen inventory on hand and generally
occur at lower gross margins than our full-priceedi to consumer sales, and (2) restaurant salege alo not currently believe that the
inclusion of restaurant sales is meaningful in ssisg our consolidated results of operations. Coaipa store sales information reflects net
sales, including shipping and handling revenueanyf, associated with product sales.

For purposes of our disclosures, we consider a aoalye store to be, in addition to our e-commeites,sa physical full-price retail
store that was owned and open as of the beginditigegrior fiscal year and which did not have dgrthe
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relevant periods, and is not within the currentdisyear scheduled to, have, (1) a remodel resgyiitithe store being closed for an extended
period of time (which we define as a period of tmeeks or longer), (2) a greater than 15% changeeisize of the retail space due to
expansion or reduction, (3) a relocation to a npace that was significantly different from the prietail space, or (4) a closing or opening of
Tommy Bahama restaurant adjacent to the retaib skeor those stores which are excluded from conpestores based on the preceding
sentence, the stores continue to be excluded fomparable store sales until the criteria for a stare is met subsequent to the remodel,
relocation or restaurant closing or opening. Gdhera store that is remodeled will continue toibeluded in our comparable store metrics as
store is not typically closed for a two week perthding a remodel. However, a store that is rekxtaenerally will not be included in our
comparable store metrics until that store has lopem in the relocated space for the entirety optier fiscal year as the size or other
characteristics of the store typically change digaitly from the prior location. Additionally, arstores that were closed during the prior fiscal
year or current fiscal year, or which we plan tosel or vacate in the current fiscal year, are ebardifrom the definition of comparable stor

Definitions and calculations of comparable stolesdiffer among retail companies, and thereforagarable store metrics disclosed
by us may not be comparable to the metrics disdlbgeother companies.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the specified litenis in our consolidated statements of operatiotis i dollars (in thousands) and as a
percentage of net sales. We have calculated aleptages based on actual data, but percentagert®lmay not add due to rounding.

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Net sales $ 997,80t 100.% $ 917,09 100.(% $ 855,54: 100.(%
Cost of goods sold 443,12 44.06 403,52 44.(%  385,98! 45.1%
Gross profit 554,67¢ 55.€% 513,57 56.(% 469,55 54.%
SG&A 488,92« 49.(% 447,64 48.8% 410,73 48.(%
Change in fair value of contingent

consideration 27¢ —% 27t —% 6,28¢ 0.7%
Royalties and other operating income 18,12 1.8% 19,01¢ 2.1% 16,43¢ 1.9%
Operating income 83,60: 8.4% 84,67( 9.2% 68,97 8.1%
Interest expense, net 3,48: 0.2% 4,16¢ 0.5% 8,93¢ 1.C%
Loss on repurchase of senior notes — —% — —% 9,14: 1.1%
Earnings before income taxes 80,12( 8.C% 80,50 8.8% 50,88¢ 5.8%
Income taxes 34,36: 3.4% 35,21( 3.8% 19,57 2.2%
Net earnings $ 45,75¢ 4.6%$% 45,29: 4% $ 31,31 3.7%

FISCAL 2014 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2013

The discussion and tables below compare certagnitétms included in our consolidated statementgpefations for Fiscal 2014 to
Fiscal 2013, each of which included 52 weeks. Efdlar and percentage change provided reflectshh@ge between these periods unless
indicated otherwise. Each dollar and share amawtaded in the tables is in thousands except foshare amounts. Individual line items of
our consolidated statements of operations may edlifectly comparable to those of our competitassglassification of certain expenses may

vary by company.

Net Sales
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Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change

Tommy Bahama $ 627,49¢ $ 584,94: $ 42,55 7.2%
Lilly Pulitzer 167,73t 137,94: 29,79: 21.€%
Lanier Clothes 112,93: 109,53( 3,40¢ 3.1%
Ben Sherman 77,48 67,21¢ 10,263 15.2%
Corporate and Other 12,157 17,46¢ (5,309 (30.9H%
Total $ 997,80¢ $ 917,09" $ 80,70¢ 8.8%

Consolidated net sales increased 8.8% reflectiagéh sales increases in all operating groupsatigréiffset by lower sales in
Corporate and Other, each as discussed below.dfuath direct to consumer sales grew at a fageethan wholesale sales, net sales in the
direct to consumer channel of distribution représegm greater percentage of consolidated net datésy Fiscal 2014 as presented below:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Full price retail stores and outlets 4C% 40%
E-commerce 14% 12%
Restaurant 7% 7%
Wholesale 3% 41%
Total 10C% 10C%

Tommy Bahama:

The Tommy Bahama net sales increase of 7.3% wasaply driven by (1) an incremental net sales iaseeof $21.8 million
associated with the operation of additional retttes, including the Canadian retail stores aeduin the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2013, (2) &
$9.9 million, or 4%, increase in comparable stales which includes full-price retail stores anl-price e-commerce sales, to $288.6 million
in Fiscal 2014 from $278.7 million in Fiscal 201@) a $6.4 million increase in wholesale salekeoting higher levels of off-price wholesale
sales in Fiscal 2014 and the inclusion of the wéalke sales of Tommy Bahama Canada for the full eBiscal 2014, (4) $4.6 million of
additional e-commerce flash clearance sales raguhi $8.1 million for the fiscal year, and (5) &4 million increase in restaurant sales
primarily resulting from higher sales in existirgstaurants. These increases in net sales werallyanffset by a $3.3 million decrease in net
sales in outlet stores which were operated duriingf &iscal 2013 and Fiscal 2014.

As of January 31, 2015, we operated 157 Tommy Bahstores globally, consisting of 101 full-pricéaikestores, 15 restaurangtail
locations and 41 outlet stores. As of February0l42, we operated 141 Tommy Bahama stores corgsistifil full-price retail stores, 14
restaurant-retail locations and 36 outlet storé® fbllowing table presents the proportion of radés by distribution channel for Tommy
Bahama for each period presented:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Full price retail stores and outlets 50% 51%
E-commerce 14% 13%
Restaurant 10% 10%
Wholesale 26% 26%
Total 10C% 10C%
Lilly Pulitzer:

The Lilly Pulitzer net sales increase of 21.6%eets an increase in each channel of distributioluding (1) an $11.1 million, or
19%, increase in comparable store sales, to $7idmin Fiscal 2014 compared to $59.0 millionkiscal 2013, (2) an incremental net sales
increase of $8.9 million associated with retaikstoopened in Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2014, (3) aregse in e-commerce flash clearance sales
$5.2 million to $16.7 million and (4) a $4.5 miltiancrease in wholesale sales. As of January 315 2Wve operated 28 Lilly Pulitzer retail
stores compared to 23 retail stores as of FebLia2@14 . The following table presents the proportf net sales by distribution channel for
Lilly Pulitzer for each period presented:
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Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Full price retail stores 34% 32%
E-commerce 28% 25%
Wholesale 38% 43%
Total 100% 10C%

Lanier Clothes:

The Lanier Clothes net sales increase of 3.1% wataply due to a $3.5 million increase in net salethe private label business,
with branded sales generally being comparable lexti#éscal 2014 and Fiscal 2018he increase in the private label business wiaemlby ar
increase in the pants program for a warehouseatlatomer, which began in the Fourth Quarter ofd@i2013 and more than offset decreas
other private label programs. The decreases iotther private label programs was primarily dueotwdr volume and the exit from some
seasonal and replenishment programs.

Ben Shermar

The Ben Sherman net sales increase of 15.3% phnmasiulted from (1) an increase in wholesale safe®t.2 million, substantially
all of which is related to increased off-price sadssociated with the liquidation of certain ageantory, (2) a $3.1 million increase in retail
store sales reflecting comparable store salesaseseand the net impact of store openings andrelosince the start of Fiscal 2013, (3) $2.2
million of higher sales resulting from the translatimpact of a change in the average exchangebedteeen the British pound sterling and the
United States dollar reflecting a 4% stronger postedling in Fiscal 2014 and (4) an $0.8 millioor@ase in e-commerce sales. As of
January 31, 2015, we operated 21 Ben Shermamhsttags, consisting of 12 full-price retail stossl nine outlet stores. As of February 1,
2014 we operated 17 Ben Sherman retail storesjstimysof 11 full-price stores and six outlets. Th#owing table presents the proportion of
net sales by distribution channel for Ben Shernwaireich period presented:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Direct to Consumer 45% 46%
Wholesale 55% 54%
Total 10(% 100%

Corporate and Other:

Corporate and Other net sales primarily consishefmet sales of our Oxford Golf business and guamts, Georgia distribution cent
as well as the impact of the elimination of interrpany sales between our operating groups. Theaseiin sales of 30.4% was primarily due
to (1) a reduction in Oxford Golf's private labales, (2) a significant initial shipment of an Oxddsolf branded program in Fiscal 2013 that
did not anniversary in Fiscal 2014 and (3) a larggavorable impact of the elimination of inter-quamy sales of Lanier Clothes to Ben
Sherman in Fiscal 2014 .

Gross Profit

The table below presents gross profit by operagiogip and in total for Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 28%3vell as the change between
those two periods. Our gross profit and gross marghich is calculated as gross profit divided ley sales, may not be directly comparable to
those of our competitors, as statement of opemsiitassification of certain expenses may vary bymany.
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Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change

Tommy Bahama $ 377,41 $ 358,93( $ 18,48¢ 5.2%
Lilly Pulitzer 106,31 84,84: 21,47: 25.2%
Lanier Clothes 30,70¢ 30,55: 152 0.5%
Ben Sherman 36,73( 32,09¢ 4,63¢ 14.4%
Corporate and Other 3,51 7,15 (3,640 NM
Total gross profit $ 554,67¢ $ 513,57 $ 41,10¢ 8.C%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ 2,131 % (27)

Inventory step-up charge included in Tommy Bahasseiated

with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ — $ 707

The increase in consolidated gross profit was milndue to the higher net sales as discussed aloagldition to the impact of
higher net sales, gross profit on a consolidateistand for each operating group was impacted bp@bs in sales mix and gross margin wi
each operating group, as discussed below. The balidev presents gross margin by operating groupratamtal for Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal
2013.

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Tommy Bahama 60.1% 61.4%
Lilly Pulitzer 63.4% 61.5%
Lanier Clothes 27.2% 27.%%
Ben Sherman 47.8% 47.71%
Corporate and Other NM NM
55.€% 56.(%

Consolidated gross margin

On a consolidated basis, gross margin decreasedipiy as a result of lower gross margin in TomngahBma and Lanier Clothes as
well as the $2.1 million net unfavorable impacttfO accounting in Fiscal 2014 as compared to Fi20a3 . These unfavorable items were
partially offset by (1) improved gross margins itly_Pulitzer, (2) the favorable impact of a gregpeoportion of net sales being from our dir
to consumer channels of distribution and (3) Fig€dl3 including a $0.7 million inventory step-upale associated with the Tommy Bahama
Canada acquisition with no inventory step-up chamdgeiscal 2014 . We do not anticipate any futurarges for inventory step-up beyond
Fiscal 2013 related to this acquisition.

Tommy Bahama:

The lower gross margin at Tommy Bahama primarifiected a change in sales mix with outlet storespmmerce flash clearance
sales and off-price wholesale sales representgrgater proportion of Tommy Bahama's net saled@mer gross margins in our outlet store, €
commerce flash clearance and wholesale sales.oler gross margins in our outlet stores resultechfmore in-outlet store discounts in order
to move excess spring inventory and drive traffite decrease in wholesale gross margins primadylted from more significant discounts
certain wholesale sales as well as a larger anafuwff-price wholesale sales. Fiscal 2013 include®D.7 million inventory step-up charge
associated with the Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition

Lilly Pulitzer:

The higher gross margin in Lilly Pulitzer was prihadriven by (1) a change in sales mix toward direct to consumer channel of
distribution, which typically has higher gross maggthan the wholesale channel of distribution, @)chigher gross margins in both the direct
to consumer and wholesale channels of distribufitye. higher gross margins in the direct to consumsiness reflects less promotional
activity. These favorable items were partially effby the gross margin impact of the increasednmmerce flash clearance sales in Fiscal
2014 .

Lanier Clothes:
The lower gross margin for Lanier Clothes was prilmaue to a change in sales mix with private lgiregrams representing a

greater proportion of net sales of Lanier Clotli$rate label programs, including a warehouse pltits program, generally have lower gross
margins than branded product programs.
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Ben Shermar

The lower gross margin at Ben Sherman reflectgladniproportion off-price sales which generally évéower gross margins, and
more significant inventory markdowns.

Corporate and Other:

The gross profit in Corporate and Other in eacliodgsrimarily reflects (1) the gross profit of oOxford Golf and Lyons, Georgia
distribution center operations, (2) the impact t#@Q accounting adjustments and (3) the impact dhoeconsolidating adjustments, including
the elimination of inter-company sales betweenaperating groups. The lower gross profit for Cogterand Other was primarily due to the
impact of the lower sales as well as the the $2lllomnet unfavorable impact of LIFO accountingkiscal 2014 as compared to Fiscal 2013 .

SG&A

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
SG&A 488,92 447,64! $ 41,27¢ 9.2%
SG&A (as a % of net sales) 49.(% 48.8%
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 1,76¢ % 1,37

The increase in SG&A was primarily due to (1) higbests to support the growing Tommy Bahama anlgt Billlitzer businesses,
including increased employment expense, infraaiireatosts and advertising expense, (2) $13.7 mithioincremental costs associated with
additional Tommy Bahama retail stores and restasi@md Lilly Pulitzer stores, (3) $7.5 million efdreased incentive compensation, primarily
reflecting increases in Lilly Pulitzer, CorporatedaDther and Tommy Bahama, (4) $2.4 million of &ddal equity-based compensation
primarily resulting from equity awards granted isdal 2014 and (5) a $1.8 million unfavorable SG&#pact resulting from currency
translation at Ben Sherman as a result of the gé&mopound sterling.

SG&A included $2.5 million of amortization of intgibble assets in Fiscal 2014 compared to $2.2 miliioFiscal 2013 , with the
increase primarily due to the Tommy Bahama Canadaisition in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2013. Alcipate that amortization of
intangible assets for Fiscal 2015 will be approxeha$2.1 million, with approximately $1.6 milliaof the amortization related to amortization
of the intangible assets acquired as part of tharfip Bahama Canada acquisition.

Change in fair value of contingent consideration

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change

Change in fair value of contingent consideratiazitided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ 27 $ 27t $ — —%

In connection with our acquisition of the Lilly Rzkr brand and operations in Fiscal 2010, we exdtérto a contingent consideration
agreement with the sellers, whereby we would bgyated to pay certain contingent consideration amwhbased on Lilly Pulitzer's
achievement of certain earnings targets. In accmelavith GAAP, we have recognized a liability ir @onsolidated balance sheets for the fai
value of this liability at each balance sheet d&enerally, such a liability increases in fair vahs we approach the date of anticipated pay
resulting in a charge to our consolidated statemmehbperations during that period. Further, ifdetermine that the probability of the amounts
being earned changes, it would impact our assegsrhére fair value in our consolidated balancestheesulting in a charge or income in our
consolidated statement of operations at that tithas, change in fair value of contingent considenateflects the current period impact of the
change in the fair value of any contingent consitien obligations.

The charge in Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013 for chandair value of contingent consideration prirhareflects the passage of time as we
approach the anticipated payments as there wer@nyatignificant changes related to our assumptielased to the fair value of the contingent
consideration during either year. As the amoundge&zed in our January 31, 20&6nsolidated balance sheet reflects the full amtaube pait
for the contingent consideration, we do not anéitgpany additional charges for change in fair valueontingent consideration related to the
Lilly Pulitzer acquisition in future periods.

Royalties and other operating incon
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Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Royalties and other operating income $ 18,12: $ 19,01¢ $ (893 4.7%
Gain on sale of real estate included in CorporateGther $ — $ 1,611

Royalties and other operating income primarilyeet$ income received from third parties from tlerising of our Tommy Bahama,
Ben Sherman and Lilly Pulitzer brands. The decr@aseyalties and other income was primarily dué¢lipFiscal 2013 including a $1.6 million
gain on sale of real estate and (2) lower royaltpime in Ben Sherman. These unfavorable items patally offset by higher royalty income
for both Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer.

Operating income (loss)

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Tommy Bahama $ 71,13 $ 72,207 $ (1,079 (1.5%
Lilly Pulitzer 32,19( 25,95 6,23¢ 24.C%
Lanier Clothes 10,84¢ 10,82¢ 21 0.2%
Ben Sherman (10,837 (13,13) 2,29¢ 17.5%
Corporate and Other (19,736 (11,189 (8,55)) (76.5%
Total operating income $ 83,60! $ 84,67( $ (2,067 1.9%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ 2,131 $ (27)
Inventory step-up charge included in Tommy Bahass®eiated
with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ — 9 707
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 1,76¢ $ 1,37
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiazitided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ 278 % 27t
Gain on sale of real estate included in Corporate@ther $ — $ 1,611

Operating income, on a consolidated basis, wass#88lion in Fiscal 2014 compared to $84.7 millionFiscal 2013 . The 1.3%
decrease in operating income was primarily duééddwer operating results in Corporate and Othdr'eommy Bahama partially offset by
improved operating results in Lilly Pulitzer andrB8herman. Changes in operating income by opergtimgp are discussed below.

Tommy Bahama:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 627,49 $ 584,94. $ 42,55 7.23%
Gross margin 60.1% 61.2%
Operating income $ 71,13. % 72,200 % (2,079 (1.5%
Operating income as % of net sales 11.2% 12.2%
Inventory step-up charge included in Tommy Bahasseiated
with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ — 8 707
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 1,76¢ $ 1,37

The decrease in operating income for Tommy Bahaammimarily due to a lower gross margin and higd@®&A partially offset by
the impact of higher net sales and higher royaitpme. The higher SG&A reflects (1) $9.4 millionieéremental SG&A associated with the
cost of operating additional retail stores andaastnts, including any sep costs associated with new stores and restauf@htsigher costs t
support the growing Tommy Bahama business, inctutifrastructure, employment and advertising cd8s$2.3 million of higher incentive
compensation, including equity-based compensatiod,(4) $0.4 million of additional amortizationiafangible assets associated with Tommy
Bahama Canada, which in the aggregate were pgrtififiet by Fiscal 2013 including $0.7 million imtery step-up charge associated with the
Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition. Fiscal 2014 imdluah operating loss of $10.3 million related to bommy Bahama Asia-Pacific
expansion compared to an operating loss of $11llfbmin Fiscal 2013 .
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Lilly Pulitzer:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 167,73t $ 137,94 $ 29,79: 21.6%
Gross margin 63.4% 61.5%
Operating income $ 32,19( $ 25,95, % 6,23¢ 24.(%
Operating income as % of net sales 19.2% 18.£%
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiazitided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ 27t % 27t

The increase in operating income in Lilly Pulitzeas primarily due to the favorable impact of highet sales, higher gross margin
and higher royalty and other income. These iteme\partially offset by increased SG&A. The incrahS&&A was primarily associated with
(1) $5.5 million of higher incentive compensatiorgluding equity-based compensation, (2) higher 3G& support the growing business,
reflecting employment and infrastructure costs el as higher advertising expense, and (3) $4.Ranibf incremental SG&A associated with
the cost of operating additional retail stores.

Lanier Clothes:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 112,93 % 109,53 $ 3,40¢ 3.1%
Gross margin 27.2% 27.%%
Operating income $ 10,84¢ $ 10,82¢ $ 21 0.2%
Operating income as % of net sales 9.€% 9.€%

The comparable operating income reflects the npagnof higher net sales, lower gross margin amspesable SG&A.

Ben Shermar

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 77,48.  $ 67,21¢ $ 10,26 15.2%
Gross margin 47.£% 47.7%
Operating loss $ (10,83) $ (13,13) $ 2,29¢ 17.5%
Operating loss as % of net sales (14.0% (19.5%

The improved operating results for Ben Shermanlteddrom the increased net sales and comparab&A3igfore the impact of
currency translation, partially offset by the lovggoss margin and lower royalty income. Due to4f#iechange in the average exchange rate
between the pound sterling and the United Statbardoom Fiscal 2013 , individual line items withthe statement of operations for Ben
Sherman were higher than the prior year, evereifatimounts in pound sterling may have been compabativeen periods. The 4% change in
the average exchange rate resulted in a $0.6 milidavorable foreign currency translation impatBen Sherman's operating results betw
the two periods.

Corporate and Other:

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 12,157 $ 17,46% $ (5,30¢) (30.9)%
Operating loss $ (19,736 $ (11,189 $ (8,557) (76.5%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ 2,131 $ (27)
Gain on sale of real estate included in CorporateGther $ — 3 1,611

The lower operating results were primarily dueltp%2.4 million of higher incentive compensatioperse, (2) a $2.1 million net
unfavorable impact of LIFO accounting in Fiscal 2@k compared to Fiscal 2013, (3) lower salesxio@
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Golf, (4) Fiscal 2013 including a gain on sale edlrestate of $1.6 million , and (5) Fiscal 2018djiing from certain favorable changes in
accruals.

Interest expense, n¢

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Interest expense, net $ 3,487 $ 4,16¢ $ (68¢€) (16.5%

Interest expense decreased primarily due to lowsaolving rates and lower average borrowings outstenin Fiscal 2014 . During
Fiscal 2014 , substantially all of our borrowingererunder our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement.

Income taxes

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 $ Change % Change
Income taxes $ 34,36: $ 3521 $ (848 (2.9%
Effective tax rate 42.% 43.7%

Income tax expense decreased primarily due to arleffective tax rate. The high effective tax rdtesboth periods, as compared to
a typical statutory tax rate, reflect the unfavéedmpact of foreign losses for which we are ndedb recognize an income tax benefit. The
lower effective tax rate in Fiscal 2014 as compaeeBiscal 2013 primarily resulted from lower fayeilosses resulting from improved
operating results in our international sourcingrafiens, Ben Sherman operations in the United Kimgénd Tommy Bahama Asia-Pacific
operations. The effective tax rate for Fiscal 2b&8efited from the reduction in the enacted tag iathe United Kingdom during the Second
Quarter of Fiscal 2013, with no such change ocegrim Fiscal 2014. For further information regaglincome taxes, see Note 8 to our
consolidated financial statements included in tafort.

We anticipate that our effective tax rate for Fist@l5 will be lower than our effective tax rate feiscal 2014 primarily as a result of
an anticipated decrease in foreign losses, regultiia higher proportion of domestic income to fgndosses.

Net earnings

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013

Net earnings $ 45,75¢ $ 45,29!
Net earnings per diluted share $ 2.7¢ $ 2.7¢
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 16,47 16,48:

The primary reasons for the higher net earningssoal 2014 were:

. Higher operating income in Lilly Pulitzer reftgmy higher net sales and gross margins partidfsebby higher SG&A
associated with expanding operations;

. Improved operating results in Ben Sherman primatilg to increased net sales partially offset byelogross margin and low
royalty income;

. Lower income taxes reflecting a lower effective tate; an

. Lower interest expens

These favorable items were partially offset by:

. A larger operating loss in Corporate and Otledlecting higher incentive compensation, an unfafste LIFO accounting
charge and lower Oxford Golf sales in Fiscal 2@¢Hile Fiscal 2013 included a gain on the sale pfaperty and the benefit
certain favorable changes in accruals; and

. Lower operating income in Tommy Bahama reflegliower gross margin and higher SG&A associatetl trie expanding
operations, partially offset by the impact of highet sales and higher royalty income.

FISCAL 2013 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2012
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The discussion and tables below compare certagntitms included in our statements of operationgfecal 2013, which included
52 weeks, to Fiscal 2012, which included 53 weEBk&h dollar and percentage change provided refieetshange between these periods
unless indicated otherwise. Each dollar and shaeuat included in the tables is in thousands exfeter share amounts. Individual line
items of our consolidated statements of operatioag not be directly comparable to those of our cetitgrs, as classification of certain
expenses may vary by company.

Net Sales
Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change

Tommy Bahama 584,94 528,63 56,30: 10.7%
Lilly Pulitzer 137,94: 122,59: 15,35! 12.5%
Lanier Clothes 109,53( 107,27. 2,25¢ 21%
Ben Sherman 67,21¢ 81,92: (14,704 (17.9%
Corporate and Other 17,46 15,117 2,34¢ 15.5%
Total $ 917,09 $ 855,54. $ 61,55¢ 7.2%

Consolidated net sales increased in Fiscal 2013aoed to Fiscal 2012 primarily due to the net saleseases at Tommy Bahama
and Lilly Pulitzer, which were partially offset lecreased net sales at Ben Sherman, each as dis@ietsw. Further, as direct to consumer
sales grew at a faster rate than wholesales sedesales in the direct to consumer channel ofilligion represented a greater percentage of
consolidated net sales in Fiscal 2013 as comparEdstal 2012, as presented below:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Full price retail stores and outlets 4C% 37%
E-commerce 12% 10%
Restaurant 7% 7%
Wholesale 41% 46%
Total 10C% 10C%

Tommy Bahama:

The Tommy Bahama sales increase of $56.3 milliod007%, was primarily driven by (1) a net salegéase of $38.0 million
associated with North American direct to consunparations that were not comparable between per{@jls, $17.5 million, or 7%, increase in
comparable store sales to $254.0 million in Fig€dI3 compared to $236.5 million in Fiscal 2012,43)et sales increase of $7.7 million
attributable to the expansion of our Tommy Bahainectito consumer operations in the Asia-Pacifgior and (4) a $4.1 million increase in
North American restaurant sales. The $38.0 milbbrales associated with North American directdostimer operations which were |
comparable between periods include the sales atedavith (1) domestic retail and outlet storesngukeduring Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012,
(2) our Canadian retail store operations which veeauired during the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2048(3) Tommy Bahama's initial e-
commerce flash clearance sale, which occurredrinalg 2014. The increases in sales were partiéfiipoby (1) a $8.5 million net sales
decrease in the North American wholesale busimpessarily resulting from reductions in orders frar@rtain wholesale customers, and (2) a
$2.5 million decrease in sales in outlet storeseae open for all of Fiscal 2012 and Fiscal 200t# following table presents the proportion
of net sales by distribution channel for Tommy Bahdor each period presented:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Full price retail stores and outlets 51% 48%
E-commerce 13% 11%
Restaurant 10% 10%
Wholesale 26% 31%
Total 10(% 100%

As of February 1, 2014, Tommy Bahama operated &#ill istores compared to 113 retail stores as bfuzgey 2, 2013.
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Lilly Pulitzer:

The Lilly Pulitzer sales increase of $15.4 milli@m,12.5%, was primarily driven by (1) a net satesease of $6.7 million associated
with retail stores opened in Fiscal 2013 and Fig64R, (2) a $4.4 million, or 9%, increase in conapée store sales to $51.7 million in Fiscal
2013 compared to $47.4 million in Fiscal 2012,43yholesale sales increase of $2.4 million an&24) million of higher e-commerce flash
clearance sales in Fiscal 2013. The following tgiésents the proportion of net sales by distrifsuthannel for Lilly Pulitzer for each period
presented:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Full price retail stores 32% 30%
E-commerce 25% 24%
Wholesale 43% 46%
Total 100% 10C%

As of February 1, 2014, Lilly Pulitzer operatedr2gail stores compared to 19 retail stores as bfleey 2, 2013.

Lanier Clothes:

The increase in net sales for Lanier Clothes 08 $@llion, or 2.1%, was due to a $4.7 million inase in net sales in the private label
business, partially offset by a decrease in neissal the branded business. The increase in thatpriabel business was primarily driven by a
new pants program for a warehouse club customiistal 2013 which offset decreases in other priladiel programs. The decrease in the
branded business was primarily due to reduced welmnor exit from certain programs and softneghi@business of certain of our customers.

Ben Shermar

Net sales for Ben Sherman decreased by $14.7 mithio17.9%, in Fiscal 2013 compared to Fiscal 20di2e to a $14.2 million
decline in wholesale sales and a slight declirgirect to consumer net sales in Fiscal 2013. Thetavholesale sales reflect (1) our exit from
certain wholesale accounts in the United Kingdowh twe United States and (2) lower amounts of offepsales. The following table presents
the proportion of net sales by distribution charfoeBen Sherman for each period presented:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Direct to Consumer 46% 38%
Wholesale 54% 62%
Total 10(% 10(%

As of February 1, 2014, Ben Sherman operated &1 stores compared to 19 retail stores as of Fabr, 2013.

Corporate and Other:

Corporate and Other net sales primarily consistedeonet sales of our Oxford Golf and our Lyonspo@jia distribution center
businesses. The $2.3 million increase in the resdar Corporate and Other was primarily driverhipher net sales in our Oxford Golf
business during Fiscal 2013.

Gross Profit
The table below presents gross profit by operagiogip and in total for Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 28%2vell as the change between
those two periods. Our gross profit and gross marghich is calculated as gross profit divided ley sales, may not be directly comparable to

those of our competitors, as statement of opersiitassification of certain expenses may vary bymany.
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Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Tommy Bahama 358,93 321,92 37,01( 11.5%
Lilly Pulitzer 84,84¢ 76,84 8,00¢ 10.4%
Lanier Clothes 30,55: 30,26« 28¢ 1.C%
Ben Sherman 32,09/ 39,43( (7,33€) (18.60%
Corporate and Other 7,15¢ 1,101 6,052 NM
Total gross profit $ 513,57 $ 469,55 $ 44,01% 9.4%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ (27 $ 4,04
Inventory step-up charge included in Tommy Bahasseiated
with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 707 $ =

The increase in consolidated gross profit was milndue to the higher net sales as discussed aloagldition to the impact of
changes in net sales, gross profit on a consotidaasis and for each operating group were impantetie change in sales mix and changes in
gross margin by operating group, as discussed bdlbe/table below presents gross margin by operatiaup and in total for Fiscal 2013 and
Fiscal 2012.

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012
Tommy Bahama 61.2% 60.%
Lilly Pulitzer 61.5% 62.7%
Lanier Clothes 27.% 28.2%
Ben Sherman 47.1% 48.1%
Corporate and Other NM NM
56.(% 54.%%

Consolidated gross margin

On a consolidated basis, the increase in grossimfrogn Fiscal 2013 to Fiscal 2012 was primarilyedo (1) Fiscal 2012 including a
$4.0 million charge for LIFO accounting with no sificant LIFO accounting charge in Fiscal 2013 é2da change in the sales mix. The
change in sales mix in Fiscal 2013 included (1) fmgnBahama and Lilly Pulitzer, which typically hakigher gross margins than our other
operating groups, representing a greater propodiaur consolidated net sales and (2) direct ttsamer sales, which generally have higher
gross margins than wholesale sales, making umararoportion of the Tommy Bahama and Lilly P@itzales. These items, which favorably
impacted gross margins, were partially offset ky$0.7 million impact of the inventory step-up dem Fiscal 2013 associated with the
Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition.

Tommy Bahama:

The higher gross margin at Tommy Bahama was priyndwie to the change in the proportion of salesaoh distribution channel as
sales in the direct to consumer distribution chgnmkich typically have higher gross margins thiaa wholesale distribution channel,
represented a greater proportion of Tommy Bahamet'sales in Fiscal 2013. This change in saleswai partially offset by the negative
impact of the $0.7 million charge related to therihoy Bahama Canada acquisition recognized in cogbofls sold in Fiscal 2013.

Lilly Pulitzer:

The decrease in gross margin for Lilly PulitzeFiacal 2013 as compared to Fiscal 2012 was priyndriven by (1) a change in sa
mix with sportswear, which generally has lower grogrgins, representing a greater proportion ¢y Hulitzer sales in Fiscal 2013, (2) more
promotions in our direct to consumer operationgriter to move a greater amount of remaining Sgriagntory, (3) our e-commerce
operations offering free shipping on a more frequesis and (4) larger e-commerce flash clearaales s Fiscal 2013 than in the prior year,
with these sales typically having a gross margimemio line with wholesale sales than direct to coner sales. The negative gross margin
impact of these factors exceeded the positive ilngiaihie change in sales mix towards direct to oomey sales for Lilly Pulitzer.

Lanier Clothes:
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The gross margin at Lanier Clothes decreased oaF&013 from the prior year primarily as a resdila change in sales mix towards
private label programs. Private label productsiuidiog the new pants program, generally have lagvess margins than branded product sale:

Ben Shermar

The decrease in gross margin at Ben Sherman f{lEca higher proportion of off-price sales in thieolesale business as full-price
wholesale sales decreased by a greater propohntgondff-price sales and (2) heavier promotionhédirect to consumer business. The heauvic
promotions and the higher proportion of off-prieées, which were necessary to liquidate certaientory, primarily resulted from a
merchandising misstep in the second half of Fig0aR. These negative factors offset the positiesgmargin impact of the change in the ¢
mix with direct to consumer sales representinggelaproportion of Ben Sherman sales in Fiscal 2013

Corporate and Other:

The gross profit in Corporate and Other in eacloggsrimarily reflects the impact on gross profitoar Oxford Golf and Lyons,
Georgia distribution center operations and the thp&LIFO accounting adjustments. The increasthéngross profit for Corporate and Other
was primarily due to (1) Fiscal 2012 being impadigda $4.0 million LIFO accounting charge with rigrsficant LIFO accounting charge in
Fiscal 2013 and (2) higher sales and gross mandimei Oxford Golf business in Fiscal 2013.

SG&A

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
SG&A $ 447,64 % 410,73 $ 36,90¢ 9.C%
SG&A (as a % of net sales) 48.8% 48.(%
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 1,377 % —

The increase in SG&A was primarily due to (1) $3®iion of incremental SG&A in Fiscal 2013 assdedwith operating
additional Tommy Bahama retail stores and restasiramd Lilly Pulitzer retail stores and (2) higleests to support the growing Tommy
Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer businesses. The increas8&&A for Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer werargially offset by SG&A reductions
in Ben Sherman and Corporate and Other. SG&A fecdti2012 was unfavorably impacted by the inclusiba 53rd week, which we estimate
resulted in an additional $7 million of SG&A. Fueth SG&A was impacted by a $7.2 million reductiariricentive compensation in Fiscal
2013 as compared to Fiscal 2012, primarily reftegtower incentive compensation for both Tommy Bahand Corporate and Other.

SG&A included $2.2 million of amortization of intgible assets in Fiscal 2013 compared to $1.0 miliioFiscal 2012 with the
increase primarily being $1.4 million of amortizatiassociated with the intangible assets acquseqrhet of the Tommy Bahama Canada
acquisition.

Change in fair value of contingent consideration

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change

Change in fair value of contingent consideratiazitided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ 27 $ 6,285 $ (6,010 (95.60%

The $6.0 million decrease in the charge for thengkan fair value of contingent consideration dgrifiscal 2013 was primarily a result of
Fiscal 2012 including a significant increase infie value of the contingent consideration, whiiscal 2013 generally only reflected the
passage of time as we approach the anticipated gragnDuring Fiscal 2012, we increased the faneaf the contingent consideration by ¢
million to reflect not only the passage of timet blso our determination that the certainty of pagment of the contingent consideration rel
to the Lilly Pulitzer acquisition was more probatian we had determined in prior years based oransideration of, among other things,
(1) the Fiscal 2011 and Fiscal 2012 operating tesilthe Lilly Pulitzer operating group, (2) profed operating results for Lilly Pulitzer for
Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2014, (3) the operatingltestteria for the Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2014ants to be earned and (4) the shorter
remaining term of the contingent consideration agrent.
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Royalties and other operating incon

Fiscal 201: Fiscal 201. $ Change % Change
Royalties and other operating income $ 19,01¢ $ 16,43¢ $ 2,58( 15.7%
Gain on sale of real estate included in Corporate@ther $ 1,611 $ =

Royalties and other operating income in Fiscal 20tBased by $2.6 million primarily due to (1) ¢a62013 including a gain on sale
of real estate of $1.6 million, (2) higher royailtigome for both Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer 8ylhigher other income in Corporate :
Other. These increases were partially offset byelorgyalty income for Ben Sherman in Fiscal 2018y#&tty and other operating income
primarily consists of royalty income received froimird parties from the licensing of our Tommy BalemBen Sherman and Lilly Pulitzer
brands.

Operating income (loss)

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Tommy Bahama $ 72,200 $ 69,45 $ 2,75: 4.C%
Lilly Pulitzer 25,95: 20,26 5,68¢ 28.C%
Lanier Clothes 10,82¢ 10,84( (12 (0.1)%
Ben Sherman (13,13) (10,899 (2,237 (20.5%
Corporate and Other (11,18% (20,69 9,507 45.¢%
Total operating income $ 84,67( $ 68,97, $ 15,69¢ 22.€%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ (27 $ 4,04:
Inventory step-up charge included in Tommy Bahass®eiated
with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 707 $ =
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 1,377 $ —
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiazitided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ 278 % 6,28t
Gain on sale of real estate included in Corporate@ther $ 1,611 $ —

Operating income, on a consolidated basis, was/$84lion in Fiscal 2013 compared to $69.0 millionFiscal 2012. The 22.8%
increase in operating income was primarily duéntoiinproved operating income in Corporate and Qthily Pulitzer and Tommy Bahama,
partially offset by the higher operating loss imBgherman. Changes in operating income by opergtimgp are discussed below.

Tommy Bahama:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 584,94. $ 528,63¢ $ 56,30 10.7%
Gross margin 61.2% 60.€%
Operating income $ 72,200 $ 69,45 $ 2,75: 4.C%
Operating income as % of net sales 12.2% 13.1%
Inventory step-up charge included in Tommy Bahass®eiated
with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 707 % —
Amortization of intangible assets included in TomBghama
associated with Tommy Bahama Canada acquisition $ 1,377 % =

The increase in operating income for Tommy Baharaa primarily due to the higher net sales and gmegjin in the Tommy
Bahama business, each as discussed above. Thet infilae higher sales and gross margin were pbridiset by higher SG&A as well as a
$0.7 million charge related to an inventory stgpand $1.4 million of amortization of intangiblgsats, both of which resulted from the Torr
Bahama Canada acquisition, which we completedarséitond quarter of Fiscal 2013. In addition tohtigher SG&A resulting from the
amortization of intangible assets, the increase@&/&@&as primarily associated with (1) operating ddtdial North American and Asia-Pacific
retail stores and restaurants in Fiscal 2013 wiashlted in $27.7 million of incremental SG&A arR) higher costs to support the growing
Tommy Bahama business,
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including costs associated with support operatinritbe Asia-Pacific region and Canada. These irrae&n SG&A were partially offset by a
$5.6 million reduction in incentive compensation T@ammy Bahama in Fiscal 2013 and the impact ofleag week in Fiscal 2013 as compi
to Fiscal 2012.

Fiscal 2013 included an operating loss of $11.%ianilrelated to our Tommy Bahama Adtacific expansion compared to an opere
loss of $10.4 million in Fiscal 2012.

Lilly Pulitzer:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 137,94 $ 122,59 $ 15,35 12.5%
Gross margin 61.5% 62.7%
Operating income $ 25,95, % 20,267 $ 5,68¢ 28.(%
Operating income as % of net sales 18.8% 16.5%
Change in fair value of contingent consideratiazitided in Lilly
Pulitzer $ 27 % 6,28t

The increase in operating income for Lilly Pulitfer Fiscal 2013 compared to Fiscal 2012 was piigndue to a lower charge for
change in the fair value of contingent consideratioFiscal 2013. The operating results for FifHl3 also reflect higher net sales, as
discussed above, which were offset by higher SG&Aupport the growing Lilly Pulitzer business aodér gross margin, as discussed above
The increased SG&A was primarily associated widhh{fjher costs, consisting primarily of employmerpenses, to support the growing Lilly
Pulitzer business and (2) $3.1 million of increna¢@G&A associated with the cost of operating addél retail stores during Fiscal 2013.

Lanier Clothes:

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 109,53( $ 107,27 $ 2,25¢ 2.1%
Gross margin 27.%% 28.2%
Operating income $ 10,82¢ $ 10,84 $ (12 (0.1)%
Operating income as % of net sales 9.8% 10.1%

The operating income for Lanier Clothes was comigarfor Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 as the faverahpact of higher sales was
offset by slightly lower gross margin and higher&¥G which was primarily attributable to higher inté/e compensation earned in Fiscal
2013.

Ben Shermar

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Net sales $ 67,21¢ % 81,92: $ (14,709) (17.9%
Gross margin 47.7% 48.1%
Operating loss $ (13,13) % (10,89¢) $ (2,239 (20.5%
Operating loss as % of net sales (19.5% (13.9%

The decline in operating results for Ben Shermas pramarily due to the decrease in sales and lgness margin, each as discussed above
and lower royalty income. These factors that neggtimpacted the operating results were partiaffget by reduced SG&A in Ben Sherman
in Fiscal 2013 as Ben Sherman took certain actiomsduce its ongoing SG&A structure with a sigrafit amount of that SG&A reduction
being recognized in the second half of Fiscal 2013.

Corporate and Other:
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Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change

Net sales $ 17,46 $ 15,117 $ 2,34¢ 15.5%
Operating loss $ (11,189 $ (20,697 $ 9,507 45.%
LIFO charge (credit) included in Corporate and ®the $ 27 % 4,04:
Gain on sale of real estate included in Corporate@ther $ 1,611 $ =

The Corporate and Other operating results imprawvédscal 2013 primarily as a result of (1) Fis2all2 including a $4.0 million
LIFO accounting charge with no significant LIFO aaating impact in Fiscal 2013, (2) a reduction r@rate and Other SG&A primarily
driven by a $2.1 million reduction in incentive cpemsation in Fiscal 2013, as well as certain faserahanges in accruals, (3) higher sales
improved gross margin in the Oxford Golf and LyoBgorgia distribution center businesses and (4£afF2013 including a gain on sale of real
estate of $1.6 million.

Interest expense, n¢

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Interest expense, net $ 4,16¢ $ 8,93¢ $ (4,770 (53.9)%

Interest expense for Fiscal 2013 decreased priynduig to our borrowing at lower interest ratesischl 2013 compared to Fiscal
2012. During Fiscal 2013, substantially all of darrowings were under our U.S. Revolving Creditégment, whereas substantially all of
borrowings in the first half of Fiscal 2012 wererfr our previously outstanding senior secured netbgh had a coupon rate of 11 3/8%. The
change in the source of our borrowings resultechfour redemption of the remaining outstanding ppalcamount of the senior secured notes
in July 2012, which was primarily funded with basniags under our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement.

Loss on repurchase of senior not

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Loss on repurchase of senior notes $ — $ 9,14: $ (9,143 (100.0%

On July 16, 2012, we redeemed the remaining oudstgr$105.0 million in aggregate principal amouhbor Senior Secured Notes
for approximately $111.0 million, plus accrued etst, using borrowings under our U.S. Revolvingd@rAgreement. The redemption of the
Senior Secured Notes and related write-off of agprately $3.1 million of unamortized deferred firémg costs and discount resulted in a los:
of $9.1 million

Income taxes

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 $ Change % Change
Income taxes 35,21( 19,57: 15,63¢ 79.%
Effective tax rate 43.1% 38.5%

Income tax expense for Fiscal 2013 increased coedparFiscal 2012 due to higher earnings and aease in the effective tax rate.
The effective tax rates for both periods refleet timfavorable impact of foreign losses for whichweze not able to recognize an income tax
benefit and the favorable impact of a decreashdrenacted tax rate in the United Kingdom. Thecéffe tax rate for Fiscal 2012 was also
impacted by certain other favorable discrete itdn@duding a reduction in income tax contingencseres upon the expiration of the
corresponding statute of limitations totaling apgmeately $2.2 million and the impact of a chang®im assertion of permanent reinvestmel
foreign earnings. For further information regardingome taxes, see Note 8 to our consolidated ilmhstatements included in this report.

Net earnings

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Net earnings $ 4529. $ 31,317
Net earnings per diluted share $ 2.7 % 1.8¢
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 16,48: 16,58¢
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The higher net earnings for Fiscal 2013 compardeéigoal 2012 was primarily due to (1) increasedsadts in Fiscal 2013 resulting in
increased gross profit, (2) Fiscal 2012 includidgss on repurchase of senior notes of $9.1 millwith no such charge in Fiscal 2013, (3) a
$6.0 million reduction in the charge for the chaimgthe fair value of contingent consideration, 4§4.8 million reduction in interest expense,
(5) Fiscal 2012 including a LIFO accounting chao§&4.0 million with no significant LIFO accountinmpact in Fiscal 2013, (6) lower SG&
in Ben Sherman and Corporate and Other, and (Rehigyalty and other operating income. These faat@re partially offset by (1) higher
SG&A associated with the continued growth and esmanof the Tommy Bahama and Lilly Pulitzer bran@3,a higher effective tax rate in
Fiscal 2013 and (3) $2.1 million of charges in #ggregate incurred in Fiscal 2013 related to aaritawy step-up charge and amortization of
intangible assets as a result of our acquisitioth@fTommy Bahama operations in Canada.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCE S

Our primary source of revenue and cash flow isstile and distribution of apparel products throughdirect to consumer and wholesale
channels of distribution. Our primary uses of cfiglv include the purchase of apparel products exdperation of our business, as well as
operating expenses including employee compensatidrbenefits, occupancy-related costs, marketidgaamertising costs, other general and
administrative expenses and the payment of periaticest payments related to our financing arremagggs. Additionally, we use cash for the
funding of capital expenditures and dividends amhyment of indebtedness. In the ordinary courdmisiness, we maintain certain levels of
inventory and extend credit to our wholesale custemThus, we require a certain amount of workiagjtal to operate our business. If cash
inflows are less than cash outflows, we have adoeamounts under our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreenasd U.K. Revolving Credit
Agreement, subject to their terms, each of whiateiscribed below. We may seek to finance futuréalapvestment programs through varic
methods, including, but not limited to, cash flawrh operations, borrowings under our current oitaathl credit facilities, sales of debt or
equity securities and cash on hand.

As of January 31, 2015 we had $5.3 million of cast cash equivalents on hand, with $109.0 millibhasrowings outstanding and
$128.0 million of availability under our revolvirggedit agreements. We believe our balance sheeamtimpated positive cash flows from
operating activities in the future provide us watinple opportunity to continue to invest in our lesiand our direct to consumer initiatives in
future periods.

Key Liquidity Measure:

January 31,
(% in thousands) 2015 February 1, 2014  $ Change % Change
Total current assets $ 281,32. $ 271,03 $ 10,29( 3.8%
Total current liabilities 158,29! 133,04¢ 25,24¢ 19.C%
Working capital $ 123,027 $ 137,98t $ (14,959 (10.9%
Working capital ratio 1.7¢ 2.04
Debt to total capital ratio 27% 35%

Our working capital ratio is calculated by dividit@al current assets by total current liabiliti€sirrent assets increased from
February 1, 2014 to January 31, 2015 primarily ugigher inventories and receivables, each asigssd below. Current liabilities increased
primarily as a result of (1) the classification&if2.5 million of contingent consideration as a enttiability as of January 31, 20&6mpared t
$2.5 million as of February 1, 2014 , (2) $9.1 maillhigher accrued compensation as of January@®I5 2primarily resulting from higher
incentive compensation, and (3) increased accqayables, accrued expenses and other liabilitie$ danuary 31, 2015 . Changes in working
capital accounts are discussed below.

For the ratio of debt to total capital, debt isidedl as short-term and long-term debt, and tofaitakis defined as debt plus
shareholders’ equity. Debt was $109.0 million atuay 31, 2015 and $141.6 million at February IL20while shareholders’ equity was
$290.6 million at January 31, 2015 and $260.2 orllat February 1, 2014 . The decrease in debt phimaflects the following during Fiscal
2014 : (1) $95.4 million of cash flows from openafiactivities, (2) a $3.2 million reduction in caatd cash equivalents and (3) $1.0 million of
proceeds from the issuance of common stock paridiset by the following: (1) $50.4 million of p#al expenditures, (2) $13.9 million of
dividends paid on our common stock and (3) $2l8aniof payments related to the Lilly Pulitzer ¢ovgent consideration arrangement.
Shareholders' equity increased, primarily as altre$met earnings partially offset by dividenddcpand the unfavorable impact on foreign
currency exchange rate changes reflecting thegdrddnited States dollar as of January 31, 2016r.debt levels and ratio of debt to total
capital in future periods may not be comparableistorical amounts as we continue to assess, asalljp make changes to, our
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capital structure. Changes in our capital structuthe future, if any, will depend on prevailingrket conditions, our liquidity requirements,
contractual restrictions and other factors. The @mminvolved may be material.

Balance Shee

The following tables set forth certain informatimeluded in our consolidated balance sheets (inghnds) and calculations of change
the information included in our consolidated bakasheets. Below each table are explanations fosigmficant changes in the balances at
January 31, 2015 compared to February 1, 2014 .

Current Assets:

January 31, February 1,

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,281 % 8,48: $ (3,207) (37. 1%
Receivables, net 79,10¢ 75,27 3,82 5.1%
Inventories, net 148,21! 143,71: 4,50: 3.1%
Prepaid expenses, net 24,21¢ 23,09¢ 1,12¢ 4.8%
Deferred tax assets 24,50 20,46: 4,03¢ 19.7%
Total current assets $ 281,32: $ 271,03: $ 10,29( 3.8%

Cash and cash equivalents as of January 31, 2@lBebruary 1, 2014 include typical cash amountsitasied on an ongoing basis in
our operations, which generally ranges from $5iarilto $10 million at any given time. Any excessltgenerally is used to repay amounts
outstanding under our revolving credit agreemeRéxeivables, net as of January 31, 2015 increasaanily due to higher wholesale sales,
particularly in Tommy Bahama, in the last two mantt Fiscal 2014 .

Inventories, net as of January 31, 2015 increaseddh of our operating groups, except for Lanlethi@s. The higher inventory levels
generally reflect higher anticipated sales in thistRuarter of Fiscal 2015 as compared to thet Eitsarter of Fiscal 2014. Prepaid expenses,
net were comparable as of January 31, 2015 andi&gbt, 2014 reflecting an increase in prepaidimedaxes partially offset by decreases in
prepaid operating expense amounts. Deferred t@tsasereased from February 1, 2014 primarily essalt of higher incentive compensation
amounts and a change in timing differences assatiaith inventory, due in part to the significanFD accounting charge in the Fourth
Quarter of Fiscal 2014.

Nor-current Assets:

January 31, February 1,

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Property and equipment, net $ 155,07¢ $ 141,51¢ $ 13,55’ 9.€%
Intangible assets, net 167,77 173,02 (5,259 (3.0%
Goodwill 17,29¢ 17,39¢ (104 (0.€)%
Other non-current assets, net 23,60« 24,33 (72¢) (3.0%
Total non-current assets, net $ 363,74t $ 356,27 $ 7,47 2.1%

The increase in property and equipment, net wasguily due to capital expenditures during Fiscal20Qwhich were partially offset by
depreciation expense in Fiscal 2014 . The deciiedstangible assets, net was primarily due toithygact of the stronger United States dollar
on our foreign denominated intangible assets armuftaration of intangible assets in Fiscal 2014 e Tlecrease in other non-current assets wa
primarily due to a decrease in the value of coreooéficers' life insurance policies and amortiaatof deferred financing costs partially offset
by higher asset balances set aside for potentiairéel compensation plan obligations.

Liabilities:
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January 31, February 1,

2015 2014 $ Change % Change
Total current liabilities $ 158,29 $ 133,04t $ 25,24¢ 19.C%
Long-term debt 104,84. 137,59:. (32,75() (23.9%
Non-current contingent consideration — 12,22t (12,225 (100.0%
Other non-current liabilities 58,11 51,52( 6,59: 12.¢%
Non-current deferred income taxes 33,21: 32,75¢ 452 1.4%
Total liabilities $ 354,46: $ 367,14. (12,680) (3.59%

Current liabilities increased, reflecting (1) thE2% million current contingent consideration lighias of January 31, 2015 compared to
$2.5 million as of February 1, 2014 , (2) a $9.1lion increase in accrued compensation, primaelyulting from higher incentive
compensation amounts as of January 31, 2015 ,3ridofeased accounts payables, accrued expendedteer liabilities as of January 31,
2015, which primarily resulted from the timingpdyment of certain inventory and expense itemssélitlems were partially offset by lower
income taxes payable as of January 31, 2015 . &beedse in debt primarily reflects the followingidg Fiscal 2014 : (1) $95.4 millicof cast
flows from operating activities, (2) a $3.2 millioeduction in cash and cash equivalents and (B) illion of proceeds from the issuance of
common stock partially offset by the following: ($60.4 million of capital expenditures, (2) $1&#8lion of dividends paid on our common
stock and (3) $2.5 million of payments relatedh® Lilly Pulitzer contingent consideration arrangmt. The decrease in non-current
contingent consideration at January 31, 2015 wasebult of all the contingent consideration oliliabeing classified as a current liability as
of January 31, 2015 as the amount is expected paiodein the first quarter of Fiscal 2015 . Othensturrent liabilities increased as of
January 31, 2015 compared to the prior year prigndue to increases in deferred rent liabilitieenNcurrent deferred income taxes was
comparable as of January 31, 2015 and Februa§14, 2primarily reflecting the net impact of chaage deferred taxes associated with
accrued compensation balances and intangible assets

Statement of Cash Flow

The following table sets forth the net cash floesuiting in the change in our cash and cash earita(in thousands):

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Cash provided by operating activities $ 95,40¢ $ 52,73 $ 67,09¢
Cash used in investing activities (50,35%) (59,130 (62,51%)
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities (47,619 6,93¢ (10,59¢)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ (2,569 $ 54z $ (6,017

Cash and cash equivalents on hand was $5.3 mjl#&:5 million and $7.5 million at January 31, 2QF=bruary 1, 2014 arfekbruary 2
2013, respectively. Changes in cash flows in Fi88&4 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 related taapey activities, investing activities, and
financing activities are discussed below.

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013

Operating Activities:

In Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013 , operating actsifprovided $95.4 million and $52.7 million of cagkspectivelyThe cash flow fror
operating activities was primarily the result of parnings for the relevant period adjusted, asicgige, for non-cash activities including
depreciation, amortization, equibased compensation expense and the net impacangeh in our working capital accounts, as appleatihe
higher cash flow from operating activities, desgiite comparable earnings, for Fiscal 2014 was piiyndue to changes in working capital and
Fiscal 2013 including a significant excess tax lienelated to equity-based compensation. In Fig€dl4 , the more significant changes in
working capital were increases in current liakaktiand non-current liabilities, each of which ie®ed cash flow from operations, partially
offset by increases in inventories and receival@dash of which reduced cash flow from operationd=iscal 2013 , the more significant
changes in working capital were an increase inntotées and receivables, each of which reduced tastfrom operations, partially offset by
an increase in current liabilities and other norrent liabilities.

We generally anticipate that cash flows from operet will increase in the future as our businestiocoes to grow, reflecting higher
earnings partially offset by increased working tapiequirements.

Investing Activities
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During Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013 , investingwititis used $50.4 million and $59.1 million of castspectively. Of these cash
flows used in investing activity amounts, $50.4limil and $43.4 million in Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 3Q respectively, were for the capital
expenditures in each period primarily related tsts@ssociated with new retail stores, informat&mmnology initiatives and retail store and
restaurant remodeling. The remaining cash usedvesiing activities in Fiscal 2013 included $17.9liom related to our acquisition of the
Tommy Bahama business in Canada from our formensee.

We anticipate that capital expenditures in Fis€dl2will be significantly higher than capital expiéres in recent years. See a
discussion of Fiscal 2015 expected capital expargltin Contractual Obligations below.

Financing Activities:

During Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013 , financing\ati¢is used $47.6 million and provided $6.9 milliohcash, respectively. In Fiscal
2014 , we decreased debt by $32.6 million baseauorash flow from operating activities exceeding cash needs for investing activities anc
financing activities. In Fiscal 2013 , we increasietht by $25.0 million based on cash needs forsiting and financing activities exceeding our
cash flow from operations, while replacing our l@rings under our senior notes with borrowings uraerU.S. Revolving Credit Agreement.

The repurchase of common stock in Fiscal 2013 piiynesulted from the vesting of restricted st@skards that were returned by
employees to satisfy employee income tax obligatiarhile the proceeds from issuance of common gpackarily resulted from the excess
benefit associated with the vesting of the resdatock awards. We paid dividends of $13.9 milkonl $11.9 million during Fiscal 2014 and
Fiscal 2013, respectively. In Fiscal 2014, we &#db million for the payment of the Fiscal 20131tingent consideration payment related to
the Lilly Pulitzer acquisition.

We anticipate that cash flow provided by or usefinancing activities in the future will be depend@pon whether our cash flow
from operating activities exceeds our capital exjitenes, the remaining contingent consideratiompanyt in Fiscal 2015 and dividend
payments. Generally, we anticipate that excess daahy, is used to repay debt on our revolvingditragreements. Given the significance of
capital expenditures and contingent considerataympent amounts in Fiscal 2015 as well as dividexydments, the amount of cash availabl
be used in financing activities as a repaymentedt dnay be limited.

Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiscal 2012

Operating Activities:

In Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012, operating actigifeovided $52.7 million and $67.1 million of casispectively. The cash flow from
operating activities was primarily the result of rarnings for the relevant period adjusted, adiegige, for non-cash activities such as
depreciation, amortization, stock compensation egpechange in fair value of contingent considernatioss on repurchase of senior notes an
the net impact of changes in our working capitabamnts, as applicable. The lower cash flow fronratieg activities, despite the higher
earnings, for Fiscal 2013 was primarily due to &if012 earnings including a $9.1 million loss epurchase of senior notes and Fiscal 2013
having less favorable changes in working capitabaots, as compared to the same period in the yeir. In Fiscal 2013, the more significant
changes in working capital were increases in inmée$ and receivables, each of which reduced dashffom operations, which was partially
offset by an increase in current liabilities andsourrent liabilities. In Fiscal 2012, the morersfgcant changes in working capital were an
increase in inventories and receivables and otbwescarrent assets, each of which reduced cash flom frperations, which was partially off
by an increase in other non-current liabilities.

Investing Activities

During Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012, investing aiiéis used $59.1 million and $62.5 million of castspectively. The cash used in
investing activities in Fiscal 2013 included $1mBlion related to our acquisition of the Tommy Baha business in Canada from our former
licensee, while Fiscal 2012 included $1.8 millieteted to our acquisition of the Tommy Bahama bessrin Australia from our former
licensee. The remaining $43.4 million and $60.7iamlof cash flow used in investing activities irs€al 2013 and Fiscal 2012, respectively,
were for the capital expenditures in each peridgahgrily related to costs associated with new resttes, information technology initiatives
and retail store and restaurant remodeling.

Financing Activities:
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During Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012, financing ati&is provided $6.9 million and used $10.6 millioihcash, respectively. In Fiscal
2013, we increased debt by $25.0 million basedwrcash needs for investing activities and finag@ntivities exceeding our cash flow from
operating activities. In Fiscal 2012, we increadelt by $10.5 million based on cash need for inwgsind financing activities exceeding our
cash flow from operations, while replacing our l@rings under our senior notes with borrowings uraerU.S. Revolving Credit Agreement.

The repurchase of common stock in Fiscal 2013 piiynesulted from the vesting of restricted st@skards that were returned by
employees to satisfy employee income tax obligatiarhile the proceeds from issuance of common gpackarily resulted from the excess
benefit associated with the vesting of the resddatock awards. In Fiscal 2012, we paid $5.0 onilfor the payment of the Fiscal 2012 and
Fiscal 2011 contingent consideration paymentsedl&i the Lilly Pulitzer acquisition. We paid dieiads of $11.9 million and $9.9 million
during Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

The table below sets forth the amounts outstandlimter our financing arrangements (in thousandsf danuary 31, 2015 :

$235 million U.S. Secured Revolving Credit Faciliti.S. Revolving Credit Agreement") $ 104,84
£7 million Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facilit{y.K. Revolving Credit Agreement") 4,12¢
Total debt 108,96¢
Short-term debt (4,12¢)
Long-term debt $ 104,84

The U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement generally gi)iimited to a borrowing base consisting of spedifpercentages of eligible
categories of assets; (ii) accrues variable-ratrést (weighted average borrowing rate of 1.9%fasnuary 31, 2015 ), unused line fees and
letter of credit fees based upon a pricing gridahuhis tied to average unused availability and/dization; (iii) requires periodic interest
payments with principal due at maturity (Novemb@t&); and (iv) is secured by a first priority setguinterest in the accounts receivable,
inventory, general intangibles and eligible tradeédaainvestment property (including the equity netts of certain subsidiaries), deposit
accounts, intercompany obligations, equipment, goddcuments, contracts, books and records and mhsonal property of Oxford
Industries, Inc. and substantially all of its dotiesubsidiaries.

The U.K. Revolving Credit Agreement generally @ceues interest at the bank's base rate plus dicaple margin (4.0% as of
January 31, 201} (ii) requires interest payments monthly withrmipal payable on demand; and (iii) is collaterdiby substantially all of tt
assets of our United Kingdom Ben Sherman subséafiari

To the extent cash flow needs exceed cash flowigeohby our operations we will have access, sultgetiieir terms, to our lines of
credit to provide funding for operating activitiespital expenditures and acquisitions, if any. €nedit facilities are also used to finance trade
letters of credit for product purchases, which medthe amounts available under our lines of creldén issued. As of January 31, 2015, $8.5
million of trade letters of credit and other lintitens on availability in the aggregate were outdiag against our credit facilities. After
considering these limitations and the amount gfileie assets in our borrowing base, as applicasl®f January 31, 2015 , we had $125.8
million and $2.3 million in unused availability uadthe U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement and the URKvolving Credit Agreement,
respectively, subject to the respective limitationsborrowings.

Covenants and Other Restrictions:

Our credit facilities, consisting of our U.S. Reviog Credit Agreement and our U.K. Revolving Creflifreement, are subject to a
number of affirmative covenants regarding the agipof financial information, compliance with lamaintenance of property, insurance and
conduct of business. Also, our credit facilities aubject to certain negative covenants or otharicdons including, among other things,
limitations on our ability to (i) incur debt, (iuaranty certain obligations, (iii) incur liensy)pay dividends to shareholders, (v) repurchase
shares of our common stock, (vi) make investméniiy,sell assets or stock of subsidiaries, (\igquire assets or businesses, (ix) merge or
consolidate with other companies, or (x) prepatragrepurchase or redeem debt.

Our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement contains arftial covenant that applies if unused availabilibder the U.S. Revolving Credit
Agreement for three consecutive days is less thamgteater of (i) $23.5 million or (ii) 10% ofethotal revolving commitments. In such case,
our fixed charge coverage ratio as defined in tife. Revolving Credit Agreement must not be lesa tha to 1.0 for the immediately
preceding 12 fiscal months for which financial etaents have been delivered.
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This financial covenant continues to apply until meve maintained unused availability under the B&olving Credit Agreement of more
than the greater of (i) $23.5 million or (ii) 1086the total revolving commitments for 30 consamitays.

We believe that the affirmative covenants, negatiweenants, financial covenants and other resiristunder our credit facilities are
customary for those included in similar facilitiexstered into at the time we entered into our agesssn During Fiscal 2014 and as of
January 31, 2015, no financial covenant testing rguired pursuant to our U.S. Revolving Crediteggnent as the minimum availability
threshold was met at all times. As of January 8152, we were compliant with all covenants relatedur credit facilities.

Other Liquidity Items:

We anticipate that we will be able to satisfy ongoing cash requirements, which generally congistasking capital and other operati
activity needs, capital expenditures, dividends iaterest payments on our debt, if any, primanini positive cash flow from operations
supplemented by cash on hand and borrowings unatdines of credit, if necessary. Our need for viragkcapital is typically seasonal with the
greatest requirements generally existing in thieafad spring of each year. Our capital needs veijehd on many factors including our growth
rate, the need to finance inventory levels andtheeess of our various products. We anticipateahtite maturity of any of our financing
arrangements or as otherwise deemed appropriatejlihge able to refinance the facilities and delith terms available in the market at that
time, which may or may not be as favorable aséh@g of the current agreements or current markeiste

We have paid dividends in each quarter since warbhea public company in July 1960, however, we disgontinue or modify
dividend payments at any time if we determine tithér uses of our capital, including payment ostariding debt, repurchases of outstanding
shares, funding of acquisitions or funding of calpéixpenditures, may be in our best interest; ifegectations of future cash flows and future
cash needs outweigh the ability to pay a dividemdf the terms of our credit facilities, other détistruments, contingent consideration
arrangements or applicable law limit our abilityp@y dividends. We may borrow to fund dividendshia short-term based on our expectation
of operating cash flows in future periods subjedhie terms and conditions of our credit facilittesother debt instruments and applicable law.
All cash flow from operations will not necessattilg paid out as dividends in all periods. For detafiout limitations on our ability to pay
dividends, see the discussion of our credit faegiebove and Note 5 of our consolidated finarstetiements contained in this report.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual aalsligations, as of January 31, 2015 , by futunéogle(in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years Total

Contractual Obligations:

U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement and U.K. Revolving

Credit Agreement (1) $ —$ —$ —$ —$ —
Operating leases (2) 65,80: 121,85« 102,46! 222,14! 512,26
Minimum royalty and advertising payments pursuant t

royalty agreements 5,58¢ 10,86: — — 16,45:
Letters of credit 8,54¢ — — — 8,54¢
Contingent purchase price consideration (3) 12,50( — — — 12,50(
Other (4)(5)(6) — — — — —
Total $ 92,437 8% 132,71 $ 102,46! $ 222,147 $ 549,76:.

(1) Principal and interest amounts payable inreiperiods on our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreemertt B.K. Revolving Credit
Agreement have been excluded from the table atz®/the amount that will be outstanding and interstduring any fiscal year will
be dependent upon future events which are not kradviims time. As of January 31, 2015 , $104.8iamllwas outstanding under our
U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement, which matures ovBmber 2018, and $4.1 million was outstanding unde U.K. Revolving
Credit Agreement, which is payable on demand. @uFiscal 2014 , interest paid on these revolvimglitrarrangements was $3.3
million .

(2 Amounts to be paid in future periods for resiate taxes, insurance, other operating expensesoatingent rent applicable to the
properties pursuant to the respective operatingeleaave been excluded from the table above, as the
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amounts payable in future periods are, in somes¢cast quantified in the lease agreements andegrerdient on factors which are not
known at this time. Such amounts incurred in Fig€dl4 totaled $21.7 million .

3) Amounts included in the table reflect the remairdingount payable pursuant to a contingent consideratrangement associated w
the Lilly Pulitzer acquisition, which we anticipgbaying in the First Quarter of Fiscal 2015.

(4) Amounts totaling $11.3 million of deferred cpemsation obligations, which are included in othen-current liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheet as of January 31, 2@d4¥e, been excluded from the table above, dueetartisertainty of the timing of the
payment of these obligations, which are generdltha discretion of the individual employees or mploe death of the individual,
respectively.

(5) An environmental reserve liability of $1.3 himh , which is included in other non-current liiés in our consolidated balance sheet
as of January 31, 2015 and discussed in Note Grtoansolidated financial statements included is téport, has been excluded from
the above table, as we were not contractually atdig to incur these costs as of January 31, 20d Shentiming of payment, if any, is
uncertain.

(6) Non-current deferred tax liabilities of $33.2 milli@mcluded in our consolidated balance sheet asrofalg 31, 2015 and discussed in
Note 8 to our consolidated financial statementiithed in this report have been excluded from trevatiable, as deferred income
liabilities are calculated based on temporary diffces between the tax basis and book basis dsass@liabilities, which will result
in taxable amounts in future years when the liibdiare settled at their reported financial stat@namounts. As the results of these
calculations do not have a direct connection withamount of cash taxes to be paid in any futurege scheduling deferred income
tax liabilities by period could be misleading.

Our anticipated capital expenditures for Fiscal®20Which are excluded from the table above asreeanerally not contractually
obligated to pay these amounts as of January 3B ,28re expected to be approximately $70 million. SEhexpenditures are expected to co
primarily of costs associated with opening andcaling retail stores and restaurants, facility catimns and enhancements, remodeling retalil
stores and restaurants and information technoboigiptives, including e-commerce capabilities. Wii@pate that approximately $13 million
of our capital expenditures in Fiscal 2015 willfbeded by landlords through tenant improvementedlioce reimbursements.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into agreements which mee@Ht&s definition of an off balance sheet finan@ngngement, other than operating
leases, and have made no financial commitments goarantees with respect to any unconsolidatesidiabies or special purpose entities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The discussion and analysis of our financial caoditind results of operations are based upon awddiolated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with GAA®dansistent manner. The preparation of thesadiahstatements requires the selection
and application of accounting policies. Furthee, éipplication of GAAP requires us to make estimatesjudgments about future events that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiegenues and expenses and related disclosurem @mgoing basis, we evaluate our estimates
including those discussed below. We base our etdsran historical experience, current trends amiwa other assumptions that we believe
are reasonable under the circumstances, the redwitsich form the basis for making judgments abtbetcarrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atheurces.

Actual results may differ from these estimates umliiéerent assumptions or conditions. We beliehvie possible that other professionals,
applying reasonable judgment to the same set & faw circumstances, could develop and suppangerof alternative estimated amounts.
We believe that we have appropriately applied oitical accounting policies. However, in the evdrdt inappropriate assumptions or method:
were used relating to the critical accounting peidelow, our consolidated statements of operatimuld be misstated.

The detailed summary of significant accounting ge# is included in Note 1 to our consolidatedficial statements contained in this
report. The following is a brief discussion of there significant estimates, assumptions and jud¢gnee use or the amounts most sensitive t
change from outside factors.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable
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Our revenue consists of direct to consumer saleghancludes retail store, e-commerce, restauandtconcession sales, as well as
wholesale sales. We consider revenue realizedatizable and earned when the following criteriaraed: (1) persuasive evidence of an
agreement exists, (2) delivery has occurred, (8)poiae to the buyer is fixed or determinable asdopllectibility is reasonably assured.

An area of judgment affecting reported revenuesraatdgarnings involves estimating sales reserveghwepresent a portion of reveni
not expected to be realized. In our direct to camsuoperations, revenues are recorded net of dstinaturns and discounts, as appropriate,
while our wholesale revenue is reduced by estimfatediscounts, allowances, advertising supporéraponal chargebacks and provisions for
estimated returns. The significant assumptiongeélto our direct to consumer and wholesale reveane discussed below.

As direct to consumer products may be returnedturé periods after the date of original purchaséhke consumer, we must make
estimates of reserves for products which were goai to the balance sheet date but that we amtieimay be returned by the consumer
subsequent to that date. The determination of ticeconsumer return reserve amounts requires jedgjand consideration of historical and
current trends, evaluation of current economicdsegind other factors. Our historical estimatesirefctito consumer return reserves have not
differed materially from actual results. As of Janu31, 2015, our direct to consumer return reseras $2.3 million. A 10% change in the
direct to consumer return reserve as of Januarg@®15 would have had a $0.2 million pre-tax impatearnings in Fiscal 2014 .

In the normal course of business we offer cert@énalints or allowances to our wholesale custonwgiglesale operations' sales are
recorded net of such discounts and allowancesgdsawadvertising support not specifically relgtin the reimbursement for actual adverti
expenses by our customers, operational chargelaackprovisions for estimated returns. As certdiovances and other deductions are not
finalized until the end of a season, program oeo#vent which may not have occurred yet, we estirsach discounts and allowances on an
ongoing basis. Significant considerations in deteimy our estimates for discounts, allowances, afpemal chargebacks and returns for
wholesale customers may include historical andeturirends, agreements with customers, projectesbsal results, an evaluation of current
economic conditions, specific program or produgiestations and retailer performance. Actual dist®and allowances to our wholesale
customers have not differed materially from ouimeates in prior periods. As of January 31, 2016r,total reserves for discounts, returns and
allowances for our wholesale businesses were $Bli8mand, therefore, if the allowances changedlb9s it would have had a pre-tax impact
of $1.0 million on earnings in Fiscal 2014 . Théstantial majority of these reserves relate tolamer Clothes business as of January 31,
2015.

Additionally, in circumstances where we become awra specific wholesale customer's inability t@etnits financial obligations, a
specific reserve for bad debts is taken as a reduttt accounts receivable to reduce the net razedneceivable to the amount reasonably
expected to be collected. Such amounts are widttfeait the time that the amounts are not considecdidctible. For all other wholesale
customers, we recognize estimated reserves fodélis based on our historical collection experietifeefinancial condition of our customers,
an evaluation of current economic conditions artitgrated trends, each of which is subjective awlires certain assumptions. Actual
charges for uncollectible amounts have not differederially from our estimates in prior periods. &slanuary 31, 2015, our allowance for
doubtful accounts was $0.8 million , and therefdfrthe allowance for doubtful accounts changed.8%s it would have had a ptax impact of
$0.1 million on earnings in Fiscal 2014 . While #mounts deemed uncollectible have not been signifiin recent years if, in the future,
amounts due from significant customer(s) were dektode uncollectible as a result of events thatipsubsequent to January 31, 2015 this
could result in a material charge to our consoéidattatements of operations in future periods.

Inventories, net

For operating group reporting, inventory is carridhe lower of the first-in, first-out (FIFO) nietd cost or market. We continually
evaluate the composition of our inventories, suliihy all of which is finished goods inventongrfidentification of distressed inventory. In
performing this evaluation we consider sltwning products, an indication of lack of consuraeceptance of particular products, prior sea:
fashion products and current levels of replenishtrpesgram products as compared to future salesatds. For direct to consumer inventory,
we provide an allowance for goods expected to lbtsslow cost. For wholesale inventory, we estintateeamount of goods that we will not
able to sell in the normal course of business arii@d \itown the value of these goods as necessarthe®damount to be ultimately realized for
the goods is not necessarily known at period emdmust utilize certain assumptions consideringphisal experience, inventory quantity,
quality, age and mix, historical sales trends, feitsales projections, consumer and retailer prefe® market trends, general economic
conditions and our plans to sell the inventory.oAlse provide an allowance for shrinkage, as apjatg for the period between the last count
and each balance sheet date. Historically, oumestis of inventory markdowns and inventory shrirkhgve not varied significantly from
actual results.

For consolidated financial reporting, $122.2 miilioor 82% , of our inventories are valued at tvedr of last-in, firstaut (LIFO) methoc
cost or market after deducting the $58.6 milliofrQlreserve as of January 31, 2015 . The remair26dd$
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million of our inventories are valued at the loveéiFIFO cost or market as of January 31, 2015 .e@aly, inventories of domestic operations
are valued at the lower of LIFO cost or market envéntories of our international operations aresedl at the lower of FIFO cost or market.
LIFO reserves are based on the Producer Price IfRfel} as published by the United States Departwiebabor. We write down inventories
valued at the lower of LIFO cost or market when@QIExceeds market value. We deem LIFO accountingsadgnts to not only include
changes in the LIFO reserve, but also changes ikdoan reserves which are considered in LIFO actiognAs our LIFO inventory pool
does not correspond to our operating group degimsti LIFO inventory accounting adjustments areatiotated to the respective operating
groups. Thus, the impact of accounting for inveie®on the LIFO method is reflected in Corporate @ther for operating group reporting
purposes.

As of January 31, 2015, we had recorded a res#r$&.7 million related to inventory on the lowdrFdFO cost or market method and
for inventory on the lower of LIFO cost or markegtmod with markdowns in excess of our LIFO reseAv&0% change in the amount of such
markdowns would have a pre-tax impact of $0.2 millon earnings in Fiscal 2014 . A change in thekd@wns of our inventory valued at the
lower of LIFO cost or market method typically wouldt be expected to have a material impact on onsaidated financial statements after
consideration of the existence of our significal®Q reserve of $58.6 million, or 29% of the FIFGstof the inventory, as of January 31,
2015, as well as the high gross margins histdyieadhieved for the sale of our lifestyle brandedducts. A change in inventory levels, or the
mix by inventory category, at the end of futureéisyears compared to inventory balances as ofaiar8i, 2015 could result in a material
impact on our consolidated financial statementsuad a change may erode portions of our earliex paar layers for purposes of making our
annual LIFO computation. Additionally, a changehe PPI as published by the United States Depattofdrabor as compared to the indexes
as of January 31, 2015 could result in a matemgkict on our consolidated financial statementsfietion or deflation would change the
amount of our LIFO reserve.

Given the significant amount of uncertainties sunaing the year-end LIFO calculation, including #stimate of year-end inventory
balances, the proportion of inventory in each inegncategory and the year-end PPI, we typicallywdbadjust our LIFO reserve in the first
three quarters of a fiscal year. This policy magutein significant LIFO accounting adjustmentshie fourth quarter of the fiscal year resulting
from the year over year changes in inventory lewbks PPI and markdown reserves. We do recognizequrarterly basis during each of the
first three quarters of the fiscal year changemankdown reserves as those amounts can be estiorateduarterly basis.

The purchase method of accounting for business twtibns requires that assets and liabilities,uditlg inventories, are recorded at 1
value at acquisition. In accordance with GAAP, dieéinition of fair value of inventories acquiredngeally will equal the expected sales price
less certain costs associated with selling thertorg, which may exceed the actual cost of prodyitire acquired inventories.

In accordance with GAAP, in connection with our @isgions, we recognize a write-up or write-downofentories above the cost of
acquired inventories to fair value, which we inaud our allocation of purchase price. Based orirthientory turn of the acquired inventories,
amounts are recognized as additional cost of gsoldsin the periods subsequent to the acquisitioth@ acquired inventory is sold in the
ordinary course of business. In determining thevaiue of the acquired inventory, as well as thprapriate period to recognize the charge in
our consolidated statements of operations as ftipgir@cl inventory is sold, we must make certain ag®ions regarding costs incurred prior to
acquisition for the acquired inventory, an appratgriprofit allowance, estimates of the costs tbteelinventory and the timing of the sale of
the acquired inventory. Such estimates involveiigant uncertainty, and the use of different asptioms could have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Intangible Assets, net

Intangible assets included in our consolidatedrmasheet as of January 31, 2015 totaled $167l@mjlwhich includes $8.3 million of
intangible assets with finite lives, including rgaaed license rights and customer relationshipd,%159.5 million of trademarks with
indefinite lives. At acquisition, we estimate aedard the fair value of purchased intangible assédigch primarily consist of trademarks,
reacquired rights and customer relationships. &ivevalues and useful lives of these intangibletsare estimated based on our assessment
well as independent third party appraisals in soases. Such valuations, which are dependent upamaer of uncertain factors, may include
a discounted cash flow analysis of anticipated maes and expenses or cost savings resulting freraduired intangible asset using an
estimate of a risk-adjusted market-based costmfalaas the discount rate. The valuation of inthlegassets requires significant judgment due
to the variety of uncertain factors, including plad use of the intangible assets as well as egtintditnet sales, royalty income, operating
income, growth rates, royalty rates for the tradésiadiscount rates and income tax rates, amonrgy fdlstors. The use of different assumpt
related to these uncertain factors at acquisitmrcresult in a material change to the amountatahgible assets initially recorded at
acquisition, which could result in a material impan our consolidated financial statements.
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Trademarks with indefinite lives are not amortibed instead evaluated, either qualitatively or ditatively, for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or circumstances indithéd the intangible asset might be impaired. Waduation of the recoverability of
trademarks with indefinite lives includes valuadiased on a discounted cash flow analysis utijittie relief from royalty method, among
other considerations. This approach is dependestt ampmumber of uncertain factors, including thasedun the initial valuation of the
intangible assets listed above. Such estimatedviegignificant uncertainty, and if our plans otieipated results change, the impact on our
financial statements could be significant. If tarslysis indicates an impairment of a trademark ait indefinite useful life, the amount of the
impairment is recognized in the consolidated finalngtatements based on the amount that the cgrigitue exceeds the estimated fair valu
the asset.

Amortization of intangible assets with finite liyashich primarily consist of reacquired rights angtomer relationships, is recognized
over their estimated useful lives using a methodmbrtization that reflects the pattern in which #tonomic benefits of the intangible assets
are consumed or otherwise realized. We amortizéntangible assets with finite lives for periodsupfto 15 years. The determination of an
appropriate useful life for amortization is basedtloe remaining contractual period, as applicadle plans for the intangible asset as well as
factors outside of our control, including custorattrition. Intangible assets with finite lives asviewed for impairment periodically if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the icey@mount may not be recoverable. If expectedréutliscounted cash flows from operations
are less than their carrying amounts, an assetté&mined to be impaired and a loss is recordethfoamount by which the carrying value of
the asset exceeds its fair value. Amortizationteel@o intangible assets with finite lives tota®l5 million during Fiscal 2014 and is
anticipated to be approximately $2.1 million ind&k2015 .

In Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 ,mpdirment charges related to intangible assets weeagnized. Additionally, we do not
believe that a 10% change in any of the signifie@stumptions utilized in testing our intangiblesgs$or impairment would have resulted in ar
impairment charge during any of those periods.

Goodwill, net

Goodwill is recognized as the amount by which thst ¢to acquire a company or group of assets exdbedair value of assets acquired
less any liabilities assumed at acquisition. Tlins,amount of goodwill recognized in connectionhwatbusiness combination is dependent
upon the fair values assigned to the individuattssacquired and liabilities assumed in a businessination. Goodwill is allocated to the
respective reporting unit at the time of acquisiti@oodwill is not amortized but instead is evaddafor impairment annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate thatgoodwill might be impaired. Substantially @flithe goodwill included in our consolidated
balance sheet as of January 31, 2015 relateslyoRuilitzer.

We test, either qualitatively or as a two-step djit@tive evaluation, goodwill for impairment astbg first day of the fourth quarter of our
fiscal year. The qualitative factors that we usdatermine the likelihood of goodwill impairmens waell as to consider if an interim test is
appropriate, include: (a) macroeconomic conditigbgjndustry and market considerations, (c) castdrs, (d) overall financial performance,
(e) other relevant entity-specific events, (f) egeaiffecting a reporting unit, (g) a sustained dase in share price, or (h) other factors as
appropriate. In the event we determine that we lwilass the qualitative impairment option or if determine that a quantitative test is
appropriate, the quantitative test includes vatuegtiof each applicable underlying business usimy#due techniques and market comparables
which may include a discounted cash flow analysiarmindependent appraisal. Significant estimatesie of which may be very subjective,
considered in such a discounted cash flow anafysisuture cash flow projections of the busindss,discount rate, which estimates the risk-
adjusted market based cost of capital, and otlsemagtions. The estimates and assumptions includ#titwo-step evaluation of the
recoverability of goodwill involve significant uneinty, and if our plans or anticipated resultare, the impact on our financial statements
could be significant.

No impairment of goodwill was recognized duringdais2014 , Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2012 . Additiopalte do not believe that a 10%
change in any of the significant assumptions @iliin testing our goodwill for impairment would laresulted in an impairment charge during
any of those periods.

Income Taxes

Income taxes included in our consolidated finansiatements are determined using the asset arilityiatethod. Under this method,
income taxes are recognized based on amountsahimtaxes payable or refundable in the current geavell as the impact of any items that
are recognized in different periods for consoliddirancial statement reporting and tax return répo purposes. As certain amounts are
recognized in different periods for consolidatethficial statement and tax return reporting purpdsemcial statement and tax bases of asse
and liabilities differ, resulting in the recogniti@f deferred tax assets and liabilities. The defittax assets and liabilities reflect the estichate
future tax effects attributable to these differen@s well as the impact of net operating lossitaidpss and federal and state credit carry-
forwards, each as determined under enacted taxdad/sates expected to apply in the period in wkisth amounts are expected to be realize
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or settled. Further, we consider whether the imaest and earnings of foreign subsidiaries, if amg, permanently reinvested and the impact
that such assertion has on our income tax liahiéipgnized in our consolidated balance sheets.

We recognize deferred tax assets to the extentelievie these assets are more likely than not te&kzed. In making such a
determination, we consider all available positind aegative evidence, including future reversalexi$ting taxable temporary differences,
projected future taxable income, tax-planning styggts, and results of recent operations. Valuatitmwvances are established when we
determine that it is more-likely-than-not that sopaetion or all of a deferred tax asset will notrbalized.

Valuation allowances are analyzed periodically adjiisted as events occur or circumstances chaagwtuld indicate adjustments to
the valuation allowances are appropriate. If wegheine that we would be able to realize our detetas assets in the future in excess of their
net recorded amount, we would reduce the defeareddset valuation allowance, which would reducerime tax expense. Such amounts coul
have a material impact on our consolidated statésraroperations in the future if assumptions eglab valuation allowances changed
significantly. As realization of deferred tax assend liabilities is dependent upon future taxatdeme in specific jurisdictions, changes in tax
laws and rates and shifts in the amount of taxagleme among state and foreign jurisdictions masehasignificant impact on the amount of
benefit ultimately realized for deferred tax assatd liabilities. We account for the effect of chas in tax laws or rates in the period of
enactment.

Recognition and measurement of uncertain tax positoccur when we conclude that a tax positioredaslely on technical merits, is
more-likely-thannot (greater than 50% likelihood) to be sustaingonuexamination. The tax benefit recorded is meakas the largest amot
of benefit determined on a cumulative probabiliisis that is more-likely-than-not to be realizedmupltimate settlement.

As a global company, we are subject to income taxasnumber of domestic and foreign jurisdictiohserefore, our income tax
provision involves many uncertainties due to ndy ¢he timing differences of income for financiaatement reporting and tax return reporti
but also the application of complex tax laws argltations, which are subject to interpretation ear@hagement judgment. The use of different
assumptions or a change in our assumptions refatedok to tax timing differences, our determinataf whether foreign investments or
earnings are permanently reinvested, the abilitg&tize uncertain tax positions, the appropriadered valuation allowances, a reduction in
valuation allowances or other considerations, feangicing practices, the impact of our tax plannstrategies and the jurisdictions or
significance of earnings in future periods eachddave a significant impact on our income tax.raditionally, factors impacting income
taxes including changes in tax laws or interpretetj court case decisions, statute of limitatiopirations or audit settlements could have a
significant impact on our income tax rate. An irage in our consolidated income tax rate from 428%3.9% during Fiscal 2014 would have
reduced net earnings by $0.8 million.

Income tax expense recorded during interim pensdgnerally based on the expected tax rate foyehe, considering projections of
earnings and book to tax differences as of thenoalaheet date, subject to certain limitations@ased with separate foreign jurisdiction los
in interim periods. The tax rate ultimately reatiZer the year may increase or decrease due talagerating results or book to tax differen
varying from the amounts on which our interim cédtions were based. Any changes in assumptionteteta the need for a valuation
allowance, the ability to realize an uncertain pasition, changes in enacted tax rates, the exph@qterating results in total or by jurisdiction
for the year, or other assumptions are accounteit fine period in which the change occurs. Asaierdf our foreign operations are in a loss
position and realization of a future benefit foe thsses is uncertain, a significant variance #3és in such jurisdictions from our expectations
can have a significant impact on our expected drtaxaate. The recognition of the benefit of lassgpected to be realized may be limited in
an interim period and may require adjustmentsxtceigense in the interim period that yield an effectax rate for the interim period that is
not representative of the expected tax rate fofutigear.

See note 8 in our consolidated financial statemiastaded in this report for further discussionimfome taxes.
Fair Value Measurements

For many assets and liabilities the determinatiofaio value may not require the use of many asgionp or other estimates. However
some cases the assumptions or inputs associatedheitletermination of fair value as of a measurdgrdate may require the use of many
assumptions and may be internally derived or otlserwinobservable. We utilize certain market-baseblisternally derived information and
make assumptions about the information in detemygitine fair values of assets and liabilities acpliiis part of a business combination, as
as in other circumstances, adjusting previouslpnded assets and liabilities to fair value at daallance sheet date, including the fair value of
contingent consideration obligations, and assessioggnized assets for impairment, including intialegassets, goodwill and property and
equipment.
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As part of our acquisition of the Lilly Pulitzerdord and operations, we entered into a contingemdideration arrangement whereby we
would be obligated to pay up to $20 million in cashhe aggregate, over the four years following ¢tosing of the acquisition, based on Lilly
Pulitzer's achievement of certain earnings targédis.terms of the contingent consideration arrareggrare discussed in further detail in No
and Note 10 to our consolidated financial statesgrdiuded in this report. As of the date of actieis we determined that the fair value of the
contingent consideration was $10.5 million, whiefected the discounted fair value of the expegiggments. Such valuation required
assumptions regarding anticipated cash flows, fitibes of cash flows, discount rates and othetdes, which each involve a significant
amount of uncertainty. Although there was uncetyabout whether the performance criteria in thetiogent consideration arrangement
would be achieved, we anticipated paying all of¢dbetingent consideration. Thus, the fair valu¢hefcontingent consideration at acquisition
reflected the $20 million of anticipated paymernitedunted to fair value using a discount rate whéftected the uncertainty regarding whei
the earnings target would be met given the groetjuired to achieve the contingent consideratiomy@ags as well as other factors.

Subsequent to the date of acquisition, we musbgeally adjust the liability for the contingentregideration to reflect the fair value of
the contingent consideration by reassessing oulatiah assumptions as of that date. Generallyfain&alue of the contingent consideration
liability is expected to increase each period whitd recognition of the change in fair value of aogent consideration resulting from the
passage of time at the applicable discount rateeagpproach the payment dates of the contingersideration absent any significant changes
in assumptions related to the valuation or the abdhy of payment of the contingent consideratearned. During Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013
Fiscal 2012, we recognized change in fair valueositingent consideration of $0.3 million , $0.3lioit , and $6.3 million respectively, in ou
consolidated statements of operations. The amaaotgnized in Fiscal 2012 reflect the passagensd fis well as a significant change in the
discount rate at February 2, 2013 as discussedavbeibile each of the other years primarily reflecthe passage of time using a discount rate
deemed appropriate at that time, with no significdranges in our other assumptions used in detargifair value during the year.

As of February 2, 2013, we reevaluated the discmatetand determined that the use of a lower disto@ie than used in prior periods
would be appropriate. This lower discount rateetftd our assessment that we believed the likadilddthe contingent consideration being
earned was greater than in prior years based ooomsideration of, among other factors, (1) théohisal earnings achieved by the Lilly
Pulitzer operating group through Fiscal 2012, idoig a significant amount of earnings from Fisdal 2 and Fiscal 2012 in excess of the
targets for those periods which carried over adaction to the targets in future years, (2) ttee&li2012 earnings significantly exceeding botl
the Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2014 targets, (3) opgraicome projections for the Lilly Pulitzer opéray group for future periods exceeding the
Fiscal 2012 operating results and (4) the shoeeraining term of the contingent consideration ayesment, which provided greater visibility
through the term of the agreement. Our assessm#mese factors resulted in a significant reductdthe discount rate for the contingent
consideration to a rate which reflected the redugezkrtainty of the amounts to be paid pursuattiecarrangement.

It is possible that other parties may have maderdint assumptions than we have related to tHidityor that the timing of these
assumptions could have been different. The uséfefent assumptions or a change in the timingetedmining a change in assumptions used
in this assessment could have resulted in mated#fierent amounts recognized as the change irvédiie of contingent consideration
recognized in our historical consolidated finaneskatements. As of January 31, 2015 , based oniskarical operating results of Lilly Pulitzer,
we have determined that the $20 million amount @ased in full, with the remaining $12.5 millionthie obligation to be paid in the First
Quarter of Fiscal 2015. As the performance periaslénded and the amounts were earned in full théditde judgment associated with
determining the fair value of this liability as &dnuary 31, 2015 .

We account for our business combinations usingthiehase method of accounting. The cost of eachi@ohbusiness is allocated to the
individual tangible and intangible assets acquaed liabilities assumed or incurred as a resuthefacquisition based on their estimated fair
values. The assessment of the estimated fair vafugssets and liabilities acquired requires umage certain assumptions regarding the use «
the acquired assets, anticipated cash flows, piliedof cash flows, discount rates and othetdes To the extent information to revise the
allocation becomes available during the allocagieriod the allocation of the purchase price willdogusted. Should information become
available after the allocation period indicatingttadjustments to the allocation are appropriatesd adjustments will be included in operating
results. The allocation period will not exceed grar from the date of the acquisition.

For the determination of fair value for assets katullities acquired as part of a business comlmatadjusting previously recorded as:
and liabilities to fair value at each balance shike¢¢ and assessing, and possibly adjusting, reztjassets for impairment, the assumptior
the timing of changes in these assumptions, thahake regarding the valuation of these assets abfftt significantly from the assumptions
made by other parties. The use of different assiomgpt
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could result in materially different valuations thie respective assets and liabilities, which waelgact our consolidated financial statements.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Refer to Note 1 in our consolidated financial staats included in this report for a discussionemfent accounting pronouncements
issued by the FASB that we have not yet adopteithiteaexpected to possibly have a material effeaduwr financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

SEASONALITY

Each of our operating groups is impacted by seditpiaa the demand by specific product or stylewa$i as by distribution channel, m
vary significantly depending on the time of yeaor lnformation regarding the seasonality impactratividual operating groups and for our
total company, see Part |, Item 1, Business, iredd this report.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures AboMiarket Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inésteates on our indebtedness, which could impactioancial condition and results
of operations in future periods. We may attempinit the impact of interest rate changes on eamiand cash flow, primarily through a mi
variable-rate and fixed-rate debt, although at ik of our debt may be either variable-rate pedirate debt. Further at times, we may enter
into interest rate swap arrangements related taioesf our variable-rate debt in order to fix ih&erest rate on that debt if we determine that
our exposure to interest rate changes is higherdptimal. Our assessment also considers our redkxibility in our borrowing
arrangements resulting from the seasonality ofbasiness, anticipated future cash flows and expientaabout the risk of future interest rate
changes, among other factors. We continuously rapimiterest rates to consider the sources and tefrogr borrowing facilities in order to
determine whether we have achieved our interestmainagement objectives. We do not enter into alggtements or interest rate hedging
transactions on a speculative basis.

As of January 31, 2015, all of our $109.0 millmidebt outstanding was subject to variable integes. Our lines of credit, which
include our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement and dU£. Revolving Credit Agreement, accrue interessdd on variable interest rates while
providing the necessary borrowing flexibility weggre due to the seasonality of our business ansh@ed to fund certain product purchases
with trade letters of credit.

During Fiscal 2014 , our interest expense was #8ll%n . Based on our current borrowings and expe®orrowings under our
revolving credit agreements for Fiscal 2015, wecfpdte that interest expense will be comparablaterest expense in Fiscal 2014 assuming
no significant changes in interest rates in Fi2€dl5. Based the average amount of variable-ratealgstanding in Fiscal 2014 , a 100 basis
point increase in interest rates would not havesiased interest rates by a material amount in F28d . To the extent that the amounts
outstanding under our variable-rate lines of creditease or decrease, our exposure to changetenest rates would also change.

Foreign Currency Risk

To the extent that we have assets and liabiliiesyell as operations, denominated in foreign cwiss that are not hedged, we are
subject to foreign currency transaction and trdimiagains and losses. Approximately 10% of oursadés in Fiscal 2014 were denominated ir
currencies other than the United States dollaih @afitnost half of the foreign currency denominatetisales being net sales in our Ben Shel
operations in the United Kingdom and continentaidpe. As of January 31, 2015, our foreign curresxghange risk exposure primarily
results from transactions of our businesses operatitside of the United States, which is primardlated to (1) our United Kingdom and
European Ben Sherman operations and our Asia-Pacifi Canadian Tommy Bahama operations purchasiogsgn United States dollars or
other currencies which are not the functional auyeof the business; (2) our businesses operatitgjde of the United States selling goods in
currencies other than the applicable functionatenay; and (3) certain other transactions, inclgdimiercompany transactions.

Substantially all of our inventory purchases, inlihg goods for operations in the United Kingdom #rel Asia-Pacific region, from
contract manufacturers throughout the world aredenated in United States dollars. Purchase pfaesur products may be impacted by
fluctuations in the exchange rate between the dr8tates dollar and the local currencies of thérachmanufacturers, which may have the
effect of increasing our cost of goods sold inftitere even though our inventory is purchased bimiged States dollar arrangement.
Additionally, to the extent that the exchange ta#tveen the United States
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dollar and the currency that the inventory willdmd in (e.g. the British pound, Canadian dollaus#alian dollar or Japanese Yen) change:
gross margins of those businesses could be impaiggificantly, particularly if we are not able ittcrease sales prices to our customers.

We may from time to time enter into short-term fgrecurrency forward exchange contracts in therandi course of business to hedge
against changes in foreign currency exchange aatéshe amounts outstanding at any time duringdlae will vary. As of January 31, 2015,
we were a party to $13.7 million of such contrahtst were unsettled, which had an unrealized faue resulting in an asset of $0.7 million .
As of January 31, 2015, all of these contractteel to our Ben Sherman operations in the Unitedy#ioam and continental Europe. These
contracts primarily consist of $10 million of agneents to purchase United States dollars with Brijisund sterling and $3.4 million of
agreements to sell Euro for British pound sterlMtnen such contracts are outstanding, the conteaetmarked to market with the offset being
recognized in other comprehensive income or ousalihated statement of operations if the transadimes or does not, respectively, qualify
as a hedge in accordance with GAAP. We believettieasubstantial majority of any change in foreigmrency exchange rates in our Ben
Sherman operations in the United Kingdom and cential Europe would be offset by a change in theviaue of the related foreign currency
forward exchange contracts.

Due to the limited magnitude and the uncertaintyualtiming of cash flows provided by or used in Tf@mmy Bahama operations in the
Asia-Pacific region and Canada, we have not historicaiiered into forward foreign currency exchangetreat for these operations. Howey
we anticipate that as we continue to expand Tomailyaha's international market presence, our expaésidoeeign currency changes in
Tommy Bahama will increase, and it may be approptia enter into hedging arrangements for theseatipas. We anticipate that in the futi
we may have exposure to foreign currency changesufoencies to which we currently do not have argosure. The extent of our exposure
will be dependent upon the timing of when and tatwwhagnitude we expand in international marketghisttime, we do not anticipate that the
impact of foreign currency changes on Tommy Bahamgernational operations would have a materiglaot on Tommy Bahama's operating
income or our consolidated net earnings in Fis6abyiven the proportion of Tommy Bahama's openatio international markets.

In addition to foreign currency risks related tesific transactions listed above, we also haveigoreurrency exposure risk associated
with translating the financial statements of ouefgn operations with a functional currency othert the United States dollar into United
States dollars for financial reporting purposesiciviwe have not historically hedged. A strengthgrimited States dollar could result in lower
levels of sales and earnings in our consolidataigistents of operations in future periods altholghsiales and earnings in foreign currencies
could be equal to or greater than amounts as pislioeported. Alternatively, if foreign operationave operating losses, then a strengthenin
United States dollar could result in lower lossiésoaigh the losses in foreign currencies coulddpgaéto or greater than amounts as previousl|
reported. Based on our net sales during Fiscal dehéminated in pound sterling, if the United Statellar had been 10% stronger against thi
British pound we would have experienced a decrigasensolidated net sales of $5.7 million and aigtidn in net operating loss of $0.6
million resulting from the translation into Unit&tates dollars.

We view our foreign investments as long-term asda aesult, we generally do not hedge such forgigestments. Also, we do not hold
or issue any derivative financial instruments idaio foreign currency exposure for speculativeppses.

Commodity and Inflation Risk

We are affected by inflation and changing pricesudlh the purchase of full-package finished goodsifcontract manufacturers, who
manufacture products consisting of various raw nieteomponents, and increased operating costedmage risks of commaodity price
changes we negotiate our full-package product piit@dvance and increase selling prices of oullymts when possible. Inflation/deflation
risks are managed by each operating group thraulgbn possible, negotiating product prices in adeaselective price increases, productivity
improvements and cost containment initiatives. \@eehnot historically entered into significant lotegm sales or purchase contracts or
engaged in hedging activities with respect to ammodity risk.
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Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par amounts)

OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses, net
Deferred tax assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other non-current assets, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Income tax payable
Other accrued expenses and liabilities
Contingent consideration
Short-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Non-current contingent consideration
Other non-current liabilities
Non-current deferred income taxes
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders' Equity:
Common stock, $1.00 par value per share
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders' equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

See accompanying notes.
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January 31, February 1,
2015 2014
$ 5281 $ 8,48:
79,10/ 75,277
148,21! 143,71:
24,21¢ 23,09t
24,50 20,46"
281,32. 271,03.
155,07t 141,51¢
167,77( 173,02
17,29t 17,39¢
23,60 24,33:
$ 645,06 $ 627,30!
$ 80,85¢ $ 75,52}
27,51¢ 18,41.
3,63t 6,58/
29,65¢ 26,03(
12,50( 2,50(
4,12¢ 3,99¢
158,29! 133,04t
104,84 137,59:
— 12,22¢
58,11 51,52(
33,21: 32,75¢
16,47¢ 16,41¢
119,05: 114,02:
185,22¢ 153,34«
(30,159 (23,61
290,60! 260,16:
$ 645,06 $ 627,30!




OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2014 2013 2012

Net sales $ 997,80t $ 917,09" $ 855,54.
Cost of goods sold 443,12 403,52: 385,98!
Gross profit 554,67¢ 513,57: 469,55
SG&A 488,92 447,64! 410,73
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 27¢ 27t 6,28t
Royalties and other operating income 18,12 19,01¢ 16,43¢
Operating income 83,60: 84,67( 68,97
Interest expense, net 3,48: 4,16¢ 8,93¢
Loss on repurchase of senior notes — — 9,14:
Earnings before income taxes 80,12( 80,50 50,88¢
Income taxes 34,36: 35,21( 19,57:
Net earnings $ 45,75¢ $ 45,29. $ 31,317
Net earnings per share:

Basic $ 2.7¢ $ 2.7 $ 1.8¢

Diluted $ 2.7¢ $ 27t $ 1.8¢
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 16,42¢ 16,45( 16,56:

Dilution 42 32 23

Diluted 16,47: 16,48. 16,58t¢
Dividends declared per share $ 0.82 % 0.7z $ 0.6

See accompanying notes.
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Net earnings
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain
Net unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net aésax

Comprehensive income

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2014 2013 2012
$ 45,75¢ $ 4529. % 31,317
(7,617 703 171
1,081 264 (1,089
(6,53€) 967 (917)
$ 39,22: $ 46,25¢ $ 30,40¢

See accompanying notes.
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings  Income (Loss) Total

January 28, 2012 16,52: 99,67( 111,55: (23,679 $ 204,06

Net earnings and other

comprehensive loss — — 31,31% (917) 30,40¢

Shares issued under stock plans,

including excess tax benefits of

$0.4 million 73 2,46t — — 2,53¢

Compensation expense for stock

awards — 2,75¢€ — — 2,75¢€

Cash dividends declared and paid — — (9,929 — (9,929
February 2, 2013 16,59¢ 104,89: 132,94 (24,58%) 229,84!

Net earnings and other

comprehensive income — — 45,29 967 46,25¢

Shares issued under stock plans,

including excess tax benefits of

$6.1 million 44 7,471 — — 7,51¢

Compensation expense for stock

awards — 1,65¢ — — 1,65¢

Repurchase of common stock (229) — (22,976 — (23,199

Cash dividends declared and paid — — (11,919 — (11,91H
February 1, 2014 16,41¢ 114,02: 153,34 (23,619 260,16:

Net earnings and other

comprehensive loss — — 45,75¢ (6,536 39,22

Shares issued under stock plans,

including excess tax benefits of

$0.1 million 62 92¢ — — 99C

Compensation expense for stock

awards — 4,10z — — 4,10z

Cash dividends declared and paid — — (23,879 — (13,879
January 31, 2015 $ 16,47¢ $ 119,05:$ 18522¢ $ (30,159 $ 290,60!

See accompanying notes.
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net earnings $ 45,75¢ $ 45,29. $ 31,317
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash plexvby operating activities:
Depreciation 35,16¢ 31,67" 25,31(
Amortization of intangible assets 2,481 2,22¢ 1,02t
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 27¢ 27¢ 6,28¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs and bormtdunt 38t 44z 962
Loss on repurchase of senior notes — — 9,14:
Gain on sale of property and equipment — (1,617 —
Stock compensation expense 4,10z 1,65¢ 2,75¢
Deferred income taxes (3,21%) 674 (3,759
Excess tax benefits related to stock-based compensa — (6,08¢€) (359)
Changes in working capital, net of acquisitions disgpositions:
Receivables (5,672) (12,917 (3,02¢)
Inventories (7,109 (29,489 (5,409
Prepaid expenses (1,64¢) (3,06¢) (1,640
Current liabilities 18,31« 16,82: 2,42¢
Other non-current assets 37 (1,03)) (3,88¢)
Other non-current liabilities 6,527 6,87( 5,93¢
Cash provided by operating activities 95,40¢ 52,73¢ 67,09¢
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (17,889 (1,819
Purchases of property and equipment (50,35%) (43,379 (60,707)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — 2,13( —
Cash used in investing activities (50,35Y (59,130 (62,51%)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Repayment of revolving credit arrangements (352,789) (329,69) (193,329
Proceeds from revolving credit arrangements 320,54¢ 354,64¢ 307,27(
Repurchase of senior notes — — (112,000
Deferred financing costs paid — (401) (1,529
Payment of contingent consideration amounts earned (2,500 — (4,980
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, includiegss tax benefits 99C 7,49¢ 2,892
Repurchase of stock awards for employee tax witlihglliabilities — (13,199 —
Cash dividends declared and paid (13,879 (12,919 (9,929
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities (47,619 6,93¢ (10,599
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (2,56%) 542 (6,017)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash aagh equivalents (637) 424 15&
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 8,48: 7,517 13,37:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year $ 5281 $ 8,48: $ 7,517
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net $ 3,297 $ 3,82¢ $ 8,34¢
Cash paid for income taxes $ 41,80¢ $ 18,15¢ $ 25,44

See accompanying notes.
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
January 31, 2015

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principal Business Activity

We are a global apparel company that designs, ssunearkets and distributes products bearing #ueimarks of our company-owned
lifestyle brands as well as certain licensed anhpe label apparel products. Our portfolio of ltguncludes Tommy Bahama®, Lilly
Pulitzer® and Ben Sherman®, as well as owned amthdied brands for tailored clothing and golf app&ve distribute our company-owned
lifestyle branded products through our direct tastomer channel, consisting of owned retail stoneseacommerce sites, and our wholesale
distribution channel, which includes better deparitrstores and specialty stores. Additionally, werate Tommy Bahama restaurants,
generally adjacent to selected Tommy Bahama r&ttaiés. Our branded and private label tailorechatgt products are distributed through
department stores, national chains, warehouse,aldrss merchants, specialty stores, specialtyozgalnd Internet retailers. Originally
founded in 1942, we have underwent a transformattowe migrated from our historical domestic maaufidng roots towards a focus on
designing, sourcing, marketing and distributingnoied apparel products bearing prominent tradenmaked by us.

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest toalar81 and will, in each case, begin at the begmof the day next following the last
day of the preceding fiscal year. As used in ounrsotidated financial statements, the terms Fis@aR2Fiscal 2013; Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal
2015 reflect the 53 weeks ended February 2, 284 3)veeks ended February 1, 2014, 52 weeks emdaehd/ 31, 2015 and 52 weeks ending
January 30, 2016, respectively.

Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include twants of Oxford Industries, Inc. and any othditiess in which we have a controlling
financial interest, including our wholly-owned dostie and foreign subsidiaries, or entities that ntlee definition of a variable interest entity
of which we are deemed to be the primary beneficidany. In determining whether a controllingdimcial interest exists, we consider
ownership of voting interests, as well as othentsgf the investors. The results of operationaaofuired businesses are included in our
consolidated statements of operations from thea@se dates of the acquisitions. All significantercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated in consolidation.

Business Combinations

We account for our business combinations usingthiehase method of accounting. The cost of eachiohbusiness is allocated to the
individual tangible and intangible assets acquaed liabilities assumed based on their estimatedddues. The assessment of the estimated
fair values of assets and liabilities acquired nexguus to make certain assumptions regardingsbhefithe acquired assets, anticipated cash
flows, probabilities of cash flows, discount ratesl other factors. The purchase price allocation bearevised during an allocation period as
necessary when, and if, information becomes aJail@brevise the fair values of the assets acquaretthe liabilities assumed. Should
information become available after the allocatienigd indicating that an adjustment to the purchage allocation is appropriate, that
adjustment will be included in our consolidatedestaents of operations. The allocation period wilf exceed one year from the date of the
acquisition.

During Fiscal 2012, we acquired for $1.8 milliothe assets and operations of the Tommy Bahamadsssin Australia from our former
licensee that operated that business. Additiondllying Fiscal 2013, we acquired for $17.9 millidhe assets and operations of the Tommy
Bahama business in Canada from our former licetiegeoperated that business. For the Tommy Bahaanada acquisition, allocation of the
purchase price to significant assets acquired basedeir respective fair values was as followacrgiired license rights of $11 million,
inventory of $4.4 million and fixed assets of $miflion .

Transaction costs related to business combinatiinish are not included in the purchase price artsopaid to the sellers disclosed
above, are included in SG&A in our consolidatedesteents of operations as incurred.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable



Our revenue consists of direct to consumer salbhancludes retail store, e-commerce, restawaadtconcession sales, and wholesale
sales. We consider revenue realized or realizatileearned when the following criteria are met:g@jsuasive evidence of an agreement exist
(2) delivery has occurred, (3) our price to thedauyg fixed or determinable and (4) collectibilisyreasonably assured.

76




OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

Retail store, e-commerce, restaurant and concessiemues are recognized at the time of sale tewnars, which is at the time of
purchase for retail, restaurant and concessiosadions and the time of shipment for e-commertesskach of these types of transactions
requires payment at the time of the transactionchvis typically made via a credit card and cokekby us upon settlement of the credit card
transaction within a few days. Retail store, e-carug, restaurant and concession revenues are eecoed of estimated returns and discounts
as appropriate, and net of applicable sales taxeari consolidated statements of operations.

For sales within our wholesale operations, we a®rsa submitted purchase order or some form ofrel@ic communication from the
customer requesting shipment of the goods to bsupsive evidence of an agreement. For substansiilbf our wholesale sales, our products
are considered sold and delivered at the timethigaproducts are shipped. For certain transactiondich the goods do not pass through our
owned or third party distribution centers and tithed the risks and rewards of ownership pass atrtteethe goods leave the foreign port,
revenue is recognized at that time.

In the normal course of business, in addition tieesion of typical credit terms, we offer certaisabunts or allowances to our wholesale
customers. Wholesale operations' sales are recomtenf such discounts and allowances, as welthasrtising support not specifically relating
to the reimbursement for actual advertising expehgeour customers, operational chargebacks andspwos for estimated returns. As certain
allowances and other deductions are not finalized the end of a season, program or other evemtiwimay not have occurred yet, we
estimate such discounts and allowances on an ogdaisis. Significant considerations in determirong estimates for discounts, allowances,
operational chargebacks and returns for wholesstomers may include historical and current treagseements with customers, projected
seasonal results, an evaluation of current econoamditions, specific program or product expectatiand retailer performance. We record
discounts, returns and allowances as a reductiaettsales in our consolidated statements of dpesatAs of January 31, 2015 and
February 1, 2014 , reserve balances related te itezas were $9.3 million and $9.7 million , respesly.

In circumstances where we become aware of a spedifolesale customer's inability to meet its finahobligations, a specific reserve
for bad debts is taken as a reduction to accoectsivable to reduce the net recognized receivaltleet amount reasonably expected to be
collected. Such amounts are written off at the tiha# the amounts are not considered collectilide aft other wholesale customers, we
recognize estimated reserves for bad debts basedrdristorical collection experience, the finahciandition of our customers, an evaluation
of current economic conditions and anticipateddegreach of which is subjective and requires aedasumptions. We include such charges
and write-offs in SG&A in our consolidated statenseof operations. As of January 31, 2015 and Fepruz2014 , bad debt reserve balances
were $0.8 million and $0.6 million , respectively.

Gift cards and merchandise credits issued by uscamded as a liability until they are redeemeadylach point revenue is recognized.
We recognize breakage income for gift cards andhardise credits, subject to applicable laws itagestates, when we determine that the
likelihood of the gift cards and merchandise cietiting redeemed is remote. Deferred revenue fiocagids purchased by consumers and
merchandise credits received by customers butetategleemed, less any breakage income recogniziatepis included in other accrued
expenses and liabilities in our consolidated badesieets and totaled $7.4 million and $6.0 milisrof January 31, 2015 and February 1,
2014, respectively. Gift card breakage, which was naterial in any period presented, is included ingad¢s in our consolidated statement
operations.

Royalties from the license of our owned brands ciigire generally based on the greater of a peermtathe licensee's actual net sales
or a contractually determined minimum royalty amoane recorded based upon the guaranteed minireuatsland adjusted as sales data, or
estimates thereof, is received from licenseesoinescases, we may receive initial payments fogthat of license rights, which are recogni
as revenue over the term of the license agreerRealty income was $17.9 million , $16.9 millionda$16.4 million during Fiscal 2014 ,
Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 , respectively, ariddsided in royalties and other operating incomeun consolidated statements of operations.

Cost of Goods Sold

We include in cost of goods sold all sourcing anstprement costs and expenses incurred prior ito association with the receipt of
finished goods at our distribution facilities, aslias freight from our warehouse to our own rettires, wholesale customers and e-commerc
consumers. The costs prior to receipt at our dhistion facilities include product cost, inboundidte charges, import costs, purchasing costs,
internal transfer costs, direct labor, manufaconerhead, insurance, duties, brokers' fees, tidaswrs' fees and depreciation and
amortization expense associated with our manufagfusourcing
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

and procurement operations. Our gross margins roaendirectly comparable to those of our compedjtas statement of operations
classifications of certain expenses may vary byamy.

SG&A

We include in SG&A costs incurred subsequent tardeeipt of finished goods at our distribution fiieis, such as the cost of inspection,
stocking, warehousing, picking and packing, andadits associated with the operations of our retaiks, e-commerce sites, restaurants and
concessions, such as labor, occupancy costs,atdreestaurant pre-opening costs (including reatketing, store set-up costs and training
expenses) and other fees. SG&A also includes ptathsign costs, selling costs, royalty costs, dtsieg, promotion and marketing expenses,
professional fees, other general and administraipenses, our corporate overhead costs and aatmnmiof intangible assets.

Distribution network costs, including shipping amehdling, are included as a component of SG&A. Wesier distribution network
costs to be the costs associated with operatinglistribution centers, as well as the costs paitiitol parties who perform those services fol
In Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 rithistion network costs, including shipping and hargl included in SG&A totaled $24.4
million , $22.6 million and $24.4 million , respactly. We generally classify amounts billed to amsers for shipping and handling fees in net
sales and classify costs related to direct to ameswcustomers in cost of goods sold and shippitage® to wholesale customers in SG&A in
our consolidated statements of operations.

All costs associated with advertising, promoting amarketing of our products are expensed duringénmd when the advertisement
first shows. Costs associated with cooperative didugy programs under which we agree to make gémentributions to our wholesale
customers' advertising and promotional funds aregaly recorded as a reduction to net sales agnézed. If we negotiate an advertising f
and share in the cost for an advertising planighfitr specific ads run for products purchasedhgydustomer from us, and the customer is
required to provide proof that the advertisemerd wen, such costs are generally recognized as S@&#ertising, promotions and marketing
expenses included in SG&A for Fiscal 2014 , Fig3 and Fiscal 2012 were $34.8 million , $32.3iamland $27.6 million , respectively.
Prepaid advertising, promotions and marketing egpsincluded in prepaid expenses in our consotidadéance sheets as of January 31, 201
and February 1, 2014 were $2.0 million and $1.%aonil, respectively.

Royalties related to our license of third partyrtats, which are generally based on the greatepefeentage of our actual net sales fol
brand or a contractually determined minimum royaltyount, are recorded based upon the guaranteéehunmlevels and adjusted based on
net sales of the branded products, as approphmgame cases, we may be required to make cenafront payments for the license rights,
which are deferred and recognized as royalty ex@ewsr the term of the license agreement. Royalbgeses recognized as SG&A in Fiscal
2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 were $5.3 milji§5.0 million and $4.8 million , respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash equivalents to be shemta investments with original maturities of threenths or less for purposes of our consolid
statements of cash flows.

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Investing anth&ncing Activities

In connection with the contingent consideratioreagnent associated with our acquisition of the LHlylitzer brand and operations, we
accrued $0.3 million , $0.3 million and $6.3 mitliof change in fair value of contingent considemain our consolidated statements of
operations during Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and&fig012 , respectively. During Fiscal 2015, thaa@ing $12.5 million of contingent
consideration payable associated with the Lillyit2et contingent consideration agreement will biel pAmounts paid pursuant to this
contingent consideration arrangement are refleict@dyment of contingent consideration earned incomsolidated statements of cash flows
and discussed in more detail below.

Inventories, net

For operating group reporting, inventory is carrg¢dhe lower of FIFO cost or market. We continpalaluate the composition of our
inventories, substantially all of which is finishgdods inventory, for identification of distressadentory. In performing this evaluation we



consider slow-turning products, an indication aklaf consumer acceptance of particular
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

products, prior-seasons' fashion products, broksoréments, and current levels of replenishmergrpra products as compared to future sale:
estimates. We estimate the amount of goods thatilvaot be able to sell in the normal course ofimgess and write down the value of these
goods as necessary. As the amount to be ultimegalized for the goods is not necessarily knowpegitod end, we must utilize certain
assumptions considering historical experience,ntory quantity, quality, age and mix, historicalesatrends, future sales projections,
consumer and retailer preferences, market treragergl economic conditions and our plans to seliientory. Also, we provide an
allowance for shrinkage, as appropriate, for thiopebetween the last inventory count and eachnoalgheet date.

For consolidated financial reporting, as of Jan&dry2015 and February 1, 2014 , $122.2 million82% , and $120.5 million , or 84% ,
of our inventories were valued at the lower of LIE@st or market after deducting our LIFO resendee Temaining $26.0 million and $23.2
million of our inventories were valued at the loveé=IFO cost or market as of January 31, 2015Fefatuary 1, 2014respectively. Generall
inventories of our domestic operations are valudtie@lower of LIFO cost or market, and our invei#s of our international operations are
valued at the lower of FIFO cost or market. LIFGenees are based on the Producer Price Index éishmiby the United States Department
of Labor. We write down inventories valued at tbeér of LIFO cost or market when LIFO cost excemdsket value. We deem LIFO
accounting adjustments to not only include chamgéise LIFO reserve, but also changes in markdaygenves which are considered in LIFO
accounting. As our LIFO inventory pool does notrespond to our operating group definitions, LIF®@entory accounting adjustments are not
allocated to the respective operating groups. Tingsimpact of accounting for inventories on the@QImethod is reflected in Corporate and
Other for operating group reporting purposes inetloh Note 2.

There were no LIFO inventory liquidations in Fis2éll4 , Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2012 . As of Jan&dry2015 and February 1, 2014 , the
LIFO reserves included in our consolidated balasiwets were $58.6 million and $56.7 million , respely.

The purchase method of accounting for business twtibns requires that assets and liabilities,uditlg inventories, are recorded at 1
value at acquisition. In accordance with GAAP, dieéinition of fair value of inventories acquiredngeally will equal the expected sales price
less certain costs associated with selling theritourg, which may exceed the actual cost of the medunventories.

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, including leasehold impnosets that are reimbursed by landlords as a témgmbvement allowance and any
assets under capital leases, is carried at casatzumulated depreciation. Additions are capédliwhile repair and maintenance costs are
charged to our consolidated statements of opematsrincurred. Depreciation is calculated using) Bttight-line and accelerated methods
generally over the estimated useful lives of theetssas follows:

Leasehold improvements Lesser of remaining life of the asset or lease term
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and technology 2 — 15 years
Buildings and improvements 7 — 40 years

Property and equipment is reviewed periodicallyifigpairment if events or changes in circumstanodicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Events that would typicadbult in such an assessment would include a ehanitpe estimated useful life of the
assets, including a change in our plans of theigatied period of operating a leased retail stomestaurant location, the discontinued use ¢
asset and other factors. If expected future distmolicash flows from operations are less than ttegitying amounts, an asset is determined to
be impaired and a loss is recorded for the amoymitich the carrying value of the asset exceedsits/alue.

Substantially all of our depreciation expense @duded in SG&A in our consolidated statements afrafions, with the only depreciation
included elsewhere within our consolidated statdmehoperations being depreciation associated sithrmanufacturing, sourcing and
procurement processes, which is included in cogbofls sold. No material impairment of fixed asseds recognized in any period presented.
Depreciation by operating group in Note 2 and in@ansolidated statements of cash flows includgsfiaed impairment charges.

Intangible Assets, net
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

At acquisition, we estimate and record the faiueadf purchased intangible assets, which primaolysist of trademarks, reacquired
rights and customer relationships. The fair vales useful lives of these intangible assets ammattd based on our assessment as well as
independent third party appraisals in some casesh $aluations, which are dependent upon a nunfanaertain factors, may include a
discounted cash flow analysis of anticipated reesrand expenses or cost savings resulting froradteired intangible asset using an estimat
of a risk-adjusted market-based cost of capitdhagliscount rate.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives, which pairiy consist of trademarks, are not amortizedibstiead evaluated for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or circumsisindicate that the intangible asset might beaired. The evaluation of the recoverability
of trademarks with indefinite lives includes vaioas based on a discounted cash flow analysiziaijithe relief from royalty method, among
other considerations. Like the initial valuatiome tevaluation of recoverability is dependent upoimber of uncertain factors which require
certain assumptions to be made by us, includinighasts of net sales, royalty income, operatingimepgrowth rates, royalty rates for the
trademark, discount rates and income tax ratespgrather factors. If an annual or interim analysdicates an impairment of a trademark v
an indefinite useful life, the amount of the impaént is recognized in our consolidated financiateshents based on the amount that the
carrying value exceeds the estimated fair valube®fsset.

We have the option to first assess qualitativeofadio determine whether it is more likely than that an indefinite-lived intangible asset
is impaired as a basis for determining whethes itdcessary to perform the quantitative impairnestt The more-likely-than-not threshold is
defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 petc We also have the option to bypass the qtiaitassessment for any indefinite-lived
intangible asset in any period and proceed dirgotlyerforming the quantitative impairment testpBgsing the qualitative assessment in any
period does not prohibit us from performing thelijative assessment in any subsequent period.

We test, either quantitatively or qualitativelytangible assets with indefinite lives for impairmes of the first day of the fourth quarter
of our fiscal year, or at an interim date if indma of impairment exist at that date. No impairtn&intangible assets with indefinite lives was
recognized during any period presented.

We recognize amortization of intangible assets ¥itite lives, which primarily consist of reacquireights and customer relationships,
over the estimated useful lives of the intangilgiseds using a method of amortization that reflgwpattern in which the economic benefits of
the intangible assets are consumed or otherwisigedaCertain of our intangible assets with firitees may be amortized over periods of up t
15 years in some cases. The determination of aroppate useful life for amortization considers teenaining contractual period of the
reacquired right, as applicable, our plans foritih@ngible assets and factors outside of our cgritrduding expected customer attrition.
Amortization of intangible assets is included in&Gin our consolidated statements of operationtarigible assets with finite lives are
reviewed for impairment periodically if events dranges in circumstances indicate that the carrgimgunt may not be recoverable. If expe
future discounted cash flows resulting from thaingible assets are less than their carrying ampantasset is determined to be impaired and
loss is recorded for the amount by which the cagyialue of the asset exceeds its fair value. Nmirment of intangible assets with finite
lives was recognized during any period presented.

Any costs associated with extending or renewinggaized intangible assets, which primarily congfdrademarks and customer
relationships, are generally expensed as incurred.

Goodwill, net

Goodwill is recognized as the amount by which thst to acquire a company or group of assets exdbedair value of assets acquired
less any liabilities assumed at acquisition. THius,amount of goodwill recognized in connectiontvdtbusiness combination is dependent
upon the fair values assigned to the individua¢tsacquired and liabilities assumed in a businessination. Goodwill is allocated to the
respective reporting unit at the time of acquisitiGoodwill is not amortized but instead is evaddafor impairment annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate thatgoodwill might be impaired.

We test, either qualitatively or as a two-step djit@tive evaluation, goodwill for impairment astbg first day of the fourth quarter of our
fiscal year. The qualitative factors that we usdatermine the likelihood of goodwill impairmens waell as to determine if an interim test is
appropriate, include: (a) macroeconomic conditighgjndustry and market considerations,
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(c) cost factors, (d) overall financial performan@® other relevant entity-specific events, (feets affecting a reporting unit, (g) a sustained
decrease in share price, or (h) other factors pgoapate. In the event we determine that we wjipdss the qualitative impairment option or if
we determine that a quantitative test is approgritie quantitative test includes valuations ohesaplicable underlying business using fair
value techniques and market comparables which n@yde a discounted cash flow analysis or an indeéget appraisal. Significant estimates,
some of which may be very subjective, considereslich a discounted cash flow analysis are futush @aw projections of the business, the
discount rate, which estimates the risk-adjustetkeidased cost of capital, and other assumptibims.estimates and assumptions included in
the twostep evaluation of the recoverability of goodwilVolve significant uncertainty, and if our plansamticipated results change, the im|
on our financial statements could be significant.

If an annual or interim analysis indicates an impaint of goodwill balances, the impairment is retogd in our consolidated financial
statements. No impairment of goodwill was recogaidering any period presented. As of January 3152@&ll the goodwill included in our
consolidated balance sheet is deductible for tagqzes.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Non-Current Assets, net

Amounts included in prepaid expenses primarily @&iref prepaid operating expenses, including ragvertising, samples, taxes,
maintenance contracts, insurance, retail supgertising and royalties. Other non-current agzetsarily consist of assets set aside for
potential deferred compensation liabilities relatedur deferred compensation plan as discussedvbaksets related to certain investments in
officers' life insurance policies, security depssihd deferred financing costs.

Officers' life insurance policies that are ownedusy which are included in other non-current assets are recorded at their cash
surrender value, less any outstanding loans asedaidth the life insurance policies that are pagab the life insurance company with which
the policy is outstanding. As of January 31, 2048 Bebruary 1, 2014 , the officers’ life insurapoécies, net, recorded in our consolidated
balance sheets totaled $5.1 million and $5.8 nnillicespectively.

Deferred financing costs, which are included ireothon-current assets, net, are amortized on igistiiine basis, which approximates
the effective interest method over the life of thkated debt. Amortization expense for deferredriiting costs, which is included in interest
expense in our consolidated statements of opestwas $0.4 million , $0.4 million and $0.8 millidarring Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and
Fiscal 2012 , respectively. Unamortized deferredricing costs totaled $1.5 million and $1.9 millanJanuary 31, 2015 and February 1, 201«
respectively.

Deferred Compensation

We have a non-qualified deferred compensation pféered to a select group of highly compensatedleyges and our non-employee
directors. The plan provides participants with dipportunity to defer a portion of their cash congagion in a given plan year, of which a
percentage may be matched by us in accordancdheitterms of the plan. We make contributions tdrausts or other investments to prov
a source of funds for satisfying these deferredpmmsation liabilities. Investments held for ouratedd compensation plan consist of insuranc
contracts and are recorded based on valuationdwgeicerally incorporate unobservable factors. Agedn the value of the underlying assets
would substantially be offset by a change in thbility to the participant resulting in an immaggmet impact on our consolidated financial
statements. These securities approximate the ipanicdirected investment selections underlyingdbferred compensation liabilities.

The total value of the assets set aside for patetitiferred compensation liabilities, which arduded in other non-current assets, net, a:
of January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014 was $tlion and $11.4 million , respectively, substaily all of which are held in a rabbi trust.
The liabilities associated with the non-qualifieefetred compensation plan are included in otherqwrent liabilities in our consolidated
balance sheets and totale d $11.3 million and $illlbn at January 31, 2015 and February 1, 20kspectively.

Accounts Payable, Accrued Compensation and Othecrdied Expenses and Liabilities

Liabilities for accounts payable, accrued compeéosaind other accrued expenses and liabilitiesanéed at cost, which reflects the fair
value of the consideration expected to be paitiénfaiture for goods and services received, whethaot billed to us. Accruals for employee
insurance and workers' compensation, which areded in other accrued expenses and liabilitiesiimconsolidated balance sheets, include



estimated settlements for known claims, as welazsuals for estimates of incurred but not repoctagns based on our claims
experience and statistical trends.
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We are subject to certain claims and assessmdatsddo legal proceedings in the ordinary courfdausiness. The claims and
assessments may relate to disputes about intedlqmtoperty, real estate and contracts, as wddlas, employment, environmental and tax
matters. For those matters where it is probablevilkeshave incurred a loss and the loss, or rand@sef can be reasonably estimated, we have
recorded reserves in other accrued expenses dnildiéia in our consolidated financial statemerusthe estimated loss and related legal fees.
In other instances, because of the uncertaintlaterkto both the probable outcome or amount qgeaf loss, we are unable to make a
reasonable estimate of a liability, if any, and éfiere have not recorded a reserve. As additioriatination becomes available or as
circumstances change, we adjust our assessmeestintes of such liabilities accordingly. We betieghe outcome of outstanding or pending
matters, individually and in the aggregate, wilt have a material impact on our consolidated firgrstatements, based on information
currently available.

Contingent Consideration

In connection with acquisitions, we may enter iobmtingent consideration arrangements, which pefad the payment of additional
purchase consideration to the sellers if certanfop@ance criteria are achieved during a specifiedod. Pursuant to the guidance related t
purchase method of accounting, we must recogniéaiih value of the contingent consideration baseds estimated fair value at the date of
acquisition. Such valuation requires assumptioganding anticipated cash flows, probabilities aflcélows, discount rates and other factors.
Each of these assumptions may involve a signifiaambunt of uncertainty. Subsequent to the dateadiaition, we must periodically adjust
the liability for the contingent consideration &flect the fair value of the contingent considenatby reassessing our valuation assumptions a
of that date. Absent any other changes to assungpiinzluded in our valuation of the contingent ddesation, we expect as time passes the
fair value of the contingent consideration wouldréase due to the passage of time as we approagayiment dates. Additionally, a change ir
assumptions related to the contingent considerataid have a material impact on our consolidateahicial statements. Any change in the
value of the contingent consideration is recognaeghange in fair value of contingent considenaitioour consolidated statements of
operations.

As part of our acquisition of the Lilly Pulitzerdord and operations on December 21, 2010, we entdred contingent consideration
arrangement whereby we would be obligated to pap @20 million in cash in the aggregate, overfthe years following the closing of the
acquisition, based on Lilly Pulitzer's achievemaintertain earnings targets. The terms of the agefit consideration arrangement are
discussed in further detail in Note 10, while theoants paid by year through January 31, 2015 ateded in the table below.

As of the date of acquisition, we determined thatfair value of the contingent consideration wa8.% million , which reflected the
discounted fair value of the expected paymentdiqdigh there was uncertainty about whether the pagnce criteria in the contingent
consideration arrangement would be achieved, weipated paying all of the contingent consideratibhus, the fair value of the contingent
consideration at acquisition reflected the $20ionillof anticipated payments discounted to fair galging a discount rate which reflected the
uncertainty regarding whether the earnings targetidvbe met given the growth required to achiewedbntingent consideration payments as
well as other factors.

As of February 2, 2013, we reevaluated the disctatetand determined that the use of a lower distc@ie than used in prior periods
would be appropriate. This lower discount rateetfd our assessment that we believed the likeditdbthe contingent consideration being
earned was greater than in prior years based ooomsideration of, among other factors, (1) théohisal earnings achieved by the Lilly
Pulitzer operating group through Fiscal 2012, idofg a significant amount of earnings from Fisdal 2 and Fiscal 2012 in excess of the
targets for those periods which carried over adaction to the targets in future years, (2) ttee&li2012 earnings significantly exceeding botl
the Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2014 targets, (3) opgraticome projections for the Lilly Pulitzer op#&ray group for future periods exceeding the
Fiscal 2012 operating results and (4) the shoeraining term of the contingent consideration ayesment, which provides greater visibility
through the term of the agreement. Our assessrémese factors resulted in a significant reductdthe discount rate for the contingent
consideration to a rate which reflected the redugezrtainty of the amounts to be paid pursuattiécarrangement. The change in fair valu
contingent consideration charge in each other ggriesented primarily reflected the passage of tisieg an appropriate discount rate at that
time rather than significant changes in our assignptrelated to the probability of the amounts besarned or discount rate assumptions.

A summary of the fair value of the contingent cdesation liability, including current and non-cuttemounts, is as follows (in
thousands):
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Fiscal 201« Fiscal 201! Fiscal 201:

Balance at beginning of year $ 14,72 $ 1445($ 13,14¢
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 27t 27t 6,28t
Contingent consideration payments made to selleiisglthe year (2,500 — (4,980
Balance at end of year $ 12,50( $ 14,72 $ 14,45(

Other Non-current Liabilities

Amounts included in other non-current liabilitiegnparily consist of deferred rent related to ouergiing lease agreements as discussec
below, deferred compensation as discussed abogtegraanvironmental remediation reserve as discuadddte 6.

Leases

In the ordinary course of business we enter irdsdeagreements for retail, restaurant, office ametkouse/distribution space, as well as
leases for certain equipment. The leases havengtgrms and expirations and frequently have pronwssto extend, renew or terminate the
lease agreement, among other terms and condiagnsegotiated. We assess the lease at inceptiotedgionine whether the lease qualifies
capital or operating lease. Assets leased undéatgases and the related liabilities are inctlideour consolidated balance sheets in propert
and equipment and long-term debt, respectivelyetssdeased under operating leases are not recaolgasézassets and liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheets.

When a non-cancelable operating lease include$ieey escalation clauses, lease incentives forhefitlays and/or landlord build-out-
related allowances, rent expense is generally rézed on a straight-line basis over the initiafrtesf the lease from the date that we take
possession of the space and does not assume yhararination options included in the lease willdbercised. The amount by which rents
payable under the lease since lease inceptiorrslfifem the amount recognized on a straigig-basis since lease inception is recorded ier
non-current liabilities in our consolidated balasbeets. Deferred rent as of January 31, 2015 ebdikry 1, 2014 was $44.5 million a$87.¢
million , respectively. Contingent rents, includitigpse based on a percentage of retail sales tateddevels, and rental payment increases
based on a contingent future event are recogngddeaexpense is incurred.

If we vacate leased space and determine that va@tplan to use the space in the future, we reeegailoss for any future rent
payments, less any anticipated future subleaseria@nd adjusted for any deferred rent amountsdedun our consolidated balance sheet on
that date. Additionally, for any lease that we tierae and agree to a lease termination paymentegagnize in SG&A in our consolidated
statements of operations a loss for the lease tation payment at the time of the agreement. N@rn@tamounts of such charges were
incurred in any period presented.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange risknwie generate net sales or incur expenses imcigseother than the functional
currency of the respective operations. We haverhited that the functional currency for substahtiall of our operations is the respective
local currency. The resulting assets and liabditenominated in amounts other than the respeftinational currency are remeasured into the
respective functional currency at the rate of erglean effect on the balance sheet date, and ineordexpenses are remeasured at the av
rates of exchange prevailing during the relevanibde The impact of any such remeasurement is mized in our consolidated statements of
operations in that period. Net gains (losses) edl&b foreign currency transactions recognizedsodt 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2@l&xe
not material to our consolidated financial statetsen

Additionally, the financial statements of our op@nas for which the functional currency is a cuggmther than the United States dollar
are translated into United States dollars at tteeghexchange in effect on the balance sheetfdatbe balance sheet and at the average ra
exchange prevailing during the relevant periodtiierstatements of operations. The impact of suststation is recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) in our consdaidiéalance sheets and included in other comprefeimstiome (loss) in our consolidated
statements of comprehensive income resulting impact on net earnings for the relevant period.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments, which include darward foreign currency exchange contracts atet@st rate swap agreements, are
measured at their fair values in our consolidat@drce sheets. Unrealized gains and losses argrieed as prepaid expenses or accrued
expenses, respectively. The accounting for chaimgie fair value of derivative instruments depeadsvhether the derivative has been
designated and qualifies for hedge accounting.cFiteria used to determine if a derivative finahaistrument qualifies for hedge accounting
treatment are whether an appropriate hedging imsnt has been identified and designated to redspedcific exposure and whether there is ¢
high correlation between changes in the fair valuthe hedging instrument and the identified expediased on the nature of the hedging
relationship. Based on the nature of the hedgitadiomship, a qualifying derivative is designated &ccounting purposes as a fair value hedge
a cash flow hedge or a hedge of a net investmemfaneign business. As of January 31, 2015 ,faduo derivative financial instruments that
qualify for hedge accounting treatment are desiggphat cash flow hedges.

We formally document hedging instruments and hegigitationships at the inception of each contfaatther, we assess both at the
inception of a contract and on an ongoing basigthdr the hedging instrument is effective in offsgtthe risk of the hedged transaction. For
any derivative financial instrument that is desigeand qualifies for hedge accounting treatmedttes not been settled as of period-end, the
unrealized gains (losses) on the outstanding direvéinancial instrument is recognized, to theemttthe hedge relationship has been effective
as a component of comprehensive income in our didlased statements of comprehensive income andnadiated other comprehensive
income (loss) in our consolidated balance sheetsafy financial instrument that is not designatsa hedge for accounting purposes, or for
any ineffective portion of a hedge, the unrealigadhs (losses) on the outstanding derivative fir@mestrument is included in net earnings.
Cash flows related to hedging transactions aresified in our consolidated statements of cash fland consolidated statements of operations
in the same category as the items being hedged.

We do not use derivative financial instrumentstfading or speculative purposes. Other than oerast rate swap agreement, noted
below, we did not hold any derivative financialtiugnents, which had not been settled, that werelasignated as a cash flow hedge for
accounting purposes as of January 31, 2015 andi&gbt, 2014 and no significant ineffectiveness measrded on qualifying hedges during
Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2012 .

The counterparties to our derivative contractsgarerally financial institutions with investmentgde credit ratings. To manage our
credit risk related to our derivative financialtinenents, we periodically monitor the credit ridkooir counterparties, limit our exposure in the
aggregate and to any single counterparty, and gijuwshedging position, as appropriate. The impéctedit risk, as well as the ability of each
party to fulfill its obligations under our derived financial instruments, is considered in detemgjrihe fair value of the contracts. Historically,
credit risk has not had a significant effect onfdievalue of our derivative contracts. We do hate any credit risk-related contingent feature:
or collateral requirements with our derivative fica@l instruments.

Foreign Currency Risk Management

As of January 31, 20150ur foreign currency exchange risk exposure miilsngesults from our businesses operating outsidihe Unitec
States, which are primarily related to (1) our ©diKingdom and European Ben Sherman operations@anésia-Pacific and Canadian
Tommy Bahama operations purchasing goods in UiStates dollars or other currencies which are nofuihctional currencies of the
businesses; (2) our businesses operating outsithe dfnited States selling goods in currenciesrdtien the applicable functional currencies;
and (3) certain other transactions, including icwempany transactions. We may enter into short-fermard foreign currency exchange
contracts in the ordinary course of business tigatié a portion of the risk associated with foredginrency exchange rate fluctuations relate
purchases of inventory or selling goods in curresicither than the functional currencies by cexiour foreign operations. Historically, we
have entered into forward foreign currency exchasaggracts for our Ben Sherman United Kingdom bessnusing pound sterling for the
purchase of United States dollars, which are useth¥entory purchases, and for the sale of Eutacware generated from Ben Sherman
operations in continental Europe, for pound stgrlibue to the limited magnitude and the uncertadtitgut timing of cash flows provided by or
used in the Tommy Bahama operations in the AsiafiPaegion and Canada, we have not historicallieesd into forward foreign currency
exchange contracts for these international opersitio

The fair values of forward foreign currency exchawegntracts are determined by us based on deadesjaf market forward rates and
reflect the amounts that we would receive or pahathort-term maturity dates for contracts inirvthe
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same currencies and maturity dates. All forwareifipr currency exchange contracts that had not bettied as of January 31, 2015 have
contractual settlement dates during the next 18thsoThus, we anticipate that the substantial nitgjof gains (losses) included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) darafary 31, 2015 that are ultimately realized wvipact net earnings in the next 18
months as the contracts are settled. The notionauat of forward foreign currency exchange congadich had not been settled that qualify
as hedges for accounting purposes totaled $13libménd $27.7 million as of January 31, 2015 asbrbary 1, 2014 , respectively.

Interest Rate Risk Management

As of January 31, 2015, we are exposed to maidtefnrom changes in interest rates on our variabte-indebtedness, which include our
U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement and our U.K. RevredvCredit Agreement. We may attempt to limit thepact of interest rate changes on
earnings and cash flow, primarily through a miwafiable-rate and fixed-rate debt, although at sirk of our debt may be either variable-rate
or fixed-rate. At times we may enter into intenege swap arrangements related to certain of augbia-rate debt in order to fix the interest
rate if we determine that our exposure to inter@®t changes is higher than optimal. Our assessatsmntonsiders our need for flexibility in
our borrowing arrangements resulting from the sealdly of our business, anticipated future caskvfiand our expectations about the risk of
future interest rate changes, among other facfdescontinuously monitor interest rates to consttiersources and terms of our borrowing
facilities in order to determine whether we havki@ged our interest rate management objectives.

In order to mitigate our exposure to changes ieradt rates, we entered into an interest rate sageggement under which we swap the
interest rate on certain of our variable-rate bemgs ranging from $25 million to $45 million dugrthe period from August 2013 until March
2015 for a fixed-rate interest charge equal to %h4us the applicable margin, as specified in ol8.UWRevolving Credit Agreement. As of
January 31, 2015 , we do not have any other irtes&s swap agreements. During Fiscal 2013, thésest rate swap qualified for hedge
accounting; however, as of January 31, 2015, tteedst rate swap did not qualify for hedge accagntesulting in the fair value of the interest
rate swap being charged to our consolidated staitsnoé operations.

The fair values of interest rate swaps are detaxthby us based on dealer quotes, which consideafdrcurves and volatility levels
using observable market inputs when available.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value, in accordance with GAAP, is definedresexchange price that would be received for aptaw paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageowskat for the asset or liability in an orderly tsaation between market participants at the
measurement date. As such, fair value is a markstd measurement that should be determined basessomptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability. Valwatitechniques include the market approach (compgnahrket prices), the income approach
(present value of future income or cash flow), thedcost approach (cost to replace the servicecitgmd an asset or replacement cost). These
valuation techniques may be based upon observablerobservable inputs. The three levels of inpatsl to measure fair value pursuant to
the guidance are as follows:

» Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical aseetiabilities

* Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices inclié@vel 1, such as quoted prices for similar tssaad liabilities in activ
markets; quoted prices for identical or similareassnd liabilities in markets that are not actimepther inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data.

» Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supportetitthe or no market activity and that are sigo#nt to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities, which includes certain pricing modetiscounted cash flow methodologies and similantiéques that use significant
unobservable inputs.

Our financial instruments consist primarily of mash and cash equivalents, accounts receivableyatscpayable and accrued expenses
forward foreign currency exchange contracts, irsierate swap agreements, fair value of contingensideration and debt. Given their short-
term nature, the carrying amounts of cash and eqslvalents, receivables, accounts
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payable and accrued expenses generally approxtiveteair values. Additionally, we believe the gang amounts of our variable-rate
borrowings approximate fair value.

The following table summarizes financial assets famghcial liabilities (in thousands) measured agcbrded at fair value on a recurring
basis, each of which are discussed in further defaive:

Quoted Prices

in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Total Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
January 31, 2015
Financial Assets:
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts $ 74€ $ —$ 74€ $ —
Financial Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements $ 4% —$ 4% —
Fair value of contingent consideration $ 12,50( $ — $ — $ 12,50(
February 1, 2014
Financial Liabilities:
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts $ 28t $ —$ 28t $ —
Interest rate swap agreements $ 5C $ —$ 5C $ =
Fair value of contingent consideration (current
and non-current) $ 14,72F $ —$ —$ 14,72¢

For a description of the methods used for detemygitine fair values of the financial instrumentduded in the table above, refer to the
accounting policy description for the respectivaficial instrument included above. Additionally, xgve determined that our property and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill, for Whte book values are disclosed in Notes 3 andedn@n-financial assets measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basis. We have deterntimeidour approaches for determining fair valuessfixh of these assets generally are base
on Level 3 inputs.

Equity Compensation

We have certain equity compensation plans as destim Note 7, which provide for the ability to gtaestricted shares, restricted share
units, options and other equity awards to our eggis and non-employee directors. We recognizeyeguiards to employees and non-
employee directors in SG&A in our consolidatedestatnts of operations based on their fair valuethemgrant date. The fair values of
restricted shares and restricted share units deendimed based on the fair value of our commonkstocthe grant date, regardless of whether
the awards are performance or service based.

Using the fair value method, compensation expenih,a corresponding entry to additional paid-ipital, is recognized related to the
equity awards over the specified service and perdoice period, as applicable. For awards with sigelcifervice requirements, the fair value of
the equity awards granted to employees is recodrozer the respective service period. For perfoaearased awards, during the performanc
period we assess expected performance versusdatietprmined performance goals and adjust the ctirilequity compensation expense to
reflect the relative expected performance achievenTée equity compensation expense is recogninesi siraight-line basis over the
aggregate performance period and any additionalimed) service period.

Comprehensive Income and Accumulated Other Comprrediee Loss

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net easrang specified components of other comprehensoa@nie (loss). Other
comprehensive income includes changes in asset&aildies that are not included in net earnipgssuant to GAAP, such as foreign curre
translation adjustments and the net unrealized @@$s) associated with cash flow hedges whichifyufalr hedge accounting, including



forward foreign currency exchange contracts aner@st rate swap agreements. These
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amounts of other comprehensive income (loss) derréel in accumulated other comprehensive incomss)] which is included in
shareholders' equity in our consolidated balaneetsh Upon settlement of the agreement, amourttedeto foreign currency contracts are
recognized as a part of the cost of inventory béiedged in our consolidated balance sheets andmizeal in our consolidated statements of
operations when the related inventory is sold, &hihounts related to interest rate swap agreeraentecognized in our consolidated
statements of operations as an adjustment to sitegpense on the individual payment dates of gheeaments. Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive income to our diolased statements of operations were not materiahy period presented. For each
period presented substantially all amounts includeatcumulated other comprehensive loss reflexfdreign currency translation of our
international operations of Ben Sherman into Ungéates dollars.

Dividends
Dividends are accrued at the time declared by @mar® of Directors and typically paid within the safiscal quarter.
Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Custars

We are exposed to concentrations of credit risk @sult of our accounts receivable balances, foclnthe total exposure is limited to
the amount recognized in our consolidated balaheets. We sell our merchandise to customers opgratia number of retail distribution
channels in the United States and other countriesur wholesale channel of distribution we oftettead credit terms to our customers that
satisfy defined credit criteria. We continuouslynitor credit risk based on an evaluation of the@uer's financial condition and credit history
and generally require no collateral. Credit riskngacted by conditions or occurrences within tben@my and the retail industry and is
principally dependent on each customer's finaremabition. Additionally, a decision by the contind owner of a group of stores or any
significant customer to decrease the amount of haerdise purchased from us or to cease carryingrogiucts could have an adverse effect o
our results of operations in future periods. Navitthal customer represented greater than 10% o€onsolidated net sales in Fiscal 2014 ,
Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2012 . Additionally, no indival customer represented 10% or more of our dimaed accounts receivable as of
January 31, 2015.

Income Taxes

Income taxes included in our consolidated finansiatements are determined using the asset arilityiatethod. Under this method,
income taxes are recognized based on amountsahimtaxes payable or refundable in the current geavell as the impact of any items that
are recognized in different periods for consoliddteancial statement reporting and tax return répg purposes. As certain amounts are
recognized in different periods for consolidatethficial statement and tax return reporting purpdsemncial statement and tax bases of asse
and liabilities differ, resulting in the recognitiof deferred tax assets and liabilities. The defbtax assets and liabilities reflect the estihate
future tax effects attributable to these differen@s well as the impact of net operating lossitaidpss and federal and state credit carry-
forwards, each as determined under enacted taxdadisates expected to apply in the period in wkisth amounts are expected to be realize
or settled.

We recognize deferred tax assets to the extentelievie these assets are more likely than not t@&lkzed. In making such a
determination, we consider all available positine aegative evidence, including future reversalexidting taxable temporary differences,
projected future taxable income, tax-planning styegs, and results of recent operations. Valuailmwances are established when we
determine that it is more-likely-than-not (greatean 50% likelihood) that some portion or all adeferred tax asset will not be realized.

Valuation allowances are analyzed periodically adgisted as events occur or circumstances chaage/tiuld indicate adjustments to
the valuation allowances are appropriate. If wegheine that we will be able to realize our defeti@dassets in the future, in excess of thei
recorded amount, we will reduce the deferred tartagaluation allowance, which will reduce incorae ¢xpense. As realization of deferred
assets and liabilities is dependent upon futuratikxincome in specific jurisdictions, changesaix laws and rates and shifts in the amount of
taxable income among state and foreign jurisdistioray have a significant impact on the amount oklieultimately realized for deferred tax
assets and liabilities. We account for the efféahanges in tax laws or rates in the period otanant.
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We utilize a two-step approach for evaluating utaiertax positions. Under the two-step method, gadton occurs when we conclude
that a tax position, based solely on technical tsegis more-likely-than-not to be sustained upoanexation. The second step, measurement,
only addressed if step one has been satisfiedtakleenefit recorded is measured as the largestiiainod benefit determined on a cumulative
probability basis that is more-likely-than-not te tealized upon ultimate settlement. Those taxtiposi failing to qualify for initial recognition
are recognized in the first subsequent interimquetiiey meet the more-likely-than-not thresholda@ resolved through negotiation or
litigation with the relevant taxing authority orapexpiration of the statute of limitations. Altatively, derecognition of a tax position that was
previously recognized occurs when we subsequeetiyrohine that a tax position no longer meets theertikely-than-not threshold of being
sustained. Interest and penalties associated wigrognized tax positions are recorded within inedax expense in our consolidated
statements of operations.

In the case of foreign subsidiaries there are iteeteceptions to the requirement that deferreditdilities be recognized for the
difference in the financial and tax bases of as&®ten the financial basis of the investment ier@ign subsidiary, excluding undistributed
earnings, exceeds the tax basis in such investitientleferred liability is not recognized if managmt considers the investment to be
essentially permanent in duration. Further, detetag liabilities are not required to be recognifedundistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries when management considers those garttirbe permanently reinvested outside the UrStates. We consider substantially all of
our investments in and undistributed earnings offoreign subsidiaries to be permanently reinvesiatdide the United States asJahuary 31
2015 and therefore have not recorded a deferrelibtaility on these amounts in our consolidatedfinial statements.

We generally receive a United States income taefitempon the vesting of shares granted to emplkoy€ke benefit is equal to the
difference, multiplied by the appropriate tax rdtetween (1) the fair value of the share at the tirivvesting of a restricted share award and (2
the amount required to be paid by the employesnyt We record the tax benefit associated withv/dsting of share awards granted to
employees as a reduction to income taxes payablthelextent the tax benefit relates to the vafumn@rds recognized as compensation
expense in our financial statements, income taxrs@ is reduced. Any additional tax benefit is réed directly to shareholders' equity in our
consolidated balance sheets. If a tax benefitabaed on compensation of an amount less thanrttauat recorded for financial statement
purposes, the decrease in benefit is also recatidectly to shareholders' equity.

We file income tax returns in the United States amdous state, local and foreign jurisdictionsr@aderal, state, local and foreign
income tax returns filed for the years ended obefore January 29, 2011, with limited exceptioms,r@ longer subject to examination by tax
authorities.

Earnings Per Share

Basic net earnings per share are calculated bylidiyithe net earnings amount by the weighted aeesagres outstanding during the
period. Shares repurchased are removed from thghteel average number of shares outstanding upomategse and delivery.

Diluted net earnings per share are calculated aitpito the amounts above, except that the weigatedage shares outstanding in the
diluted calculations also includes the potentialtdin using the treasury stock method that cowicLo if dilutive securities, including restricted
share awards, options or other dilutive awardanyf, were converted to shares. The treasury stetkod assumes that shares are issued ft
restricted share awards, options or other diludwards that are "in the money," and that we us@itheceds received to repurchase shares at
the average market value of our shares for theemtisie period. For purposes of the treasury stoethod, proceeds consist of cash to be paid
future compensation expense to be recognized andnttount of tax benefits, if any, which will be dited to additional paid-in capital
assuming the conversion of the share-based awards.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets in conformity with GAAP requires us to maketain estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported as assets, tiabilirevenues and expenses in the consolidataddial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounting Standards Adopted in Fiscal 2014
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In March 2013, the FASB issued revised guidancerdguires an entity to release any related curvelatanslation adjustment into net
earnings when it ceases to have a controlling Giizdinterest in a subsidiary that is a foreignitgrif the sale or transfer results in the complete
or substantially complete liquidation of the fomeigntity. This guidance was adopted by us in thst E)uarter of Fiscal 2014 and did not ha
material impact on our consolidated financial staats as no change in our ownership interestsrifiooeign subsidiaries occurred in Fiscal
2014.

In April 2014, the FASB issued revised guidanceicivinaises the threshold used to determine whedwemues and expenses associatec
with dispositions are reclassified to discontinoérations in the statement of operations. Unden#iw guidance, only asset sales that
represent a strategic shift in operations woulddotassified to discontinued operations, while p#sset sales would remain in continuing
operations. This guidance was adopted by us ifFtheth Quarter of Fiscal 2014 and did not have geria impact on our consolidated
financial statements as no dispositions occurrdednal 2014 and no material amounts qualifiededd for sale in Fiscal 2014.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Applicableé=ature Years

In May 2014, the FASB issued revised guidance whidvides a single, comprehensive accounting mimdebvenue arising from
contracts with customers. This guidance supersadss of the existing revenue recognition guidanueluding industry-specific guidance.
Under this model, revenue is recognized at an atthaha company expects to be entitled to upamsfearing control of goods or services to ¢
customer, as opposed to when risks and rewardsféraio a customer. The new guidance is effectivei§ beginning in our fiscal year 2017,
and may be applied retrospectively to all prioriges presented or through a cumulative adjustntetite opening retained earnings balance ir
the year of adoption. We are in the process ofuatalg the impact of the new guidance on our codatg#d financial statements.

Note 2. Operating Groups

Our business is primarily operated through our afieg groups: Tommy Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer, Lan@&bthes and Ben Sherman. We
identify our operating groups based on the waynsanagement organizes the components of our budimregarposes of allocating resources
and assessing performance. Our operating grougtsteureflects a brand-focused management appreagphasizing operational coordination
and resource allocation across each brand's doecnsumer, wholesale and licensing operations.

Tommy Bahama, Lilly Pulitzer and Ben Sherman eaegigh, source, market and distribute apparel aateproducts bearing their
respective tradenames and also license their temdes for other product categories, while Laniettl@s designs, sources and distributes
branded and private label men's tailored clothimg) @her apparel products. Corporate and Otherasanciling category for reporting
purposes and includes our corporate offices, sotialy all financing activities, elimination of far-segment sales, LIFO inventory accounting
adjustments, other costs that are not allocatéliet@perating groups and operations of our othsinlegses which are not included in our four
operating groups, including our Oxford Golf and ayons, Georgia distribution center operations.QIlventory calculations are made on a
legal entity basis which does not correspond toopearating group definitions; therefore, LIFO int@ry accounting adjustments are not
allocated to our operating groups.

The tables below present certain information aloomtoperating groups (in thousands):
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Note 2. Operating Groups (Continued)

Net sales

Tommy Bahama
Lilly Pulitzer

Lanier Clothes

Ben Sherman
Corporate and Other
Total

Depreciation and Amortization of Intangible Assets

Tommy Bahama

Lilly Pulitzer

Lanier Clothes

Ben Sherman

Corporate and Other
Total

Operating Income (Loss)
Tommy Bahama

Lilly Pulitzer

Lanier Clothes

Ben Sherman

Corporate and Other
Total operating income
Interest expense, net
Loss on repurchase of senior notes

Earnings Before Income Taxes

Purchases of Property and Equipment
Tommy Bahama

Lilly Pulitzer

Lanier Clothes

Ben Sherman

Corporate and Other

Total

90

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012
$ 627,49¢ $ 584,94 528,63¢
167,73t 137,94: 122,59:
112,93« 109,53 107,27:
77,48: 67,21¢ 81,92:

12,157 17,46" 15,117

$ 997,80t $ 917,09 855,54
$ 27,41: $ 24,80¢ 18,55
4,61¢ 3,21t 2,40z

35C 347 421

3,08: 3,15¢ 2,88¢

2,18¢ 2,38( 2,072

$ 37,64¢ $ 33,90: 26,33:
$ 71,13 $ 72,207 69,45¢
32,19( 25,95; 20,26"

10,84¢ 10,82¢ 10,84(
(10,839 (13,13) (10,899
(29,73¢) (12,18Y (20,697
83,60: 84,67( 68,97

3,48: 4,16¢ 8,93¢

— — 9,14:

$ 80,12( $ 80,50 50,88¢
Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

$ 35,78: $ 30,81( 46,39:
7,33t 10,34 4,57¢

1,74C 3C 592

4,29( 1,135 3,99

1,20¢ 1,052 5,14¢

$ 50,35t $ 43,37: % 60,70z
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Note 2. Operating Groups (Continued)

January 31, February 1,
2015 2014

Total Assets

Tommy Bahama $ 428,83! $ 408,59¢
Lilly Pulitzer 108,96 101,70«
Lanier Clothes 35,15: 39,98¢
Ben Sherman 78,56¢ 79,29¢
Corporate and Other (6,457) (2,28¢)
Total $ 645,06 $ 627,30!

Net book value of our property and equipment, byggaphic area is presented below (in thousands):

January 31, February 1,
2015 2014
United States $ 140,10: $ 124,89:
United Kingdom and Europe 7,764 7,08¢
Other foreign 7,20¢ 9,53¢
Total $ 155,07t $ 141,51¢

Net sales recognized by geographic area is preséetew (in thousands):

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

United States $ 904,64 $ 843,62( $ 793,28!
United Kingdom and Europe 55,15¢ 45,48¢ 51,53¢
Other foreign 38,00( 27,98¢ 10,717
Total $ 997,80t $ 917,09" $ 855,54.
Note 3. Property and Equipment, Net
Property and equipment, carried at cost, is sunmedras follows (in thousands):
January 31, February 1,
2015 2014

Land $ 1,59¢ $ 1,59¢
Buildings and improvements 29,30: 28,727
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and technology 161,13( 140,61¢
Leasehold improvements 189,41 168,95(
Subtotal 381,44. 339,88
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (226,361) (198,369
Total property and equipment, net $ 155,07¢ $ 141,51

Note 4. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets by category are summarized b@iothousands):
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January 31, February 1,

2015 2014

Intangible assets with finite lives, which prifhaconsist of reacquired license rights
and customer relationships: $ 52,66¢ $ 55,05(

Accumulated amortization (44,379 (43,489
Total intangible assets with finite lives, net 8,29: 11,56:
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:

Trademarks 159,47 161,46:
Total intangible assets, net $ 167,77 $ 173,02

The changes in carrying amount of intangible asggteperating group and in total, for Fiscal 20Hscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 are as
follows (in thousands):

Tommy Bahama  Lilly Pulitzer Ben Sherman Total
Balance, January 28, 2012 $ 111,96 $ 30,02¢ $ 23,20. % 165,19:
Amortization (384) (389) (252) (1,025
Other, including foreign currency changes — — 14¢ 14¢
Balance, February 2, 2013 111,58( 29,63¢ 23,09¢ 164,31
Acquisition of reacquired license rights 11,04: — — 11,04:
Amortization (1,687%) (329) (209) (2,225
Other, including foreign currency changes (1,076 — 96¢€ (110
Balance, February 1, 2014 119,85¢ 29,31( 23,85t 173,02
Amortization (2,009 (27¢) (199 (2,48))
Other, including foreign currency change (752) — (2,02 (2,772)
Ba|ance, January 31, 2015 $ 117,10: $ 29,03: $ 21,63¢ $ 167,77(

Based on the current estimated useful lives asdigmeur intangible assets, amortization expensedch of the next five years is
expected to be $2.1 million , $1.9 million , $1.8lion , $1.6 million and $0.2 million .

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill pgrating group and in total, for Fiscal 2014 , Bis2013 and Fiscal 2012 are as
follows (in thousands):

Tommy Bahama  Lilly Pulitzer Total
Balance, January 28, 2012 $ — $ 16,49 $ 16,49t
Acquisition 78C — 78C
Balance, February 2, 2013 78C 16,49¢ 17,27¢
Acquisition 247 — 247
Other, including foreign currency changes (129 — (123)
Balance, February 1, 2014 904 16,49¢ 17,39¢
Other, including foreign currency changes (1049 — (104)
Balance, January 31, 2015 $ 80C $ 16,49 $ 17,29t

Note 5. Debt

The following table details our debt (in thousands)
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January 31, February 1,

2015 2014
$235 million U.S. Secured Revolving Credit Faciljti).S. Revolving Credit Agreement”)(1) $ 104,84: $ 137,59.
£7 million Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility.K. Revolving Credit Agreement")(2) 4,12¢ 3,99:
Total debt 108,96¢ 141,58!
Short-term debt (4,12¢) (3,999
Long-term debt $ 104,84. $ 137,59
(1) The U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement generé)lys limited to a borrowing base consisting oésjfied percentages of eligible

categories of assets; (ii) accrues variable-raerést (weighted average borrowing rate of 1.8%fasnuary 31, 2015 ), unused line
fees and letter of credit fees based upon a prigiithgwhich is tied to average unused availab#gity/or utilization; (iii) requires
periodic interest payments with principal due aturity (November 2018); and (iv) is generally sexiby a first priority security
interest in the accounts receivable, inventory egainintangibles and eligible trademarks, investnpeaperty (including the equity
interests of certain subsidiaries), deposit accguntercompany obligations, equipment, goods, dwmis, contracts, books and
records and other personal property of Oxford Itiiess Inc. and substantially all of its domestibsidiaries.

(2) The U.K. Revolving Credit Agreement generdijyaccrues interest at the bank's base rate plapplicable margin ( 4.0% as of
January 31, 2015 ); (ii) requires interest paymemisithly with principal payable on demand; and {gicollateralized by substantially
all of the assets of our United Kingdom Ben Shersatsidiaries.

To the extent cash flow needs exceed cash flowigeovby our operations we will have access, sulifec¢heir terms, to our lines
credit to provide funding for operating activitiespital expenditures and acquisitions, if any. €nedit facilities are also used to finance t
letters of credit for product purchases, which mdthe amounts available under our lines of cnetlign issues. As of January 31, 20H8B.£
million of trade letters of credit and other limitations awailability in the aggregate were outstandingiregaour credit facilities. Afte
considering these limitations and the amount dfilelé assets in our borrowing base, as applicadeof January 31, 2015 , we h§#25.¢
million and $2.3 millionin unused availability under the U.S. Revolving @reAgreement and the U.K. Revolving Credit Agreeit;
respectively, subject to the respective limitationsborrowings.

Covenants, Other Restrictions and Prepayment Peiealt

Our credit facilities, consisting of our U.S. Reviog Credit Agreement and our U.K. Revolving Creflifreement, are subject to a
number of affirmative covenants regarding the dgipof financial information, compliance with lamaintenance of property, insurance and
conduct of business. Also, our credit facilitiee aubject to certain negative covenants or ottgricéons including, among other things,
limitations on our ability to (i) incur debt, (iuaranty certain obligations, (iii) incur liensy)jpay dividends to shareholders, (v) repurchase
shares of our common stock, (vi) make investméuiiy,sell assets or stock of subsidiaries, (Wigquire assets or businesses, (ix) merge or
consolidate with other companies, or (x) prepatreerepurchase or redeem debt.

Our U.S. Revolving Credit Agreement contains aririal covenant that applies if unused availabilibder the U.S. Revolving Credit
Agreement for three consecutive days is less thamgteater of (i) $23.5 million or (i) 10% ofettiotal revolving commitments. In such case,
our fixed charge coverage ratio as defined in tie. Revolving Credit Agreement must not be lesa tha to 1.0 for the immediately
preceding 12 fiscal months for which financial stagnts have been delivered. This financial covecamtinues to apply until we have
maintained unused availability under the U.S. Rengl Credit Agreement of more than the greatei)of5g3.5 million or (ii) 10% of the total
revolving commitments for 30 consecutive days.

We believe that the affirmative covenants, negatiweenants, financial covenants and other resiristunder our credit facilities are
customary for those included in similar facilitexstered into at the time we entered into our agezssn During Fiscal 2014 and as of
January 31, 2015, no financial covenant testing reguired pursuant to our U.S. Revolving Credit

93




OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Note 5. Debt (Continued)

Agreement as the minimum availability threshold weet at all times. As of January 31, 2015 , we vemmapliant with all covenants related to
our credit facilities.

Senior Secured Notes

In Fiscal 2012, we redeemed all of the outstan&it@b million in aggregate principal amount of ceni®r secured notes which were
scheduled to mature in July 2015. The redemptich@tenior secured notes for $111.0 million , plosrued interest, and the related write-off
of $1.7 million of unamortized deferred financingsts and $1.4 million of unamortized bond discaestilted in a loss on repurchase of senio
notes of $9.1 millionn Fiscal 2012. The redemption of the senior setures satisfied and discharged all of our ohiligatwith respect to tt
senior secured notes and the related indenturgvasdunded primarily through borrowings under ous | LRevolving Credit Agreement.

Note 6. Commitments and Contingencies

We have operating lease agreements for retail spastaurants, warehouses and sales and administoffices as well as equipment
with varying terms. Total rent expense, which idgls minimum and contingent rent expense incurrgdexcludes the reduction in rent
expense associated with the write-off of deferm@ amounts upon the exit or decision to exit tstares, if any, under all leases was $82.5
million , $72.3 million and $62.9 million in FiscaD14 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 , respectidbst leases provide for payments of real
estate taxes, insurance and other operating expapgdicable to the property and many retail leaseside for contingent rent based on retail
sales, which are included in total rent expense@bbhese payments for real estate taxes, insuratiegr operating expenses and contingent
percentage rent are included in rent expense abot@re not included in the aggregate minimumalesatmmitments below, as, in some ca
the amounts payable in future periods are not dfiethin the lease agreement and are dependenitorefevents. The total amount of such
charges included in total rent expense above w2terdnillion , $18.8 million and $16.1 million iridgeal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 ,
respectively, which includes $0.9 million , $0.6llen and $0.7 million of contingent percentagetrdaring Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and
Fiscal 2012 , respectively.

As of January 31, 2015, the aggregate minimum teEgal commitments for all non-cancelable opetpteal property leases with
original terms in excess of one year are $65.8anil] $62.7 million , $59.2 million , $53.0 million$49.5 million and $222.1 million for each
of the next five years and thereafter.

As of January 31, 2015, we are also obligated uoeleain apparel license and design agreememtske future minimum royalty and
advertising payments of $5.6 million , $6.1 milliand $4.7 million for Fiscal 2015 , Fiscal 2016 &fiscal 2017 , respectively, and none
thereafter. These amounts do not include amourdayi that exceed the minimums required pursuatii¢ agreements.

During the 1990s, we discovered the presence @frdams waste on one of our properties. We belieaeremedial action will be
required, including continued investigation, moriitg and treatment of groundwater and soil, althotlng timing of such remedial action is
uncertain. As of January 31, 2015 and Februarp142 the reserve for the remediation of thiswiés $1.3 million and $1.6 million ,
respectively, which is included in other noarrent liabilities in our consolidated balanceesseThe amount recorded represents our estim
the costs, on an undiscounted basis, to cleaneugiti, based on currently available informatiomisTestimate may change in future periods a:
more information on the remediation activities riegd and timing of those activities become known.raterial amounts related to this rest
were recorded in the statements of operationsscaF2014 , Fiscal 2013 or Fiscal 2012 .

Note 7. Shareholders' Equity
Common Stock

We had 60 million shares of $1.00 par value pereshammon stock authorized for issuance as of Jgrdda 2015 and February 1,
2014 . We had 16.5 million and 16.4 million shasésommon stock issued and outstanding as of Jar8iar2015 and February 1, 2014 ,
respectively.

Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan
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As of January 31, 2015, 1.2 million shares weilakle for issuance under our Long-Term Stock mtige Plan (the "Long-Term Stock
Incentive Plan"). The Long-Term Stock IncentiverPédlows us to grant stock-based awards to emptogiad non-employee directors in the
form of stock options, stock appreciation rightstricted shares and/or restricted share unitadddional grants are available under any
predecessor plans. Subsequent to December 2008;rpance- and service-based restricted sharesestiicted share units have been the
primary vehicle in our stock-based compensaticategy, although we are not prohibited from granttiter types of shareased compensati
awards.

Restricted share awards and restricted share waitds recently granted to officers and other keplegrees generally vest three or four
yearsfrom the date of grant if (1) the performance thi#g, if any, was met and (2) the employee is stiflployed by us on the vesting date
the time that restricted shares are issued, threlsblaler may, subject to the terms of the respe@ireement, be entitled to the same dividenc
and voting rights as other holders of our commonglstuinless the shares are forfeited. At the tina¢ itstricted share units are issued, the
recipient may, subject to the terms of the respeagreement, earn non-forfeitable dividend eqaival equal to the dividend paid per share tc
holders of our common stock, but does not obtatmgaights associated with the restricted shatiessuithe employee generally is restricted
from transferring or selling any restricted shayegestricted share units, and generally forfditsawards upon the termination of employment
prior to the end of the vesting period. The spegfiovisions of the awards, including exercisapiihd term of the award, are evidenced by
agreements with the employee as determined byaupensation committee or Board of Directors, adiegipe.

The table below summarizes the restricted sharedaadivity for officers and other key employeas ghares) during Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal
2013, and Fiscal 2012 :

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average average

Number of grant date Number of grant date Number of grant date
Shares  fair value Shares  fair value Shares  fair value

Restricted share awards outstandin

beginning of fiscal year 56,52: $ 47 487,50( $ 12 497,50( $ 12
Service-based restricted share awards
granted/issued 35,64. $ 78 — % — — $ —

Performance-based restricted share
awards issued related to prior year
performance awards — $ = 59,12¢ $ 47 — $ =

Restricted share awards vested,
including restricted shares repurcha
from employees for employees' tax

liability — $ — (487,500 $ 12 — $ —
Restricted shares forfeited (990 78 (2,60¢) $ 43 (20,000 $ 23
Restricted shares outstanding at end of )

fiscal year 91,17¢ g 59 56,521 g 47 487,500 ¢ 12

During each of Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013 and Fig€dl2, we granted performance awards to certaioeffiand other key employees with
the opportunity to earn 0.1 milliarestricted share units, in the aggregate. Eaclopaéance award provided the recipient with the opputy to
earn restricted share awards contingent upon diueaement of certain performance objectives dutirgrespective Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013
and Fiscal 2012 performance periods. Each of theimeance-based awards require that the employeaineemployed by the company for a
specified period after the respective performarergog.

During Fiscal 2012, 59,000 of restricted sharesuwire earned by recipients related to the Figeh2 Derformance period and were
issued in March 2013. During Fiscal 2013, no retd share units were earned as the performaneetiMais for Fiscal 2013 were not
achieved. During Fiscal 2014, approximately 90,6Dfestricted share awards were earned by recipietdated to the Fiscal 2014 performance
period and issued in Fiscal 2015, however thesedsnyaere not included in
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the table above or the table below as the awardsbtbeen issued as of January 31, 2015 . The88®8hares had a grant date fair value of
$78 per share and vest in April 2017.

The following table summarizes information abow thnvested restricted share awards as of Janua®03% . The unvested restricted
share units will be settled in shares of our comstogk on the vesting date, subject to the emplsyji#deing an employee at that time.

Average
Market
Number of Price on
Unvested Share Date of Vesting
Grant Awards Grant Date
Fiscal 2012 Performance-based Restricted Sharedswar 56,52: $ 47 March 2016
Fiscal 2014 Service-based Restricted Share Awards 34,65. % 78 April 2017

Total 91,17%

As of January 31, 2015, there was $7.8 milliamthe aggregate, of unrecognized compensatiparese related to the unvested restri
share awards, which have been granted to empldyedsave not yet vested, including the Fiscal 20d4ormance-based awards issued in
Fiscal 2015. This expense is expected to be rezedrdiom February 1, 2015 through April 2017, whten Fiscal 2014 awards vest.

In addition, we grant restricted share or restdahare unit awards to our non-employee directmra portion of each non-employee
director's compensation. The non-employee directarst complete certain service requirements; otiserwhe restricted shares are subject to
forfeiture. On the date of issuance, the non-enmgeayirectors are entitled to the same dividendvanidg rights as other holders of our
common stock. The non-employee directors are otstiifrom transferring or selling the restrictedras prior to the end of the vesting period.
As of January 31, 2015, less than 0.1 millionuwafteawards were outstanding and unvested.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

There were 0.5 milliorshares of our common stock authorized for issuamcker our Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPPYf
January 31, 2015 The ESPP allows qualified employees to purché&sees of our common stock on a quarterly basisecas certai
limitations, through payroll deductions. The shapeschased pursuant to the ESPP are not subjeatytoesting or other restrictions. On
last day of each calendar quarter, the accumuladgll deductions are applied toward the purclaisgur common stock at a price eque
85% of the closing market price on that date. Stomkpensation expense related to the employee stackhase plan recognized wH.z
million , $0.1 million and $0.1 million in each &iscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 , respsgt

Preferred Stock

We had 30 million shares of $1.00 par value preféstock authorized for issuance as of Januarg@®5 and February 1, 2014 . No
preferred shares were issued or outstanding aanoidy 31, 2015 or February 1, 2014 .

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table details the changes in our awglated other comprehensive loss by componenhéingands), net of related income
taxes during Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fis0&apk2
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OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
Note 7. Shareholders' Equity (Continued)

Foreign Net unrealized Accumulated
currency gain (loss) on other
translation cash flow comprehensive
gain (loss) hedges income (loss)
Balance, January 28, 2012 $ (24,15) $ 482 $ (23,679
Total other comprehensive income (loss),
net of taxes 171 (1,087) (911)
Balance, February 2, 2013 (23,98¢) (599 (24,585
Total other comprehensive income, net o
taxes 703 264 967
Balance, February 1, 2014 (23,287 (335) (23,619
Total other comprehensive income, net o
taxes (7,617 1,081 (6,53¢€)
Balance, January 31, 2015 $ (30,900 $ 74€ $ (30,159

Note 8. Income Taxes

The following table summarizes our distributionvee¢n domestic and foreign earnings (loss) befarenme taxes and the provision
(benefit) for income taxes (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2014 2013 2012
Earnings before income taxes:
Domestic $ 90,25: $ 98,47¢ $ 63,42¢
Foreign (10,13¢) (17,97 (12,540
Earnings before income taxes $ 80,12( $ 80,50. $ 50,88¢
Income taxes:
Current:
Federal $ 32,29¢ $ 30,19 $ 21,68
State 4,601 3,911 2,36t
Foreign 652 427 (729
37,55 34,52: 23,32!
Deferred—primarily Federal (3,119 1,34: (3,279
Deferred—Foreign (75) (657) (480)
Income taxes $ 34,36 $ 35,21( $ 19,57.

Reconciliations of the United States federal stajuincome tax rates and our effective tax ratessammarized as follows:
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Note 8. Income Taxes (Continued)

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2014 2013 2012
Statutory tax rate 35.(% 35.C% 35.(%
State income taxes—net of federal income tax benefi 3.1% 3.1% 3.C%
Impact of foreign operations (1) 1.5% 2.€% 3.2%
Valuation allowance against foreign losses andratheyforwards (2) 2.8% 4.5 % 4.1%
Reduction in contingency reserves related to urgeized tax benefits (3) —% — % (3.7%
Change in assertion on permanent reinvestmenteigio earnings —% — % (1.9%
Other, net 0.1% (1.5% (1.9%
Effective tax rate for continuing operations 42.5% 43.1% 38.5%

(1) Impact of foreign operations primarily refleth® rate differential between the United Statebsthe respective foreign jurisdictions
foreign losses.

(2) Valuation allowance against foreign losses griiy reflects the valuation allowance recognizee ¢b our inability to recognize an
income tax benefit related to certain operating loery-forwards and deferred tax assets duringé¢hied.

(3) Fiscal 2012 included a $2.2 million reductiarincome tax contingency reserves upon the expiraif the corresponding statute of
limitations.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities included in camsolidated balance sheets are comprised obtlesving (in thousands):

January 31, February 1,

2015 2014

Deferred Tax Assets:

Inventories $ 15,38 $ 14,67
Accrued compensation and benefits 11,727 7,99:
Receivable allowances and reserves 2,43¢ 2,18
Depreciation and amortization 2,03¢ 1,98¢
Deferred rent and lease obligations 3,72¢ 3,31¢
Operating loss and other carry-forwards 6,907 6,73(
Other, net 1,40¢ 1,014
Deferred tax assets 43,63: 37,90:
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Acquired intangible assets (43,885 (43,369
Deferred tax liabilities (43,885 (43,369
Valuation allowance (8,457) (6,83))
Net deferred tax liability $ (8709% (12,299

As of January 31, 2015 our operating loss and athey-forwards primarily relate to our operatianghe United Kingdom, Hong Kong
and Canada, each of which provides for operatiag tarry-forwards of at least 20 years . Substantili of our valuation allowance of $8.5
million and $6.8 million relates to the foreign oatng loss carry-forwards and deferred tax agsdtsose jurisdictions. The recent history of
operating losses in these jurisdictions is considaignificant negative evidence against realigif these tax benefits. The amount of the
valuation allowance considered necessary, howeweid decrease in the future if our historical @pieg results or estimates of future taxable
operating results increase, particularly if, irufiet years, objective negative evidence in the foficumulative losses is no longer present.
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Note 8. Income Taxes (Continued)

No deferred tax liabilities related to our origif@vestments in our foreign subsidiaries and faregrnings, if any, were recorded at
either balance sheet date, as substantially alboginal investments and earnings related to otgifin subsidiaries are considered permant
reinvested outside of the United States. Furtherabse the financial basis in each foreign entigschot exceed the tax basis by an amount
exceeding undistributed earnings, no additionaté¢hStates tax would be due if the original invesihhwere to be repatriated in the future. As
of January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014 , we hddstiibuted earnings of foreign subsidiaries o##®illion and $6.0 million , respectively,
which were considered permanently reinvested. Thadestributed earnings could become subject tdddribtates taxes if they are remitted ac
dividends or as a result of certain other typeimtarcompany transactions. The amount of defea&diability not recognized on permanently
reinvested foreign earnings that would be paydtteei earnings were repatriated to the United Stat&0.4 million as of January 31, 2015 .

Accounting for income taxes requires that we oftdeturrent deferred tax liabilities and assetthimieach particular tax jurisdiction and
present them as a single amount in our consolidzd&hce sheets. A similar procedure is followeadafbnon-current deferred tax liabilities
and assets. Amounts in different tax jurisdictioaanot be offset against each other. The amourdsfefred income taxes included in the
following line items in our consolidated balancests are as follows (in thousands):

January 31, February 1,

2015 2014
Assets:
Deferred tax assets $ 24,50! $ 20,46"
Liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities (33,217 (32,759
Net deferred tax liability $ (8,709 $ (12,299

As of January 31, 2015 and February 1, 2014 anidgliiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 didenot have any material
unrecognized tax benefit amounts or material cheumgeuch amounts except for the Fiscal 2012 $2lbmreduction in uncertain tax
positions reflecting the expiration of the statotdimitations for the assessment of taxes. Thecognized tax benefits, if recognized, would
reduce our annual effective rate. The net impaaiwrconsolidated financial statements for Fis€dl®, Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012 for
potential penalty and interest expense relateleset unrecognized tax benefits was not material.

Note 9. Defined Contribution Plans

We have a tax-qualified voluntary retirement sagiptan covering substantially all full-time Unit&tates employees and other similar
plans covering certain foreign employees. If aipgrdnt decides to contribute, a portion of thetdbation is matched by us. Additionally, we
incur certain charges related to our ripralified deferred compensation plan as discussétbie 1. Realized and unrealized gains and loms
the deferred compensation plan investments arededdan SG&A in our consolidated statements of apens and substantially offset the
changes in deferred compensation liabilities tdiggants resulting from changes in market val@@s: aggregate expense under these define
contribution and non-qualified deferred compensatitans in Fiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal2®as $3.2 million , $2.9 million ar&B.C
million , respectively.

Note 10. Related Party Transactions
SunTrust

SunTrust Banks, Inc. and its subsidiaries ("SunfTyis one of our principal shareholders, with #i#lity to direct the voting of
approximately 5% of our outstanding common stodRetember 31, 2014, which we believe SunTrust hioldsrious fiduciary and agency
capacities. Mr. E. Jenner Wood, lll, one of ouediors, is Chairman, President and CEO of the fdldivision of SunTrust Bank and
Corporate Executive Vice President of SunTrust Baic.
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Note 10. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

We maintain a syndicated credit facility under wh®unTrust serves as agent and lender and a Surffiliate acted as lead arranger
and bookrunner in connection with our Fiscal 20a@& Riscal 2013 refinancings of our credit facilitshe services provided and fees paid to
SunTrust in connection with such services for gamtiod are set forth below (in thousands):

Service Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012
Interest and agent fees for our credit facility $ 60€ $ 69€ $ 56¢
Cash management services $ 92 $ 92 $ 10€
Lead arranger, bookrunner and upfront fees $ —$ 254 $ 61€
Other $ 9% 6 $ 9

Our credit facilities were entered into in the oty course of business. Our aggregate payme@sridrust and its subsidiaries for these
services did not exceed 1% of our gross revenuesgithe periods presented or 1% of SunTrust'ssgregenues during its fiscal years ended
December 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and Decerib@032.

In addition, Mr. J. Hicks Lanier, our Chairman aetired Chief Executive Officer, served on the lobai directors of SunTrust from 20
until his retirement from that position in April 20.

Contingent Consideration Agreement

In connection with our acquisition of the Lilly Bakr brand and operations during Fiscal 2010, mtered into a contingent considerai
agreement pursuant to which the beneficial ownetseoLilly Pulitzer brand and operations priorth@ acquisition are entitled to earn up to an
additional $20 million in cash, in the aggregateerahe four yearfollowing the closing of the acquisition based alylPulitzer's achievemel
of certain earnings targets. The potential contmgensideration was comprised of: (1) four indial performance periods, consisting of the
period from the date of our acquisition throughehe of Fiscal 2011, Fiscal 2012, Fiscal 2013 anddF 2014, in respect of which the prior
owners of the Lilly Pulitzer brand and operationsynbe entitled to receive up to $2.5 millifar each performance period; and (2) a cumule
performance period consisting of the period fromdhate of our acquisition through the end of Fi2€dl4, in respect of which the prior owners
of the Lilly Pulitzer brand and operations may bétked to receive up to $10 million .

Mr. Scott A. Beaumont, one of our executive offcamho was appointed CEO, Lilly Pulitzer Group, @moection with our acquisition of
the Lilly Pulitzer brand and operations, togeth@hwarious trusts for the benefit of certain faymihembers, held a 50% ownership interest in
the Lilly Pulitzer brand and operations prior te @icquisition. The principals who owned the Liliylizer brand and operations prior to the
acquisition continue to manage the Lilly Pulitzpecations.

As a result of Lilly Pulitzer exceeding the earrsrtgrgets specified in the contingent consideraimmeement, the maximum $20 million
amount was earned in full, including $7.5 milliohieh was paid prior to January 31, 2015 and theSa#llion remaining obligation related
this agreement included in contingent consideratioour consolidated balance sheet as of Januar@®@5b . We anticipate paying the
remaining obligation of $12.5 million in Fiscal Z21

Note 11. Summarized Quarterly Data (unaudited)

Each of our fiscal quarters consists of thirteeekveeriods, beginning on the first day after thé ehthe prior fiscal quarter, except that
the fourth quarter in a year with 53 weeks (suxFiacal 2012) includes 14 weeks. Following isi@mmary of our Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013
quarterly results (in thousands, except per shauats):
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Note 11. Summarized Quarterly Data (unaudited) (Cotinued)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
Fiscal 201¢

Net sales $ 257,64¢ $ 246,24t $ 219,45 $ 274,45 $ 997,80t
Gross profit $ 147,32¢ $ 14541'$ 112,94t $ 148,99( $ 554,67¢
Operating income $ 28,46¢ $ 26,82 $ 2,606 $ 25,70: $ 83,60:
Net earnings (loss) $ 14,96¢ $ 15,06¢ $ (74) $ 15,79¢ $ 45,75¢
Net earnings (loss) per share:
Basic and diluted $ 091% 0.9z % — $ 0.9¢ $ 2.7¢
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 16,41¢ 16,42t 16,43: 16,44( 16,42¢

Diluted 16,45( 16,46( 16,43: 16,50: 16,47

Fiscal 201

Net sales $ 234,20: $ 235,02: $ 197,50¢ $ 250,36 $ 917,09°
Gross profit $ 134,07 $ 136,84¢ $ 104,78 $ 137,86! $ 513,57-
Operating income $ 26,06. $ 27,71: $ 4551 $ 26,34t $ 84,67(
Net earnings $ 13,62: $ 15,80¢ $ 88¢ $ 14,97: $ 45,29
Net earnings per share:
Basic and diluted $ 0.8z $ 0.9¢ $ 0.0t $ 0.91$% 2.7¢
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 16,58t¢ 16,39 16,40¢ 16,41« 16,45(

Diluted 16,61: 16,42: 16,43: 16,44« 16,48:

The sum of the quarterly net earnings (loss) paresamounts may not equal the amounts for theyéall due to rounding. Both Fiscal
2014 and Fiscal 2013 included 52 weeks. The foyutrter of Fiscal 2014 included a LIFO accountihgrge of $2.6 million with no
significant LIFO charge in the fourth quarter oé€al 2013. The fourth quarter of Fiscal 2013 inellid gain on sale of property of $1.6
million .

Note 12. Subsequent Event

On March 24, 2015, our Board of Directors authatiner management to pursue a sale of the Ben Sharasiness. We have enga
Financo, Ltd. as our financial advisor to assighimtransaction process. We plan to continue &vaip the Ben Sherman business during the
process, and although we expect to complete angtidan Fiscal 2015 no specific timetable has beetrfer consummation of a transaction.
There can be no assurance that a transactionak@élplace, and our Board of Directors may congitleer alternatives for the Ben Sherman
business that it believes are in the best interfesthareholders.



101




SCHEDULE I
Oxford Industries, Inc.

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Column A ColumnB  Column C Column D Column E
Additions Charged
Balance at Chargedto to Other Balance at
Beginning  Costs and Accounts— Deductions— End of
Description of Period Expenses  Describe Describe Period
(In thousands)
Fiscal 201«
Deducted from asset accounts:
Accounts receivable reserves(1)  $ 9,68¢ $ 10,50( —$ (10,849 (3) $ 9,34(
Allowance for doubtful accounts(2) 641 31¢ — (210) (4) 75C
Fiscal 201:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Accounts receivable reserves(1) $ 11,09 $ 11,24¢ —$ (1265H(3) $ 9,68¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts(2) 1,00t (40¢) — 42 (4) 641
Fiscal 201
Deducted from asset accounts:
Accounts receivable reserves(1) $ 8,42¢ $ 11,23¢ —$ (8,579 (3) $ 11,09¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts(2) 1,98( 132 — (1,209 (4) 1,00t
Q) Accounts receivable reserves include estimegsdrves for allowances, returns and discoundselto our wholesale operations as

discussed in our significant accounting policy ftisare for Revenue Recognition and Accounts Rebéivia Note 1 of our
consolidated financial statements.

(2) Allowance for doubtful accounts consists ofoamts reserved for our estimate of a customertslifiato meet its financial obligations
as discussed in our significant accounting polisgldsure for Revenue Recognition and Accounts Reabke in Note 1 of our
consolidated financial statements.

) Principally amounts written off related to custorafowances, returns and discou

(4) Principally accounts written off as uncollectil
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Oxfadluktries, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Oxford Industries, Inc. (the Compasydf January 31, 2015 and Februa
2014, and the related consolidated statements @fatipns, comprehensive income, shareholders'yegquoid cash flows for each of the tr
years in the period ended January 31, 2015. Outsaaldo included the financial statement schedlsted in the Index at Item 15(a). Th
financial statements and schedule are the resphbtysitif the Company's management. Our responsjbi to express an opinion on th
financial statements and schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting Oversigham@dUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digi#g in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigled and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedtg, tonsolidated financial position of Oxfi
Industries, Inc. at January 31, 2015 and Februa®014, and the consolidated results of its opamatiand its cash flows for each of the t
years in the period ended January 31, 2015, inocorify with U.S. generally accepted accounting giptes. Also, in our opinion, the rela
financial statement schedule, when considered latioa to the basic financial statements taken aghale, presents fairly in all matel
respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasda the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), Oxford Industri
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting @fsJanuary 31, 2015, based on criteria establisihddternal Controlntegrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafnthe Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and report dated March 30, 20
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 30, 2015
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with AccountantsAccounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer have evaluated the effectiveness afdisclosure controls and procedure:
of the end of the period covered by this reporsdgbupon that evaluation, our principal executiffie@r and principal financial officer
concluded that, as of the end of the period covbyetthis report, our disclosure controls and proces were effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by us in cec8ities Exchange Act reports is recorded, pramkssummarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC's rules and folams that such information is accumulated and camoated to our management, including
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer, as appropriate, to allow timely deoiss regarding required disclosure.

Changes in and Evaluation of Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

There have not been any changes in our internataaver financial reporting during the fourth qtea of Fiscal 2014 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Report of Management on Internal Control over Finarcial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting (as such term is defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Seasitixchange Act of 1934). Our internal control dirggincial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théoildlieof financial reporting and the preparatiohomr consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with accountimgjmies generally accepted in the United States.

Our internal control over financial reporting ipported by a program of appropriate reviews by rgameent, written policies and
guidelines, careful selection and training of dfieadi personnel, and a written code of conduct. Beeaf its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. In addition, projectionargf evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls meagoine inadequate because of changes in conditiotfsat the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal@amier financial reporting as of January 31, 20Irbmaking this assessment,
management used the updated framework issued B 120fhe Committee of Sponsoring Organization$effreadway Commission (COSO)
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013Based on this assessment, we believe that @madtcontrol over financial reporting was
effective as of January 31, 2015 .

Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered puhticounting firm, has audited our internal contnegr financial reporting as of
January 31, 2015, and its report thereon is ireduterein.

/sl THOMAS C. CHUBB I /sl K. SCOTT GRASSMYER
Thomas C. Chubb IlI K. Scott Grassmyer
Chief Executive Officer and President Executive Vice President—Finance, Chief Financifiid®r and Controller
(Principal Executive Officer) (Principal Financial Officer)
March 30, 2015 March 30, 2015

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Because of their inherent limitations, our disclescontrols and procedures and our internal cantreér financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Projections ofeaajuation of effectiveness for future periodssubject to the risks that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigat the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate. A contro
system, no matter how well designed and operasedpoovide only reasonable, not absolute, assurthiat@ control system's objectives will
met.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Oxfodlktries, Inc.

We have audited Oxford Industries, Inc.’s (the Camys) internal control over financial reporting asJainuary 31, 2015, based on crit
established in Internal Controttegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissi@1§
framework) (the COSO criteria). Oxford Industriéss.’s management is responsible for maintaining effedtternal control over financ
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecttgsnof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Repor
Management on Internal Control over Financial Répgr Our responsibility is to express an opiniantbe Companyg internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @ nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafpthe design and operating effectiveness ofriratiecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thahadit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Oxford Industries, Inc. maintainéa,all material respects, effective internal cohwver financial reporting as of January
2015, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@dnited States), the fiscal 2(
consolidated financial statements of Oxford Indastrinc. and our report dated March 30, 2015 esga@ an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 30, 2015
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ltem 9B. Other Information

On March 24, 2015, our Board of Directors, follogiithe recommendation of our Nominating, Compensai@sovernance Committee,
amended our Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (tharipl to:

« eliminate certain “share recyclingtovisions previously permitted under Section 2(fgthe plan

» delete a “reload optiorfeature previously permitted under Section 5(cthefplan

e require a minimum one year vesting period (whghclusive of any performance period, for pemfancebased awards) for employ
awards granted in the form of stock options, stgfreciation rights, restricted shares or resttisteare units;

« clarify that for any performance-based restdcbare units, the performance period commencedatatis not necessarily required to
be triggered by the grant date of such an award;

« amend Section 15(b) of the plan to expresshipibthe re-pricing of any stock appreciation tig¥ithout the approval of
shareholders; and

« amend Section 15(b) of the plan to expressipipibthe purchase or buyout of underwater optiand stock appreciation rights
without the approval of shareholders.

The amendments to the plan do not require sharehaftproval. The foregoing description of the anmegults to the plan is qualified in its

entirety by reference to the full text of the plas,amended and restated, which is filed as Exhibi to this Form 10-K and is incorporated
herein by reference.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Gowmance

The following table sets forth certain informaticoncerning the members of our Board of Directorefalanuary 31, 2015 :

Name Principal Occupation
Thomas C. Chubb IlIMr. Chubb is our Chief Executive Officer and Presit

Thomas C. GallagheMr. Gallagher is Chairman and Chief Executive Gffiof Genuine Parts Company, a distributor of
automotive replacement parts, industrial replacerparts, office products and electrical/electronic

materials.

George C. Guynn Mr. Guynn was President and CEf@eoFederal Reserve Bank of Atlanta until hisreatient in
2006.

John R. Holder Mr. Holder is Chairman and Chief Executive OfficdéHolder Properties, a commercial and
residential real estate development, leasing anthgeament company.

J. Hicks Lanier Mr. Lanier is our Chairman and was Chief Executive Officer until his retirement2012.

J. Reese Lanier Mr. Lanier was self-employed in farming and relabedinesses until his retirement in 2009.

Dennis M. Love Mr. Love is Chairman and Chief Bxiidee Officer of Printpack Inc., a manufacturerfleiible and

specialty rigid packaging.
Clarence H. Smith  Mr. Smith is Chairman of the Board, President ahteCExecutive Officer of Haverty Furniture
Companies, Inc., a home furnishings retailer.

Clyde C. Tuggle Mr. Tuggle is Senior Vice Presidamd Chief Public Affairs and Communications Céfiof The
Coca-Cola Company.

Helen B. Weeks Ms. Weeks founded Ballard Designs, Inc., a homei$hing catalog business, and was its Chief
Executive Officer until her retirement in 2002.

E. Jenner Wood Il Mr. Wood is Chairman, Presidamd Chief Executive Officer of the Atlanta Divisiof SunTrust
Bank and Corporate Executive Vice President of SusfiBanks, Inc.

The following table sets forth certain informatiooncerning our executive officers as of January2815 :
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Name Position Held

Thomas C. Chubb IlIChief Executive Officer and President

Scott A. Beaumont CEQO, Lilly Pulitzer Group

Thomas E. Campbell Executive Vice President - baal Administration, General Counsel and Secretary
K. Scott Grassmyer Executive Vice President - Finance, Chief Finan@#icer and Controller

J. Wesley Howard, President, Lanier Clothes

Jr.
Mark Maidment CEO, Ben Sherman Group
Terry R. Pillow CEO, Tommy Bahama Group

Additional information required by this Item 10B&rt Il will appear in our definitive proxy statemt under the headings "Corporate
Governance and Board Matters—Directors," "Execu@¥ficers,” "Common Stock Ownership by Managemertt Gertain Beneficial
Owners—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repor@agnpliance," "Corporate Governance and Board Mgtt&Vebsite Information,”
"Additional Information—Submission of Director Caddtes by Shareholders," and "Corporate GovernandeBoard Matters—Board
Meetings and Committees of our Board of Directoasd is incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 of Parwill appear in our definitive proxy statement @ndhe headings "Corporate
Governance and Board Matters—Director Compensdti@xecutive Compensation,” "Nominating, Compenma& Governance Committee
Report" and "Compensation Committee Interlocks lasdler Participation" and is incorporated herginréference.
ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owneasid Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item 12 of Parwill appear in our definitive proxy statement @ndhe headings "Equity
Compensation Plan Information” and "Common Stockhéwhip by Management and Certain Beneficial Owraamd is incorporated herein
reference.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactioasd Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 of Parwill appear in our definitive proxy statement @ndhe headings "Certain Relationsl
and Related Transactions" and "Corporate GovernanddBoard Matters—Director Independence" andderiporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 of Palwill appear in our definitive proxy statement @ndhe heading "Audit-Related
Matters—Fees Paid to Independent Registered PAbtiounting Firm" and "Audit-Related Matters—Audib@mittee Pre-Approval of Audit
and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independamdifors” and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@ 1. Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statementsiacduded in Part II, Item 8 of this report:

e Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 35, &d February 1, 2014
e Consolidated Statements of Operations for Fig0ak , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012

e Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Indomiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012
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» Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Edpiitifiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012
» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for F88&#4 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012

* Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsFiscal 2014 , Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012

2. Financial Statement Schedules
e Schedule ll-aluation and Qualifying Accour

All other schedules for which provisions are mauéhe applicable accounting regulation of the SECn@t required under the related
instructions or are inapplicable and, thereforeehaeen omitted.

(b) Exhibits

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@020, by and among Oxford Industries, Inc., Suganto
Worldwide, Inc., SWI Holdings, Inc. and the otheHlears party thereto. Incorporated by referencExbibit 2.1 to
the Company's Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2010.

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Oxford Indies, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit ®.the
Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endedust 29, 2003.

3.2 Bylaws of Oxford Industries, Inc., as amended. itpooated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Compmhgrm 10-
K for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2014.

10.1 Executive Medical Plan. Incorporated by referemcExhibit 10(d) to the Company's Form 10-K for flseal year
ended June 3, 2005.71

10.z Amended and Restated Long-Term Stock Incentive, Rffiective as of March 24, 2015.*

10.2 Form of Terms and Conditions of the Oxford Indestriinc. Performance Share Unit Award Program fecdf
2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompany's Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2012.+1

10.4 Form of Oxford Industries, Inc. Performance Equityard Agreement (Fiscal 2014 Performance-Based).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K filed on April 4, 2014.1

10.t Form of Oxford Industries, Inc. Restricted Stockaad Agreement. Incorporate by reference to ExHibiR to the
Company's Form 8-K filed April 4, 2014.1

10.€ Earnout Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2@18nt# among Oxford Industries, Inc., Sugartown
Worldwide, Inc., SWI Holdings, Inc. and the otharrfes thereto. Incorporated by reference to ExHiBi20 to the
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Jgng8, 2011.

First Amendment to Earnout Agreement, dated aseafeihber 19, 2012, by and among Oxford Industnes, |
Sugartown Worldwide LLC, and SWI Holdings, Inc., leehalf of itself and on behalf of the Sellers.drporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's FaéK for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2013.

10.¢ Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dagenaf June 14, 2012, by and among Oxford Industiies,
Tommy Bahama Group, Inc., the Persons party thdreno time to time as Guarantors, the financiatitndons
party thereto from time to time as lenders, thariitial institutions party thereto from time to time Issuing Banks
and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent. Inqated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the CompaRgisn 8-K
filed on June 15, 2012,

10.€ Third Amended and Restated Pledge and Securityehgeat, dated as of June 14, 2012, among Oxford
Industries, Inc., the other Grantors party theegtd SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent. Incated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form flé€l on June 15, 2012.

10.1C First Amendment, dated November 21, 2013, to TAmknded and Restated Credit Agreement, by and among
Oxford Industries, Inc., Tommy Bahama Group, Itiwe, Persons party thereto from time to time as &uars, the
financial institutions party thereto from time tme as lenders, the financial institutions pargréto from time to
time as Issuing Banks and SunTrust Bank, as adiritiise agent. Incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to the
Company's Form 8-K filed on November 25, 2013.

10.11 Oxford Industries, Inc. Deferred Compensation Htmamended and restated effective June 13, 2012).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Bat@7,
2012.1

10.12 Executive Post-Retirement Benefits Agreement, dBtecember 31, 2012, by and between Oxford Indssthie.
and J. Hicks Lanier. Incorporated by referencexbiltit 10.15 to the Company's Form 10-K for thedisyear
ended February 2, 2013.t

10.1: Oxford Industries, Inc. Executive Performance InsenPlan (as amended and restated, effective Mar¢cR013).
Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Camyps Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of

10.7

~



Shareholders held June 19, 2013, filed on May Q32
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21 List of Subsidiaries.*
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.*

24 Powers of Attorney.*
31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.Z Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
32 Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of theb@aes-
Oxley Act of 2002.*
101INSE XBRL Instance Document
101SCF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuine
101DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim

* Filed herewith
Management contract or compensation plan or arraagerequired to be filed as an exhibit to thigrfqguursuant to Item 15

Al (b) of this report.
We agree to file upon request of the SEC a comll@greements evidencing long-term debt omittedhfthis report pursuant to Item 601
(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K.

Shareholders may obtain copies of Exhibits withehi#rge upon written request to the Corporate SmgreDxford Industries, Inc., 999
Peachtree Street, N.E., Ste. 688, Atlanta, Ge@@309.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, hereunlp alithorized.

Oxford Industries, Inc.
By: /sl THOMAS C. CHUBB llI

Thomas C. Chubb Il
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 30, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Capacity Date
/s/ THOMAS C. CHUBB Il Chlef EXGCUtiVG Oﬁlcer and President
(Principal Executive Officer) and
Thomas C. Chubb I Director March 30, 201!
Executive Vice President - Finance, Chief
Is/ K. SCOTT GRASSMYER Financial Officer and Controller
(Principal Financial Officer and
K. Scott Grassmyer Principal Accounting Officer) March 30, 201!
*
Thomas C. Gallagher Director March 30, 201!
*
George C. Guynn Director March 30, 201!
*
John R. Holder Director March 30, 201!
*
J. Hicks Lanier Director March 30, 201!
*
J. Reese Lanier Director March 30, 201!
*
Dennis M. Love Director March 30, 201!
*
Clarence H. Smith Director March 30, 201!
*
Clyde C. Tuggle Director March 30, 201!
*
Helen B. Weeks Director March 30, 201!
*
E. Jenner Wood Il Director March 30, 201!
*By /sl THOMAS E. CAMPBELL

Thomas E. Campbell
as Attorney-in-Fact
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Exhibit 10.2
OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED
LONG-TERM STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
(as of March 24, 2015)

1. Purpose. The purpose of the Oxford Industries, Inc. Amehdad Restated Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan ‘(Bian”) is tc
attract and retain employees and directors for faxfiodustries, Inc. and its subsidiaries and to/jpl® such persons with incentives and rew
for superior performance.

2. Definitions. The following terms shall be defined as set fartow:
(a) “ Award” means any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Rettd Share or Restricted Share Unit.
(b) “ Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
(c) “ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as aeaeindm time to time.
(d) “ Committee’” means a committee of the Board charged with adieiiig the Plan as described in Section 4. For A¢

intended to qualify as “performance-based compé@nsatinder Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committeé lwveilcomposed of two or mc
outside Directors as described in Treas. Reg. 12168)(3).

(e) “ Company’ means Oxford Industries, Inc., a Georgia corgorgtor any successor corporation.

() “ Director " means a member of the Board.

(9) “ Employe€ means any person, including an officer, emploggdhe Company or a Subsidiary.

(h) “ Fair Market Valug’ means the fair market value of the Shares as ditedny the Committee from time to time in a ma

consistent with the requirements of Section 409Ahef Code. Unless otherwise specified in the tesfren Award, Fair Market Value sh
mean the closing price for the Shares reported oangolidated basis on the New York Stock Exchamyehe last day prior to the date
question or, if there were no sales on such diaecibsing price on the nearest preceding datetoohvsales occurred.

0] “ Grant Date” means the date specified by the Committee on wdigtant of an Award shall become effective, whicallsno
be earlier than the date on which the Committeeptetas the corporate action with respect thereto.

@) “ Option” means any option to purchase Shares granted Sei#ion 5 of this Plan.
() “ Optionee’ means the person so designated in an agreemieleineing an outstanding Option.
()] “ Participant” means an Employee or nonemployee Director whol&etss by the Committee to receive benefits untis

Plan, provided that nonemployee Directors shall beteligible to receive grants of incentive stoghkians as defined in Section 422 of
Code.

(m) “ Performance Objectivésmeans the performance criteria that may be eskadulipursuant to this Plan for Participants
have received grants of Restricted Shares or RestrShare Units. Performance Objectives may ircthe achievement of a specified ta
or target growth in, one or more of the followir(@: earnings before interest expense, taxes, dgpi@t and amortization (“EBITDA");i{)
earnings before interest expense and taxes (“EB(iif)) net earnings; (iv) net income; (v) operatimgome; (vi) earnings per share; (vii) b
value per share; (viii) return on shareholdezguity; (ix) capital expenditures; (x) expenses amgense ratio management; (xi) returr
investment; (xii) improvements in capital structu(giii) profitability of an identifiable businessinit or product; (xiv) maintenance
improvement of profit margins; (xv) stock pricey{(xmarket share; (xvii) revenues or sales; (xwidsts; (xix) cash flow; (xx) working capit
(xxi) return on (net) assets; (xxii) economic vahdeed; (xxiii) gross or net profit before or aftares or (xxiv) objectively determinable gc
with respect to service or product delivery, seeviz product quality, inventory management, custosatisfaction, meeting budgets ani
retention of employees. Performance Objectives rakge to the Company and/or one or more of itsislidries, one or more of its divisions
units or any combination of the foregoing, on asminlated or nonconsolidated basis, and may beespph an absolute basis or be relati
one or more peer group companies or indices, or any




combination thereof, all as the Committee determifti®r Awards intended to qualify as “performanesdnl compensation” under Section 16
(m) of the Code, (i) these Performance Objectivilsnot be altered or replaced by any other créewithout ratification by the shareholder:
the Company if failure to obtain such approval vadbrgsult in jeopardizing the tax deductibility afch Awards to Participants; and (ii)
Performance Objectives applicable to an Award bellset by the Committee within the time period prieed by Section 162(m) of the Code.

(n) “ Performance Period means a period of time established under Secticarsd /8 of this Plan within which the Performa
Objectives relating to a Restricted Share or RetstliShare Unit are to be achieved.

(0) “ Restricted Sharémeans a Share granted under Section 7 of this Pla

(P) “ Restricted Share Unit means a bookkeeping entry that records the equivafeone Restricted Share awarded pursue
Section 8 of this Plan.

(@) “ Shares” means shares of the Common Stock of the Compan§0$far value, or any security into which Sharey e
converted by reason of any transaction or evethiefype referred to in Section 10 of this Plan.

(n “ Stock Appreciation Riglitmeans a right granted under Section 6 of thisPla

(s) “ Subsidiary” means a corporation or other entity (i) more th&npercent of whose outstanding shares or sect
(representing the right to vote for the electiorDafectors or other managing authority) are, or\{ihich does not have outstanding shar¢
securities (as may be the case in a partnershift, yenture or unincorporated association), butenibtan 50 percent of whose owner:
interest (representing the right generally to madéeisions for such other entity) is, now or hergadiwned or controlled directly or indirectly
the Company, provided that for purposes of detanmgimhether any person may be a Participant fopgses of any grant of incentive st
options as defined in Section 422 of the Code, $8liry” means any corporation in which the Company owrmoatrols directly or indirect
more than 50 percent of the total combined votiogygr represented by all classes of stock issueslibly corporation at the time of such grant

3. Shares Available Under the Plan

(&) Subject to adjustment as provided in Sectidrof this Plan, the number of Shares that magi)desued or transferred upon
exercise of Options or Stock Appreciation Righii¥awvarded as Restricted Shares and releaseddutnstantial risk of forfeiture, or (iii) issu
or transferred in payment of Restricted Share Wsfitdl not in the aggregate exceed 2,000,000 Shares event, however, shall the numbe
Shares issued upon the exercise of incentive siptikns as defined in Section 422 of the Code ek@9,000 Shares. Such Shares me
Shares of original issuance, Shares held in TrgasuiShares that have been reacquired by the CoynShares that were available for grar
of the effective date of this Plan as describe@eaation 16, or that thereafter otherwise becomdadla for grant, under any stock optior
restricted stock plan of the Company other thanRtaa (including the Oxford Industries, Inc. 199®¢k Option Plan, the Oxford Industri
Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan, and the Oxford Indastrinc. 1997 Restricted Stock Plan (collectivéiy “Pre-Existing Plans”ghall be deeme¢
null and void and shall not be granted or availdbfegrant under the Pre-Existing Plans or underRian.

(b) With respect to Awards for which Shares weamsferred to Participants upon payment of th&éddpprice upon exercise o
nonqualified stock option by the transfer to thar(any of Shares or upon satisfaction of tax witdha obligations under the Plan by
transfer or relinquishment of Shares, there shaldbemed to have been issued or transferred oalyumber of Shares actually issue
transferred by the Company, less the number ofeéShso transferred or relinquished. Upon the paynmenash of a benefit provided by ¢
Award under the Plan, any Shares that were sultjectuch Award shall again be available for issuanceransfer under the Pl
Notwithstanding the foregoing, for any Shares (iiah are subject to an Award that are tenderedrtajithheld by, the Company in paymen
the exercise price of Options or Stock Appreciatitights, or (ii) that are subject to an Award amd eelinquished, forfeited or otherw
tendered to the Company in satisfaction of tax edted withholding obligations, including as contdated pursuant to Section 12 of
Plan, in any case after March 24, 2015, all sudr&hso tendered, withheld, relinquished and/deited shall be deemed to have been is
for purposes of the limitations set forth in thestfisentence of Section 3(a) of this Plan.

(c) No Participant may receive Awards represgnthore than 300,000 Shares at the time the gganade in any one calendar year.

4. Administration of the Plan This Plan shall be administered by one or morarnitees appointed by the Board. The interpret.
and construction by the Committee of any provigibthis Plan or of any agreement or document edtgnthe grant of any Award




and any determination by the Committee pursuaminoprovision of this Plan or any such agreemestification or document, shall be fit
and conclusive. No member of the Committee shalidide to any person for any such action takedetermination made in good faith. |
Awards intended to qualify as “performance-basedmensation’under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committeé aeiitify in writing tha
the Performance Objectives and any other mateniaig of the Award were in fact satisfied prior atyment of such Awards.

5. Options. The Committee may from time to time authorizenggao Participants of Options upon such terms @mdlitions as tt
Committee may determine in accordance with thevalhg provisions:

(a) Each grant shall specify the number of Shareghich it pertains.

(b) Each grant shall specify an Option price per Shatech shall be equal to or greater than the Fairkdt Value on the Gre
Date.

(c) Each grant shall specify the form of consideratiooe paid in satisfaction of the Option price &nel manner of payment
such consideration, which may include (i) cashha form of currency or check or other cash equitabeceptable to the Company,
nonforfeitable, unrestricted Shares owned by théd@pe which have a value at the time of exerdis¢ is equal to the Option price, (jii) ¢
other legal consideration that the Committee magndappropriate on such basis as the Committee etayndine in accordance with this P
or (iv) any combination of the foregoing.

(d) [Intentionally Deleted.]

(e) Each Option grant may specify a period of contirsiemployment of the Optionee by the Company or@ulysidiary (or, i
the case of a nonemployee Director, service orBtigd) that is necessary before the Options oalinsénts thereof shall become exercis:
and any grant may provide for the earlier exerofssuch rights in the event of a change in cortfdhe Company or other similar transac
or event. Without limitation of the foregoing butlgect to the Committeg’discretion to include a provision permitting earkexercise in tt
event of a change in control of the Company or ro#imilar transaction or event, no Option granatoEmployee on or after March 24, 2
shall permit such Employee to exercise any poniotme Option prior to the one year anniversaryhef Grant Date of the Option.

() Options granted under this Plan may be incentiveksbptions as defined in Section 422 of the Coumqualified stoc
options (i.e., any option that is not designatedhtended to qualify as an incentive stock opti@r)a combination of the foregoing, provis
that only nonqualified stock options may be grartteshonemployee Directors. Each grant shall spewtfigther (or the extent to which)
Option is an incentive stock option or a nonquadifstock option. Notwithstanding any such desigmatio the extent that the aggregate
Market Value of the Shares with respect to whichi@ys designated as incentive stock options arecesable for the first time by an Optior
during any calendar year (under all plans of then@any) exceeds $100,000, such Options shall beettess nonqualified stock options.
Option granted under this Plan may be exercisece iih@n ten years from the Grant Date.

(9) Each grant shall be evidenced by an agreementer éorm of notice of the Award delivered to thetiOpee and containir
such terms and provisions as the Committee mayrdete consistent with this Plan.

6. Stock Appreciation RightsThe Committee may from time to time authorizenggao Participants of Stock Appreciation Right:
Stock Appreciation Right is the right of the Pdpant to receive from the Company an amount, wiitéll be determined by the Commi
and shall be expressed as a percentage (not emgeHold percent) of the difference between the Mairket Value of the Shares on the G
Date and the Fair Market Value of the Shares ord#te of exercise. Any grant of Stock AppreciatRights under this Plan shall be upon ¢
terms and conditions as the Committee may determiaecordance with the following provisions:

€) Any grant may specify that the amount payable upenexercise of a Stock Appreciation Right may higl oy the Compar
in cash, Shares or any combination thereof and (fh&jther grant to the Participant or reservehi® Committee the right to elect among tt
alternatives or (ii) preclude the right of the Rapant to receive and the Company to issue Starether equity securities in lieu of cash.

(b) Any grant may specify that the amount payable ughenexercise of a Stock Appreciation Right shatl exceed a maximu
specified by the Committee on the Grant Date.




(c) Each grant shall be evidenced by an agreementher form of notice of the Award delivered to thatRgant, which sha
describe the subject Stock Appreciation Rightgestaat the Stock Appreciation Rights are subjectlt of the terms and conditions of this F
and contain such other terms and provisions a€timemittee may determine consistent with this Plan.

(d) Each grant shall specify in respect of eacltiSfgppreciation Right the Fair Market Value on tAeant Date.

(e) Successive grants may be made to the same Panticggardless of whether any Stock AppreciatiorhRigpreviously grante
to such Participant remain unexercised.

() Each grant shall specify the period or periodsarftinuous employment (or, in the case of a honeyg@director, service «
the Board) of the Participant by the Company or &opsidiary that are necessary before the Stocketion Rights or installments ther
shall become exercisable, as well as the perméssiaites or periods on or during which Stock Appitmn Rights shall be exercisable. /
grant may provide for the earlier exercise of stights in the event of a change in control of tr@pany or other similar transaction or ev
Without limitation of the foregoing but subjectttte Committees discretion to include a provision permitting earkxercise in the event o
change in control of the Company or other simitansaction or event, no Stock Appreciation Riglinged to an Employee on or after Me
24, 2015 shall permit such Employee to exercisepmmion of the Stock Appreciation Right prior ttetone year anniversary of the Grant |
of the Stock Appreciation Right.

7. Restricted SharesThe Committee may from time to time authorizenggato Participants of one or more Restricted Shapoi
such terms and conditions as the Committee mayrdite in accordance with the following provisions:

(a) Each grant shall constitute a transfer of the osalmerof Shares to the Participant in consideratibrthe performance
services.

(b) Each grant may be made without additional constierafrom the Participant or in consideration ofpayment by th
Participant that is less than the Fair Market Valnghe Grant Date.

(c) Each grant may provide that the Restricted Shavesred thereby shall be subject to a substangklof forfeiture within th
meaning of Section 83 of the Code for a periodgaétermined by the Committee on the Grant Daig azy grant or sale may provide for
earlier termination of such risk of forfeiture inet event of a change in control of the Companytberosimilar transaction or event. With
limitation of the foregoing but subject to the Coittee’s discretion to include a provision permitting earkexercise in the event of a chang
control of the Company or other similar transactwnevent, Restricted Shares granted to an Employeer after March 24, 2015 shall
subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture forlaast one year following the applicable Grant Deseept for any performance awards t
Employee which is settled in Restricted Shareswhbich the foregoing one year period shall be isisle of any performance period w
respect to such award combined with any periodsaftestantial risk of forfeiture.

(d) Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, asrdwf Restricted Shares shall entitle the Paditifio dividend, votin
and other ownership rights, during the period fbicl such substantial risk of forfeiture is to dooe.

(e) Each grant shall provide that, during the periadwbich a substantial risk of forfeiture is to cionte, the transferability of tl
Restricted Shares shall be prohibited or restrigtethe manner and to the extent prescribed byGbemmittee on the Grant Date. S
restrictions may include, without limitation, rightf repurchase or first refusal in the Companprowrisions subjecting the Restricted Shart
a continuing substantial risk of forfeiture in the@nds of any transferee.

) Any grant or the vesting thereof may be conditionpdn or further conditioned upon the attainmerPefformance Objectiv
during a Performance Period as established by ¢tmendittee.

(9) Any grant may require that any or all dividendsotiter distributions paid on the Restricted Shateind the period of sut
restrictions be automatically sequestered and esit@d on an immediate or deferred basis in additi8hares, which may be subject to
same restrictions as the underlying Award or subbrarestrictions as the Committee may determine.

(h) Each grant shall be evidenced by an agreementer &arm of notice of the Award delivered to thetR#pant and containir
such terms and provisions as the Committee mayrrdete consistent with this Plan. Unless otherwiseaied by the Committee,
certificates representing Restricted Shares, tegetlith a stock power that shall be endorsed imlblay the Participant with respect to s
Shares, shall be held in custody by the Companyalhtestrictions thereon lapse.




8. Restricted Share Units The Committee may from time to time authorizenggaof Restricted Share Units upon such terms
conditions as the Committee may determine in acsurd with the following provisions:

(a) Each grant shall specify the number of Restrictiedr& Units to which it pertains, which may be sabje adjustment to refle
changes in compensation or other factors.

(b) The Performance Period with respect to each Restrishare Unit, if any, may be subject to earbemination in the event
a change in control of the Company or other simitansaction or event.

(c) Each grant may specify in respect of the specifledformance Objectives a minimum acceptable lef/akbievement belo
which no payment will be made and may set fortlormtila for determining the amount of any paymenbéomade if performance is al
above such minimum acceptable level but falls sbbtthe maximum achievement of the specified Perforce Objectives.

(d) Each grant shall specify the time and manner ofrayt of Restricted Share Units that shall have lesened, and any gr:
may specify that any such amount may be paid byGbmpany in cash, Shares or any combination themadf may either grant to 1
Participant or reserve to the Committee the righelect among those alternatives. Without limitatiof the foregoing but subject to
Committee$ discretion to include a provision permitting earkexercise in the event of a change in contrathef Company or other simi
transaction or event, Restricted Share Units gdatdean Employee on or after March 24, 2015 shatllbe settled for a period of at least
year following the applicable Grant Date exceptdoy performance award to an Employee which iseskith Restricted Share Units, for wh
the foregoing one year period shall be inclusivamf performance period with respect to such awambined with any additional period pi
to settlement.

(e) Any grant of Restricted Share Units may specifit tha amount payable, or the number of Sharesdsswi¢h respect there
may not exceed maximums specified by the Commiitethe Grant Date.

) Any grant of Restricted Share Units may providetfar payment to the Participant of dividend equwgd thereon in cash
additional Shares on a current, deferred or coatihfasis.

(9) If provided in the terms of the grant, the Comnditteay adjust Performance Objectives and the relaiadnum acceptab
level of achievement if, in the sole judgment af ommittee, events or transactions have occuftedthe Grant Date that are unrelated tc
performance of the Participant and result in digiarof the Performance Objectives or the relatédimum acceptable level of achievem:
Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to edahard intended to satisfy the requirements forfggananc-based compensation un
Section 162(m) of the Code, such adjustments maydme and will be effective only to the extent pigied by such requirements.

(h) Each grant shall be evidenced by an agreementher éorm of notice of the Award delivered to thetRépant, which sha
state that the Restricted Share Units are subgeetltof the terms and conditions of this Plan audh other terms and provisions as
Committee may determine consistent with this Plan.

9. Transferability.

(a) Except as provided in Section 9(b), no Award grdnteder this Plan shall be transferable by a Rpatit other than by will «
the laws of descent and distribution, and Optiam$ &tock Appreciation Rights shall be exercisabigng) a Participans lifetime only by th
Participant or, in the event of the Participariégal incapacity, by his guardian or legal repnéstive acting in a fiduciary capacity on behd
the Participant under state law. Any attempt togfar an Award in violation of this Plan shall renduch Award null and void.

(b) The Committee may expressly provide in an Awardceagrent (or an amendment to an Award agreementptRarticipar
may transfer such Award (other than an incentieelsbption as defined in Section 422 of the Codeyyhole or in part, to a spouse or lir
descendant (a “Family Member'g, trust for the exclusive benefit of Family Membheaxgartnership or other entity in which all thenéficial
owners are Family Members, or any other entityliatéd with the Participant that may be approvedhH®syCommittee. Subsequent transfe|
Awards shall be prohibited except in accordancé wits Section 9(b). All terms and conditions of thward, including provisions relating
the termination of the Participastemployment or service with the Company or a Slidnsi, shall continue to apply following a transfead:s
in accordance with this Section 9(b).

(c) Any Award made under this Plan may provide #ilhor any part of the Shares that are (i) todsaie€d or transferred by
Company upon the exercise of Options or Stock Agipt®n Rights or upon payment under any grantegtRcted Share Units,




or (ii) no longer subject to the substantial rigkfarfeiture and restrictions on transfer refertedn Section 7 of this Plan, shall be subjet
further restrictions upon transfer.

10. Adjustments The Committee shall make or provide for such sidjents in the (a) number of Shares covered bytamdng
Options, Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted 8bhasind Restricted Share Units granted hereundepriges per share applicable to s
Options and Stock Appreciation Rights, and (c) kafdShares covered thereby, as the Committee isaiks discretion may in good fa
determine to be equitably required in order to préndilution or enlargement of the rights of Papnts that otherwise would result from
any stock dividend, stock split, recapitalizatianother change in the capital structure of the Camyp (y) any merger, consolidation, suiff;
spin-out, split-off, splitip, reorganization, or partial or complete liquidator other distribution of assets (other tharoemal cash dividenc
or (z) any other event which would constitute aniggrestructuring (as contemplated pursuant toGode and the regulations promulg:
thereunder). Without limiting the foregoing, ther@mittee may make or provide for such adjustmenthén(a) number of Shares coverel
outstanding Options, Stock Appreciation Rights,tReted Shares and Restricted Share Units grargeeuinder, (b) prices per share applic
to such Options and Stock Appreciation Rights, @)dind of Shares covered thereby, as the Comenittéts sole discretion may in good fz
determine to be equitably required in order to préndilution or enlargement of the rights of Papmts that otherwise would result from
any combination or exchange of Shares, (y) anyaissel of rights or warrants to purchase securitie@)oany other corporate transactiot
event having an effect similar to any of the foriego Moreover, in the event of any such transactioevent, the Committee may providt
substitution for any or all outstanding Awards unttés Plan such alternative consideration as iy finagood faith determine to be equite
under the circumstances and may require in cororettierewith the surrender of all Awards so repladéhe Committee may also make
provide for such adjustments in the number of Shapecified in Section 3 of this Plan as the Cortemiin its sole discretion may in good fi
determine to be appropriate in order to reflect magsaction or event described in this SectionAty. actions taken under this Section 10 ¢
be made in accordance with any applicable provisminSection 409A of the Code, including withouiliation restrictions with regard to 1
adjustment of Options and Stock Appreciation Righéd are considered exempt from Section 409A @iChde.

11. Fractional Shares The Company shall not issue any fractional Shatesuant to this Plan and shall settle any suabtibna
Shares in cash.

12. Withholding Taxes To the extent that the Company is required tdhtd federal, state, local or foreign taxes inr@gtion witt
any payment made or benefit realized by a Partitipaother person under this Plan, it shall beraddion to the receipt of such payment or
realization of such benefit that the Participansach other person make arrangements satisfacdhg tCompany for payment of all such te
required to be withheld. At the discretion of then@nittee, such arrangements may include relinquestiraf a portion of such benefit.

13. Certain Terminations of Employment, Hardship angvbped Leaves of AbsencBotwithstanding any other provision of this F
to the contrary, in the event of termination of émyment by reason of death, disability, normalrestient, early retirement with the conser
the Company or leave of absence approved by thep@own or in the event of hardship or other spedii@umstances, of a Participant v
holds an Option or Stock Appreciation Right thahat immediately and fully exercisable, any RestdcShares as to which the substantial
of forfeiture or the prohibition or restriction dransfer has not lapsed, any Restricted Share thatshave not been fully earned, or any St
that are subject to any transfer restriction pumstia Section 9(c) of this Plan, the Committee rirajts sole discretion take any action thi
deems to be equitable under the circumstancestbeibest interests of the Company, including, edtHimitation, waiving or modifying ar
limitation or requirement with respect to any Awardder this Plan; provided that, with respect toafds intended to comply with 1
requirements for performandmsed compensation under Section 162(m) of the ,GbdeCommittee may only exercise such discretioth¢
extent consistent with such requirements.

14. Foreign Employees In order to facilitate the making of any grantommbination of grants under this Plan, the Coneaitina
provide for such special terms for Awards to Paéints who are foreign nationals, or who are emgiiogy the Company or any Subsid
outside of the United States of America, as the @dtee may consider necessary or appropriate toracmdate differences in local law,
policy or custom. Moreover, the Committee may apgprsuch supplements to, or amendments, restatemealiernative versions of, this P
as it may consider necessary or appropriate fdn pucposes without thereby affecting the termshaf Plan as in effect for any other purp
provided that no such supplements, amendmentsiteestnts or alternative versions shall include @noyisions that are inconsistent with
terms of this Plan, as then in effect, unless & could have been amended to eliminate suchmam®tency without further approval by
stockholders of the Company.

15. Amendments and Other Matters




(a) This Plan may be amended from time to time by tlarB, but no such amendment shall increase anfeofimitation:
specified in Section 3 of this Plan, other thamefect an adjustment made in accordance with &edtD, without the further approval of
stockholders of the Company.

(b) The Committee shall not price any Option or Stock Appreciation Right grahtander the Plan or purchase, cancel or bu
an underwater Option or Stock Appreciation RigRtept with the approval of the affirmative votetioé majority of Shares voting at a mee
of the Company’s stockholders.

(c) This Plan shall not confer upon any Participant aglit with respect to continuance of employmenbtirer service with tt
Company or any Subsidiary and shall not interferany way with any right that the Company or anypsdiary would otherwise have
terminate any Participant’s employment or otheviserat any time.

(d) To the extent that any provision of this Plan wopitdvent any Option that was intended to qualifdamparticular provisior
of the Code from so qualifying, such provision leittPlan shall be null and void with respect tohs@ption, provided that such provision s
remain in effect with respect to other Options, #rete shall be no further effect on any provisidthis Plan.

16. Effective Date and Stockholder Approvarlhis Plan (a) was originally approved by the Bban July 27, 2004 and becs
effective upon its approval by the stockholdershaf Company on October 4, 2004; (b) was subsequantended by the Board on Augus
2006 and, giving effect to the amendment referencetlause (c) below, was approved by the stocldrsliaf the Company on October
2006; (c) was amended by the Board on Septembe2(X; (d) was thereafter amended by the Board arcM26, 2009, and subseque
approved by the stockholders of the Company on 16n2009; and (3) was thereafter amended by tteedBon March 27, 2014. This Plar
herein amended and restated shall become effagpive its approval by the Board on March 24, 2015.

17. Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of this Pland any Award hereunder will be determined iroadance wit
the laws of the State of Georgia.

18. Performance-Based Compensation under Section 16#(thg Code The Committee will have discretion to determirtgether a
Award granted under this Plan is intended to conwilir the requirements of Section 162(m) of the €adhd the regulations thereunde
“performance-based compensatiol/ith respect to Awards granted to Participants ahe designated as covered employees as descri
Section 162(m)(3) of the Code, and that are intdridecomply with the requirements for performanesdd compensation under Section 1€
(m) of the Code, the Committee will interpret amlgnister the provisions of the Plan in a mannersegient with such requirements.

19. Section 409A of the Codé&xcept as otherwise may be provided in an agraemadencing a grant, all Awards under the Pla
intended to be exempt under Section 409A of theeCtids the intent of the Company that the operatind administration of the Plan anc
agreements evidencing Awards under the Plan naectine acceleration of taxation, or the impositibpenalty taxes or interest, under Sec
409A of the Code. Notwithstanding anything in tHarPor any Award agreement to the contrary, if gi€ipant is a “specified employeeit
such term is used in Section 409A of the Code, #npayment to the Participant described in tlae BF an Award agreement upon his ol
termination of employment that is not exempt froect®n 409A of the Code, and that constitutes “detkcompensationinder Section 409
of the Code that is payable on account of “sepamaftiom service” Within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code)d éimat is otherwis
payable within 6 months after Participanseparation from service, shall instead be madtherdate 6 months after such separation
service.



Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC.
The following table lists each subsidiary of Oxfdndlustries, Inc. indented under the name of ithédiate parent, the percentage of

each subsidiary’s voting securities beneficiallyned by its immediate parent and the jurisdictioderrthe laws of which each subsidiary was
organized:

Jurisdiction of

% of Voting Incorporation or
Name Securities Organization
Oxford Industries, Inc.
Ben Sherman Clothing LLC 100 Georgia
Camisas Bahia Kino S.A. de C.V. 100 Mexico

Industrias Lanier De Honduras S. de R.L.
Lionshead Clothing Company
Manufacturera de Sonora, S.A. de CV
Oxford Caribbean, Inc.
Oxford de Colon, S.A.
Oxford Garment, Inc.
Oxford Lockbox, Inc.
Oxford International, Inc.
Oxford of South Carolina, Inc.
Oxford Private Limited of Delaware, Inc.
Oxford Products (International) Limited
Piedmont Apparel Corporation
Sugartown Worldwide LLC
Tommy Bahama Group, Inc.
Viewpoint Marketing, Inc.
Ben Sherman Group Limited
Ben Sherman (Australia) Pty Ltd.
Rodeo International Limited
Sherman Cooper Marketing Limited
Ben Sherman Holdings Limited
Oxford Industries (UK2) Limited
Ben Sherman Limited
Ben Sherman Group Limited
Textile Caledonia Investments Limited
Oxford Caribbean, Inc.
Q.R. Fashions S. de R.L.
Oxford Industries (UK2) Limited
Oxford Industries (UK3) Limited
Oxford Industries (UK3) Limited
Ben Sherman Limited
Oxford International, Inc.
Oxford Internacional de Guatemala Sociedad Anonima
Oxford Private Limited of Delaware, Inc.
Ben Sherman Holdings Limited
Oxford Products (International) Limited
Industrias Oxford de Merida, S.A. de CV
Oxford Philippines, Inc.

50® Guatemala
100 Delaware

99 @ Mexico
100 Delaware
100 Costa Rica
100 Delaware
100 Delaware
100 Georgia
100 South Carolina
100 Delaware

99.99® Hong Kong

100 Delaware

100 Delaware

100 Delaware

100 Florida

100 Australia

100 United Kingdom
100 United Kingdom
100 United Kingdom

100 United Kingdom
100 United Kingdom

100Honduras

100 United Kingdom
100 United Kingdom
100 Guatemala

100 United Kingdom

99 ™ Mexico

96.25® Philippines




Jurisdiction of

% of Voting Incorporation or
Name Securities Organization
Tommy Bahama Global Sourcing Limited 100Hong Kong
Tommy Bahama Beverages, LLC
Tommy Bahama Texas Beverages, LLC 100 Texas
Tommy Bahama Global Sourcing Limited
Tommy Bahama Australia Pty Ltd 100 Australia
Tommy Bahama Canada ULC 100 Canada
Tommy Bahama International, Pte. Ltd. 100 Singapore
Tommy Bahama K. K. 100Japan
Tommy Bahama Limited 100 Hong Kong
Tommy Bahama (Macau) Limited 100 Macau
Tommy Bahama Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 100 China
Tommy Bahama Group, Inc.
Tommy Bahama R&R Holdings, Inc. 100 Delaware
Tommy Bahama R&R Holdings, Inc.
Tommy Bahama Beverages, LLC 100 Delaware

(1)50% of the voting securities of Industrias Lanierbnduras S.A. is owned by Oxford Caribbean,
(2)1% of the voting securities of Manufacturera de@anS.A. de CV is owned by Oxford Internationak.

(3)One share of Oxford Products (International) Limhite owned by Oxford International, Inc. Oxford Buats (International) Limited has
150,000 shares issued and outstanding.

(4)1% of the voting securities of Industrias OxfordMerida, S.A. de CV is owned by Oxford Industries;.

(5)3.74% of the voting securities of Oxford Phillipsyénc. is owned by Oxford Industries, Inc. Nomioalnership interests of certain of the
voting securities of Oxford Phillippines, Inc. a@ned by various individuals.



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irfdllewing Registration Statements of Oxford Indies, Inc.:

(1) Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-12158B383-161902) pertaining to the Oxford Industries, LongTermr
Stock Incentive Plan,

(2) Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-121585383161904) pertaining to the Oxford Industries, Inmoyee Stoc
Purchase Plan, and

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3F010) pertaining to the Oxford Industries, Inef&red Compensation Pl
of our reports dated March 30, 2015, with respaethé consolidated financial statements and sckeexfuDxford Industries, Inc.,

and the effectiveness of internal control overtiicial reporting of Oxford Industries, Inc., inclubim this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) of Oxford Industries, Inc. for the yearded January 31, 2015.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 30, 2015



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&alakshappa, or any one of them, my true anéulaatitorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of ettegon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causingAsicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todxeiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiasuant to tf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (ttat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfimet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reportemuirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under A, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance with Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiorthesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute aralytifie any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/s/ Thomas C. Gallagher
Thomas C. Gallagher

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries, [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAir&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true anfulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of ettegon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Aicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todxe iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (ttat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under A, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wiih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiorthesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute aralytifite any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comaomsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/s/ George C. Guynn
George C. Guynn

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true andulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of etieguon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Asicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todx iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under ¢, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wihih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiochesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute arelytifite any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/s/ John R. Holder
John R. Holder

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true andulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of etieguon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Asicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todx iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under ¢, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wihih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiochesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute arelytifite any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/sl J. Hicks Lanier
J. Hicks Lanier

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries, [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAir&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true anfulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of ettegon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Aicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todxe iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (ttat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under A, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wiih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiorthesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute aralytifite any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comaomsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/s/ J. Reese Lanier
J. Reese Lanier

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true andulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of etieguon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Asicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todx iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under ¢, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wihih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiochesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute aralytifie any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/s/ Dennis M. Love
Dennis M. Love

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true andulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of etieguon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Asicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todx iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under ¢, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wihih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiochesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute arelytifite any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/s/ Clarence H. Smith
Clarence H. Smith

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true andulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of etieguon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Asicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todx iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under ¢, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wihih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiochesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute aralytifie any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/sl Clyde C. Tuggle
Clyde C. Tuggle

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true andulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of etieguon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Asicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todx iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under ¢, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wihih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiochesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute aralytifie any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/s/ Helen B. Weeks
Helen B. Weeks

Date: March 24, 2015




POWER OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned, a director of Oxford Industries. [(the “Company”)does hereby constitute and appoint eac
Thomas E. Campbell, Mary Margaret Heaton and SAr&jalakshappa, or any one of them, my true andulaattorneys-in-
fact for me and in my name for the purpose of etieguon my behalf in any and all capacities the @any’s Annual Repo
on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015, graanendment or supplement thereto, and causing/Asicha
Report or any such amendment or supplement todx iiith the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comnmspiarsuant to tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlat"YAIn addition, each such attorneyfmet shall have full power a
authority to execute on my behalf in my capacityaadirector of the Company subject to the reporteguirements of tt
Act, all Forms required to be filed by me under ¢, including Forms 4 and 5, in accordance wihih Act and the rules a
regulations promulgated thereunder. In additiochesuch attorney-ifact shall have full power and authority to do
perform any and all acts on my behalf which maynbeessary or desirable to complete, execute arelytifite any suc
Forms with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comamsnd any stock exchange or similar authority.

/sl E. Jenner Wood Il
E. Jenner Wood llI

Date: March 24, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND SECTIO N 302 OF

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas C. Chubb lll, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F Oxford Industries, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presentb report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on

such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportitingit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@huaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Direct@@spersons performing the

equivalent functions):
() All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inke$ management or other employees who have aisgmtifole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 30, 2015 /sl THOMAS C. CHUBB Il

Thomas C. Chubb IIl
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND SECTIO N 302 OF

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, K. Scott Grassmyer, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F Oxford Industries, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presentb report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportitingit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@huaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Direct@@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

() All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inke$ management or other employees who have aisgmtifole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 30, 2015 /sl K. SCOTT GRASSMYER

K. Scott Grassmyer
Executive Vice President - Finance, Chief FinanG#icer and
Controller
(Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Oxford Istiies, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K ("FormHKY9 for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2014as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof, |, Thomas C. Chubb Ill, CEieécutive Officer an
President of the Company, and I, K. Scott Grassniezcutive Vice President—Finance, Chief FinanGiiicer and Controller of the

Company, each certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SedRb0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dhieaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my
knowledge:

(1) The Form 1 fully complies with the requirements of sectia®(d) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4;38¢

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Krifapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl THOMAS C. CHUBB I

Thomas C. Chubb Il
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 30, 2015

/sl K. SCOTT GRASSMYER

K. Scott Grassmyer
Executive Vice President - Finance, Chief Finan€éficer and Controller
(Principal Financial Officer)

March 30, 2015




